DHIRAJ & DHEERAJ
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Edel Finance Company Limited
(hereinafter referred to as “ the Holding Company"), its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to asthe Group”) and its associate comprising of the consolidated Balance sheet as at March 31,
2024, the consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, including other comprehensive income, the consolidated Cash
Flow Statement and the consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “ the consolidated financial statem ents”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us and based on the
consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements and on the other financial information of the
subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (" the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group and its
associate as at March 31, 2024, their consolidated loss including other comprehensive loss, their consolidated cash
flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are
independent of the Group and its associate in accordance with the 'Code of Ethics' issued by the institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those maiters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matiers. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report. We
have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the
performance of procedures designed to respondto our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements. The results of audit procedures performed by us and by other auditors of
components not audited by us, as reported by them in their audit reports furnished to us by the management,
including those procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements

Key audit matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Impairment of financial instruments (expected credit losses)

The Group has investments in various | Our audit procedures included considering the appropriateness of
subsidiaries in form of equity shares, | the processes laid down by the management for assessment of
compulsorily convertible preference shares | impairment in the value of investments in subsidiary and other
and compulsorily convertible debentures | group companies combined with procedures performed as follows:

which are not listed or quoted.
These investments are valued at cost and | = We have considered management's assessment of

are required to be assessed for impairment in impairment wherever considered necessary and assessed
accordance with Ind AS 38, when any whether any impairment indicators existed for investment in
indicators of impairment are observed. individual subsidiary and other group companies.

In carrying out such impairment assessment, e e
a significant judgement of the management is | * We traced the net-worth of the individual subsidiary and other

involved in  estimating the investee group companies from their audited financial statements.

company’s "value in use”, in accordance with
ind AS 36. Estimation of the value in use
requires the management to apply
appropriate assumptions with respect to the
growth rates for future cash flow projections
of the investee company and discount rates
for determining present value of such cash
flows.

in view of the high degree of management's
judgement involved in estimation of the
recoverable amount of investments in
unlisted subsidiaries and the inherent
uncertainly relating to the assumptions
supporfing such estimates, we considered
this area as a key audit matter.

+ We assessed the information used to determine the key
assumptions including growth rates and discount rates.

» We assessed the disclosures relating to investments in
subsidiary and other group companigs included in the
Consolidated financial Statements in accordance with the
Requirements of Ind AS.

Information technology (IT) systems and controls

The reliability and security of IT systems play | +  The audit procedures those reported in the auditors report of
a key role in the business operations, a subsidiary companies, comprised the following:

financial accounting and reporting process of
the Group. Since large volume of
transactions are processed daily, the IT | The aspects covered in the IT General Control audit were
controls are required to ensure that
applications process data as expected and (iy User Access Management




Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

manner. Any gaps in the IT control
environment could result in a material
misstaternent of the financial accounting and
reporting records.

Therefore, due to the pervasive nature and
complexity of the IT environment, the
assessment of the general IT controls and
the application conirols specific to the
accounting and preparation of the financial
information is considered to be a key audit
matter.

(It Program Change Management

(fii) Other related ITGCs — to understand the design and test
the operating effectiveness of such controls;

» Assessed the changes that were made to the key systems
during the audit period and assessing changes that have
impact on financial reporting;

» Tested the periodic review of access rights. We inspected
requests of changes to systems for appropriate approval and
authorization.

e Performed tests of controls (including other compensatory
controls wherever applicable) on the |T application controls
and IT dependent manual controls in the system.

e Tested the design and operating effectiveness of
compensating controls, where deficlencies were identified and,
where necessary, extended the scope of our substantive audit
procedures.

Sale/Assignment of Financial Assets

The audit procedures thus reported in the auditor's report of a
subsidiary company, comprised the following:

» Read and assessed the Company's accounting policies for
computation and accounting of sales /assignment of loan
portfolios as per the provisions of Ind AS 109,

» Read and assessed the contracts entered by the Company
for sale/assignment to verify the gains/ losses on the
fransactions.

¢ Verified the procedures followed by the company while
carrying out the sale/assignment.

*» Read and assessed the amendmentis to the contracts
entered by the Company with ARC trusts for change in the
rights assigned to the underlying Security Receipts (SR)
resulling in to de-recognition of Investment in SR and
recognition of Investment in SR representing the residual
interest {Equity) to be measured at fair value through Other
Comprehensive Income.

+ Verification of confirmation and fair valuation of Security
receipts.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters to communicate in our report.




Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Board report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon, which we obtained prior to the date of this auditors report, and the Annual report, which is
expected to me made available to us after that date.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

When we read the Board Report, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to
communicate the matter to those Charged with Governance.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consclidated Financial Staternents

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position, consolidated financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated statement of changes in equity of the Group including its associate in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. The respective
Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Group and of its associate and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
consolidated financial staternents that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial  statements by the
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in
the Group and of its associate are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of its associate to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associate are also responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and of its associate.




Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our cbjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatementwhen it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
errar and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statement.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We afso:

tdentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
apinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls,

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related fo events or canditions that may cast significant
doubt on the ability of the Group and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are reguired fo draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group and its associate to cease to continue as a going concern,

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fairpresentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group and its associate of which we are the independent auditors, to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the financiai
statements of such entities included in the consoclidated financial statements of which we are the independent
auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by other
auditors, such other auditors remain responsible far the direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried
out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities included in
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024 and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulation preciudes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to




{a)

Other Matter
We did not audit the financial statements and other financial information, in respect of;

14 subsidiaries, whose financial statements include total assets of Rs 24,962.44 crores as at March 31, 2024 and
total revenues of Rs.1,624.73 crores and net cash inflow of Rs 892.74 crores for the year ended on that date. These
financial statement and other financial information have been audited by other auditors, which financial statements,
other financial information and auditor's reports have been furnished to us by the management.

1 associate company forming part of the Group, whose statements include Group’s share of net profit after tax of
Rs. 1.61 crores and Group's share of total comprehensive loss of Rs. 1.61 crores for the period from April 1, 2023 to
March 31, 2024, as considered in the consolidated financial statement, whose financial statement, other financiai
information have been audited by other auditor and whose report have been furnished to us by the Management,

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included
in respect of these subsidiaries and associate company, and our report in terms of sub- sections (3) of Section 143
of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate company, is based solely on the repori(s)
of such cther auditors.

Our opinion above on the consofidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance on the work done
and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements and other financial information cerfified by the
Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Qrder, 2020 (" the Order”), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of
the other auditors on separate financial statements and the other financial information of the subsidiary companies
and associate, incorporated in India, as noted in the ‘Other Matter' paragraph we give in the “ Annexure 1 a
statement on the matters specified in paragraph 3(xdi) of the Order,

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on
separate financial statements and the other financial information of subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘other
matter' paragraph we report, to the extent applicable, that:

Wefthe other auditors whose report we have relied upon have sought and obtained all the information and
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements:

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidation of the
financial staternents have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and reports of the other

auditors;

The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended:

On the basis of the confirmation received from the directors of the Holding Company as on March 31, 2024 taken on
record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the statutory auditors who are appointed
under Section 139 of the Act, of its subsidiary companies and associate, none of the directors of the Group’s
companies and its associate, incorporated in India, is disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.




(f

(g)

(h)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and associate, incorporated in India, and the operating
effectiveness of such controls refer to our separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion and based on the consideration of reports of other statutory auditors of the subsidiaries and associate,
the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid / provided by the Holding Company,
its subsidiaries and associate incorporated in India to their directors in accordance with the provisions of section 187
read with Schedule V to the Act;

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
expianations given to us and based on the consideration of the report of the other auditors on separate financial
statements as also the other financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, as noted in the ‘Other matter’
paragraph:

i) The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on its consolidated financial
position of the Group and its associate in its consolidated financial statements — Refer Note 51.1 to the
consolidated financial statements;

ii) The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any material
foreseeable losses;

i) There have been no amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the
Holding Company, its subsidiaries and associate, incorporated in India during the year ended March 31, 2024;

iv) a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and associate which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that, to the best of
its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in note 58(A) to the consolidated financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate to or in any
other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectiy lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the respective Holding Company or
any of such subsidiaries and associate ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and its associate which are
companies incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have
represented to us and the other auditors of such subsidiaries and associate respectively that, fo the best of its
knowledge and belief, other than as disciosed in the note 58(B) to the consolidated financial
statements, no funds have been received by the respective Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and
associate from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company or any of such subsidiaries and associate
shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c. Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumsiances
performed by us and that performed by the auditors of the subsidiaries and associate which are companies
incorporated in India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, nothing has come to our or
other auditor's notice that has caused us or the other auditors to believe that the representations under sub-
clause (a) and (b) contain any material mis-statement.

v) No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Holding Company and its subsidiaries and its
associate.




vi) Based on our examination which included test checks and that performed by the respective auditors of the
subsidiaries whose financial statements have been audited under the Act, the Holding Company and
subsidiaries have used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trait (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions
recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit
trail feature being tampered with.

As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable from April 1, 2023, reperting
under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Ruies, 2014 on preservation of audit trail as per the
statutory requirements for record retention is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.

For Dhiraj and Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number:

2
/@e‘rﬁijadhich

Partner

Membership Number:

UDIN: 24425098BKEIQNE917
Piace of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 10" May 2024




Annexure-1: Referred to in Paragraph Under the Heading “Report on Other lLegal and Regulatory
Requirements” of Our Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of Edel Finance

Company Limited

Based on our audit and on the consideration of report of the other auditors on separate financial statements and the
other financial information of the subsidiary companies and associate, incorporated in India, as noted in the *Other

Matter' paragraph we state that:

3(xxi) There are no qualifications or adverse remarks by the respective auditors in their report on Companies (Auditors

Report) Order, 2020 of the companies included in the consolidated financial statem

ents except for following where the

respective auditor have reported unfavorable or adverse remarks in their audit report to the principal auditor.

Name CIN Holding Clause number of the
Company/ CAROreport which is
Subsidiary/ unfavorable or adverse
Associate

Edel Finance Company Limited U65920MH1989PLC053809 Holding xvi

Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly [U65922MH2008PLC182906 Subsidiary iii (c) and iii {d)

Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)

Comtrade Commadities Services 166980G.J1995PLC025267 Subsidiary xvii

Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited U67120MH2008PLC422229  [Subsidiary xvii

ECL Finance Limited U65000MH2005PLC 154854  [Subsidiary it (c), iii (d) and xvii

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited UG7120MH1997PLC285480  [Subsidiary jii {c) and iii {d)

Edelwaiss Investment Adviser Limited [U74140TG2008PLC120334 Subsidiary iii (c), i {d) and xvii

Edelwgiss Rural & Corporate Services 45201 TG2006PLCO78157 Subsidiary il {c), iii (d), vii (), and xvii

Limite

Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel U74900MH2008PLC287466 Subsidiary fii(c), 1ii(d), and xvii

Land Limited)

Edelweise Securities and Investments [U65990MH2009PTC344641 Associate iii(c), dii{d), viii(d) and xvi

Private Limited

For Dhiraj and Bheeraj
Chartered Accountanis
ICAl Firm Regis(;_\tr\a;(gg\Numberz

M‘”“"/
/ﬁﬁldm Dadhich

Partner

Membership Number:

UDIN: 24425098BKEIQNE917

Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 10" May 202
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Annexure-2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Edel Finance Company Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act")

in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Ede! Finance Company Limited (hereinafter
referred to as the “Holding Company”) as of and for the year ended March 31, 2024, we have audited the internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
(the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together referred to as “ the Group”) and its associate, which are
companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and its associate, which are companies
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Holding Company's internal financial controls with reference to
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on
Auditing, specified under section 143(10} of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of intemal financial controls,
both, issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial staterents and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, The
procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other auditors in terms
of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to consolidated financial statement is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
with reference to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that rec?eipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and dlrector_s of
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection gf unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Annexure-2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Consolidated Financial Statements of
Edel Finance Company Limited (Continued)

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstaterments due fo error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
reference fo consolidated financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Group and its associate, which are companies incorporated in India, have, maintained in all
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and such
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were operating effectively as at March
31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICAIL

Other Matters

Our report under Section 143(3)(j) of the Act on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the intemal financial
controls with reference to consalidated financial statements of the Holding Company, in so far as it relates to these
14 subsidiaries and an associate, which are companies incorporated in India, is based on the comresponding reports
of the auditors of such subsidiaries incorporated in India.

For Dhiraj and Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number:

) P

ilendra Dadhich
Partner
Membership Number:
UDIN: 24425098BKEIQNB917
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 10" May 2024




Edel Finance Company Limited

Coensolidated Balance Sheet

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICA} Firm Registration Number: 102454W
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{Currency: Indian rupees in millions} Note -::’Match 31, 2024 March 3%, 2023

ASSETS = o
Financial assets » R SRR R

_{a) Cashand cash equivalents ) 7 10,204.77 1,289.22
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivatents 8 2,953.03; 2,458.95
{c) _Derivative financial instruments e 9 ©1,031.38 T
{d) Trade receivables 10 s 05,268.23 391.88
(e} Loans 11 HIU6S,087,68 41,687.17
{f)__Investments R 12 ++1,17,521.41 29,974.20
{g) Other financial assets 13 & 172,686,118 ¢ 1,428.57

Total financial assets SR 2,08,762.68 77,230.99

Non-financial assets o D o
{a) Current tax assets {net) 14 15,205.23 | 2,232.13
ib} Deferred tax assets {net} - 15 : 1,314.71
{c} Investment property - 16 3,032.,59
{d} Property, Plant and Equipment 17 2,109.89
{e) Capital work in progress 13 -

_{f} Intangible assets under development e 18 240
{g) Goodwill on consolidation . 146.82
{h) Other Intangible assats 17 66.32
(i} Right of use asset - 17 109.08
{j} Other non- financiai assets 19 473.15

Total non-financial assets B 9,502.10

TOTAL ASSETS } 85,733.02

LIABILITIES o

Financial liabilities
{a) Derivative financial instruments 9 -

(b) Trade payables I 20
i. total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 8.47
ii. total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises :10,238.55 393.41
{c) Debt securities 21 °1,00,548.75 40,067.29
{d} Borrowings {other than debt securities} } 22 +775,695.02 5 28,750.44
{e) Deposits 23 i 16,98 -
{fl Subordinated liabilities 24 ‘13,892.05 : 1,070.13
[g) Other financial liabilities 25 :16169.28 - 12,391.47

Total financial liabilities 2,17,126.73 82,681.21

Non-financial liabilities _

_{a) Current tax liabilities (net) 26 33.44
{b} Provisions 27 5842
{c} Deferred tax liabilities [net) 15 43.59
{d) Other non-financiat liabilities i 28 135.52

Total non-financial liabilities e 270.97

TOTAL LIABILITIES o 82,952.18

EQUITY I - e
{a) Equity share capital .2 5,566.75 7,566.75
{b} Instruments entirely equity in nature 30 0 9,650,00 1,650.00
e} Other equity e B 31 £ {10,064.13) {6,176.38)
Equity attributable to Owners of the parent e '9,152.62 3,040.37
Equity attributable to Non-controlling Interests :54,305.04 ¢ 740.54

TOTAL EQUITY 1H13,457.68 3,780.91

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY +72,31,944.74 ¢ 86,733.08

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 1to61

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directars

e

ndra Dadhich Vidya Shah
Partner Executive Director
Membership No: 425098 DiN ;00274831

Christina D'sguza
Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 10, 2024 May 10, 2024




Edel Finance Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

‘For the year ended |

Far the year ended

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions) Note “March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Revenue fram operations _ B .
Interest income o 32 Lo672597° 5,999.69
Dividend income o 33 Siv1629°0 4.12
Fee income 34 174933 917.11
Net gain / {loss} on fair value changes 35 9,803,585 - 1,905.84
Other operating revenue 36 TN AT76.03 355.39
Total revenue from operations - i 17,771.17 9,182.15
Other income - 37 794,26 899.34
Total Income +18,065.43 " 10,081.49
Expenses e
Finance costs 38 8,678.30
Impairment on financial instruments 39 {245.93)
Employee benefits expense 40 1,093.40_
Depreciation and arnortisation ’ 16,17 & 18 366.14
Other expenses 41 1,576.10
Total expenses o 11,468.01
Profit / (loss) before share in profit of associates and tax {1,386.52}
Share in profit / {loss) of associates {106.31)
Profit / {Loss) before tax {1,492.83}
Tax expenses: a2

Current tax 90.11

Deferred tax R 413.84
Profit / (Loss) for the year {1,996.78}
Other comprehensive income [ (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss e

Remeasurament gain / (loss) on defined benefit plans {OC1) T ' {1.26)

Income tax - OCI - that will not be reclassified 0.66
Total other comprehensive income / {loss) {0.60}
Total comprehensive income f (loss) T {1,997.38)
Net Profit / (Loss) for the period attributable to:

Owners of the parent ~ {2,015.10)

Non controlling interests 18.32
Other Comprehensive Income [ (Loss) for the period attributable to:

Owners of the parent e {0.72)

Non controlling interests - 0.12
Total Comprehensive Income / {Loss) for the period attributable to:

Owners of the parent - {2,015.82)

Non controlling interests ) 18.44
Earnings per share (Face value of €100 each) 44 .

- Basic (%) o : (27.84)

- Diluted (%) S (5 A7) {27.84)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements. Ito b1

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firmn Registration Nymber: 102454W

N~
dra Dadhich
Partner
Membership No: 425098

Mumbai, May 10, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Execufive Director & CFO
DIN:02297081

\

Gﬁt}
Christina Blsbuza

Company Secretary

May 10, 2024

-

Vidya Shah
Executive Director
DIN : 00274831




Edel Finance Company Limited

Consolidated Statement of Cash flows

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

L For the year ended

For the year ended
March 31, 2023

A Cash flow from operating activities

o March 31 2024

Profit / (Loss) before tax : 3; {_1,679.08) T {1,492.83)
Adjustments for: AR o
Depreciation and amortisation - 366.14
(Profit) / loss on sale of investments 838.00
Impairment on financial instruments (net) (245.93)
Fair value of financial instruments {net) 180584
Provision for graiuity and compensated absences 3.38
(Profit) / loss on sale of of fixed assets (net} -
Operating cash flow hefore working capital changes _1,374.60
Adjustments for: o i
Decrease / {increase) in trade and other receivables {4, 879 85) (487.47)
Decrease / {increase) in other financial assets {1,688.18) . 13.08
Decrease / {increase) in loans {27,391.87) 738.64
Sale / (purchase} of Investments (net) _ s {97 967.24) {4,659.88)
Decrease / {increase) in other non financial assets o {44.77)
Increase / {decrease} in trade payables 73.30
Increase / {decrease) in non financial liabilities 18.56
Increase / (decrease} in other financial liabilities 2,710.51
{263.42)
Income taxes paid (net of refund) ) i {294.46)
Net cash used in operating activities -A 1,20, 028 84) o {557.88)
B Cash flow from investing activities e : B
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets (net) +{1,635.14) 303.87
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities- B {1,635.14) 303.87
C  Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of share capital 2,000.00
Proceeds / (repayment) from debt securities (refer note 1 below) 7,360.83
Proceeds / (repayment) from borrowings {other than debt securities) {refer note (9,668.35)
1 below} i
Proceeds / (repayment) from deposits {refer note 1 below) o S 18,98 -
Proceeds / (repayment) from subordinated liabilities (refer note 1 be[ow) +0:12,821,92 ¢ {1,806.06)
Changes in non-controlling interest +3,617.10 : s
Effect of change in group's interest e +1(3,302.51) 576.04
Net cash generated from / (used in) financing activities - C '1 30 579.53 K {1,537.55)
" “Net increase / (decrease} in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) _ 8 915 55 {1,791.56)
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year -.-1,289.22 : 3,080.78
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year ©:10,204.77 - o 1,289_;23“#




Edel Finance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash flows (continued}

Notes:
1 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

2 Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 prescribed under the Companies Act (Indian
Accounting Standard) Rules, 2015 under the companies Act ,2013.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial 1tobl
Statements.

As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj and Dheeraj For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants

ICAl Firm Registration Number: 102454W

%\9}.@“ <
/S/@n'dra Dadhich

Partner
Membership No: 425098

) (feiud

Vidya Shah
Executive Director
DIN : 30274831

Christina D'souza

Company Secretary

Mumbai, May 10, 2024 May 10, 2024



Edel Finance Company Limited
Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity
{Currency: Indian rupees In millions)

A.1 Equlty Share Capital

Partieulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Qutstandingas on  Issued during the Outstanding as on March | Outstandingas  hsued during the year  Outstanding as on
Aprli 1,2023 year 31, 2024 on April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023
Issued, subscribed and pid vp 7.566.75 2,000,00 9,566.75 5,566.75 2,000.00 7,566.75
A.2 [nstrumsents entirely equity In nature
( ily Canvertible Praf Shares {CCPS}
Farticulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Outstanding ason  #ssued during the Outstanding as an March | Outstandingas  ksued during the year  Outstanding as on
‘ April 1, 2023 year 31,2924 on April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023
Issued, subsceibed and paid vp 1,650.00 - 1,650.04 1,650,00 - 1,650,00
Ct y Convertible es (CCD)
Particulars As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
Qutstanding ason  dssued during the Outstanding as on March | Outstandingas  lssued during the year  Outstanding as on
Aprll 1, 2023 year 31,2024 an April 1, 2022 March 31, 2023
Issued, subscrbed and paid up - 8,000.00 £,000.00 - - -
'Total af Instrumenits entlrely equity in nature } 1,650.00 8,000.00 2,650.00 1,650.00 . 1,650.00
B. Gther Equlity
freserves and Surplus Other Comprehensive Income Total Non-Controliing
attributable Interest
Capital Reserve [Capltal Red i S5 ities Premi Special Reserve under Reserve under Retained i d Capltal Reserve | | Reserve | Financial instrumants ta owners of
Particulars Reserve Account section 45-1C of the Reserve| section 29C of Contribution - Reserve through Other through Other the parent
Bank of Indla Act, £934 the Natlonal Equity Comprehensive Income Camprehensive
Housing Bank Income
Act, 1957
Balance as at Aprll 1, 2022 [3,596.26) 114,34 4,269.44 1,414.01 575,42 {10,007.93) 52,55 32.27 1,458.31 915.44 - {3,772,47) 5797
toss for the year - - . - . 12,015.10} - - - - - {2,015.10) 18.32
Other comprehensive loss - - - - {0.72) . - - - 0.72) 0.12
Total Comprehensive Jncome/{Loss) fot the year (3,596.26) 114.34 4,269.44 1,414.01 575.42 {12,023.81) 52.55 32.27 1.458.31 915,44 - {6,748.15) 77641
Transfer Under 29 NHB . - - - 3213 (32.13) - - - - - -
Transfer Under 45 -IC RBI - - - 130.81 - {130.51) - B . - - - -
Transfer from Dabenture Redemption Reserve - - » - 1,239.24 - {1,235.24) - - -
Transfer from Revaluation reserve - . - . 51,12 - . . ($1.11) - - -
Reversal on account of lapses of ESOP/SAR - - E - 27.52 - - - - 27.52 -
Effect of changes in group's Interest - . - - - 584.39 - - . - - 584.39 (35.87)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 {3,596.26) 114.34 4,269.44 1,544,382 602.55 {10,284.48) 52,55 27 219,07 864.32 - (6,176.38) 740.54
Loss for the year - - - . - {559,78) - - . - - (559.78) {52.29)
Other comprehensive loss - - - - - {120.12) - - (417.53) {537.65) {0.31)
Total Comprehensive income/{Less) for the year {3,596.26) 114.34 4,269.44 1.544.82 502.55 {10,964.38) 52.55 2,27 219.07 864.32 (417.53) (7.273.81) 687.94
Transfer Under 29C NHB - - . - 38.60 [38.60) - - . - - - -
Transfer Under 45 -IC RBI - - 482.62 - {482.62) - . - - .
Transler 10 Dahemure Redemption Reserve - . - - - 543,37 - {543.37) - - .
Transier from Revaluation reserve . - - - - 116,53 - - {116.53) - - -
fReversal on account of lapses of ESOP/SAR . - - - - 54.69 - - - - 94.69 -
Effect of changes in group’s Interest 3,412.67 167,00 2,608.82 5,824.20 - {18,766.51) 182.04 3,088,40 597.77 - {1,885.01) 3,617.10
Balance as at March 31, 2024 {183.59) 281.34 5,E78.26 7.852.34 646.15 (29,497.62) 234.59 32,27 (417.53) {10,054.13) 4,305.04




Edef Finance Company Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity {cantinued}
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The accompanying nates are an integral part of the

As per our report of even date attached,
For Dhira) & Dheera) Far and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants

ICA! Firm Registration Number: 102454W

Shallendra Dadhich Vidya Shah
Pariner Executive Director
DIN : 00274831

Membership No: 425088

=
Christina D'souta
Company Seci Ital‘,r

Mumbai, May 10, 2024 May 10, 2024
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Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

1

Background

Edel Finance Company Limited {‘the Company’}) a public limited company domiciled and incorporated under the provisions
applicable in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on October 16, 1989 and is a wholly
owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

The Company was primarily engaged in the business of lending and investment and is registered with the Reserve Bank of
India {'RBI') as a Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company {NBFC-ND-SI}. Company got
converted to Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) as NBFC-CIC-ND-SI on 09th October 2018.

Basis of preparation of consolidated financiai statements

The consolidated financial statements relate to Edel Finance Company Limited (‘the Company’) and its subsidiaries (together
‘the Group’} and associates. The Group is primarily engaged in {a} agency business, which includes advisory and other fee
hased services; (b) Capital business which includes lending business and investment activities; and (¢} Treasury business
includes income from trading activities.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS} notified under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time), These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company on 10 May 2024,

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for entities under liguidation/
dissolution and certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive
income {FVOCI) instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value through Profit or Loss and other financial assets held
for trading, certain property plant and equipment which have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financiat
statements are presented in Indian Rupees {INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest million, except when otherwise
indicated.

Presentation of financial statements

The Group presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division Il of the Schedule Il to the
Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date {current} and
more than 12 months after the reporting date {non-current).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and reported
net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being
contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

*  The normal course of business
¢  The event of default
*  The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties

Basis of consofidation

The consolidated financial statements as on 31 March 2024, comprise the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries as at 31 March 2024 including any controlled structured entities. The Company consolidates a subsidiary when
it controls it. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Generally, there is a presumption
that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of
the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including: s

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements.

The Group’s veting rights and potential voting rights.

The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting
rights holders

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an Investee, if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group ohtains control over the
subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. AsseisHabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

4. Basis of consolidation {Continued)

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in
similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies. However, no subsidiaries, associates and consolidated structure entities have followed different
accounting policies than those followed by the Group for the preparation of these consolidated financial statements.

Consolidation procedure:

a. Combine like items of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those of its
subsidiaries, For this purpose, income and expenses of the subsidiary are based on the amounts of the assets and
liabilities recognised in the consolidated financial statements at the acquisition date.

b. Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent’s investment in each subsidiary and the parent’s portion of equity
of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related goodwill.

c. Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
hetween entities of the Group (profits or losses resulting from intragroup transactions that are recognised in assets,
are eliminated in full). income Taxes applies to temporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and
losses resulting from intragroup transactions.

Profit or loss and each component of Other Comprehensive Income {OCI} are attributed to the equity holders of the parent
of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction. With
respect to put options granted by the Group to the holders of non-controlling interests in a subsidiary, where the Group
does not have a present ownership interest in the shares subject to put, till the put remains unexercised, non-controlling
continues to be recognised including allocation of profit or loss, other comprehensive income and other changes in equity
of the subsidiary. However, at each reporting date, the non-controlling interest is derecognised as if it were acquired at
that date and a financial liability is recognised and measured at its fair value. The difference between these two amounts
is recognised as an equity transaction and attributed to owners of the parent.

Given the level of judgement required regarding consolidation of structured entities, these considerations are described
further in the significant accounting judgements. Disclosures for investment in subsidiaries, and structured entities are
provided in notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Investment in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decision
of the investee, but it's not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in its associate is accounted for using the equity method. Under the equity method, the
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to recognise
changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since the acquisition date. The Statement of Profit and Loss
reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate. Any change in OCl of those investees is presented
as part of the Group’s OCL. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the
Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in the Statement of Changes in Equity. Unrealised gains and
Jusses resulting from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to

5.

5.1

5.1.1

5.1.2

5.1.3

5.1.4

5.1.5

5.1.6

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

Material accounting policies
Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income
Effective interest rate (EIR)

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR} method for all financial instruments
measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash flows through the expacted life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross
carrying amount of financial instrument.

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integrat part
of the EIR. The Group recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate
of return over the expected life of the financial asset. Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates
charged at various stages, and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments penalty interest and
charges,

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other than credit risk, the adjustment
is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or
reduction in interest income.

Interest Income

The Group calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial assets other than credit-
impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3’, the Group calculates interest
income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the financial asset. If the financial assets
cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Group reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend Income

The Group recognised dividend income when the Group’s right to receive the payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.

Fee and Commission Income

Fee and commission income include fees other than those that are an integral part of EIR. The Group recognises the fee and
commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts / agreement and when it is probable that the
Group will collect the consideration.

Other Income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental to the business and is recognised when the right to
receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. Other ancillary charges are recognized upon realisation.

Brokerage Income
Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rates at the execution of transactions on behalf of the customers on the

trade date and is reflecied net of related sub-brokerage expenses, Goods and Service Tax (“GST"), transaction charges and
stock exchange expenses.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to

5.

5.1

5.1.7

5.1.8

5.1.9

5.1.10

5.1.11

5.1.12

5.1.13

5.1.14

5.1.15

5.1.16

the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

Significant accounting policies {Continued)
Recognition of Interest income and Dividend income {Continued)

Business support services Income

Business support services including weh based services are accounted on accrual basis in accordance with the terms and
contracts entered into between the Group and the counterparty.

Profit / loss on sale of investmerits is recognised on trade date basis.

Commodities sales are accounted when all obligations connected with the transfer of risks and rewards to the buyer have
been fulfilled after the price has been determined and collection of the receivable is reasonably certain

Warehouse income is recognised on accruzal basis by reference to the agreements entered with customers.

Interests on delayed payments, warehousing charges and rental income are recognised on accrual basis by reference to the
agreements entered,

Prafit / {loss) from share in partnership firm is accounted once the amount of the share of profit/ {loss} is ascertained and
credited / debited to the Group's account in the books of the partnership firm.

Real estate advisory income is recognised basis the terms and conditions menticned in the agreement.
Revenue from Investment management services

Revenue from Investment management services is recognised over the tenure in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the investment management agreement with group companies. The investment manager, in addition to management
fee, also receives a performance profit allocation in respect of all classes of units. The incentive fee is calculated at the end
of every performance period on a unit-by-unit basis so that each class of unit is charged an incentive fee, which equates
fairly with that unit’s performance. At the end of each performance period, the incentive fee is calculated as a % of the
appreciation in the NAV per class of unit {before accrual or deduction of the incentive fee) over the reference price per class
of unit and after accounting for the hurdle rate.

Portfolio management fees are recognised over the tenure in accordance with portfolio management agreement entered
with respective clients,

Revenue from fund management services {excluding mutual fund business) is recognised over the tenure in accordance
with the terms and conditions of the investment management agreement between the Group and the Fund for which the
Group acts as a fund manager.

The trusteeship fee is recognised as mutually agreed between the trustee and the settler.
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured at transaction price i.e., the amount of consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring promised goods or services to the customer, excluding amounts collected on hehalf of third
parties. The Group consider the terms of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction
price. Where the consideration promised is variable, the Group excludes the estimates of variable consideration that are
constrained. The Group applies the five-step approach for the recognition of revenue;

L Identification of contract

1. Identification of the separate performance obligation in the contract

Ifl.  Determination of transaction price

V.  Allocation of transaction price to separate performance obligation and

V. Recognition of revenue when (or as) each performance ohligation is satisfied.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

5.2 Financial Instruments

521

5.2.2

5.2.3

Date of recognition

Financial assets and liahilities with exception of loans and borrowings are initially recognised on the trade date, i.e,, the
date the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades: purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or
convention in the market place. Loans are recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Group
recognises borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Group.

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial fiabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss) are added 1o or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit and loss

When the fransaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based
on a valuation technigue using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Group recognises the difference between
the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based on models for
which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred
and is only recognised in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

5.2.4 Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities

The Group classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing the assets and the asset’s
contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost {AC}

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in
order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value

of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss account.

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose objective is to hold financial assets
in order to collect contractual cash flows.

«  [fthose sales are infrequent {even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both individually and in aggregate
(even if frequent).

s If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale approximate the collection of
the remaining contractual cash flow

¢ Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVTOCH
A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair

value of financial assets is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

recognised in Profit and loss account.
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5.3 Financial assets and liabilities
5.3.1 Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit
losses, through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross carrying
amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus
the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount
of a financiai asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance,

5.3.2 Financial assets held for trading

The Group classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased or issued primarily for short-term
profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for
which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking. Held for trading assets and liabilities are recorded
and measured in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Financial assets measured at FVOCI - Loans

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other comprehensive income, and on
derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or losses are recycled to profit and loss statement. Interest income on
such instrument is recognised in profit and loss statement using EIR method.

5.3.3 Investment in equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or loss, unless the management has
elected to irrevocably classify some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at FVTOCL Such classification is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as
permitted under Ind AS 27 {Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements). The investment in other group companies are
carried at cost less provision for impairment. (subsidiaries, associates, and other group companies).

5.3.4 Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees, and derivative
financial liabilities.

5.3.5 Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts, interest rate swaps and forward
commodity contracts, to hedge its foreign currency risks, interest rate risks and commodity price risks, respectively. Such
derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive
and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative.
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5.3.5

Derivative financial instruments (continued)
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement (continued)

Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except for the
effective portion of cash flow hedges, which is recognised in OCl and later reclassified to profit or loss when the hedge
item affects profit or loss or treated as basis adjustment if a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the
recognition of a non-financial asset or non-financial liahility.

The Group issues non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices over
the period of the debenture. Group enters into derivative contracts to effectively mitigate the risk on such exposure by
either minimising the loss or earn a minimurm committed income {say for example purchased call and put options} with
a wide range of strike prices. This risk mitigation plan has been approved by the risk committee.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair value and the resulting gain
or toss is recognised in profit or loss immediately.

Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract with
the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a standalone derivative An
embedded derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be
modified according to a specified interest rate, foreign exchange rate, or other variable, provided that, in the case of a
non-financial variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract.

Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related {0 those of the host contracts and the host contracts are
not held for trading or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) and Interest Rate Futures (IRF)

The Group enters inta interest rate derivative transactions i.e. Forward Rate Agreement (FRA) and Interest Rate Futures
(IRF} to hedge the interest rate risk arising out of highly probable forecasted future cash inflows,

A Forward Rate Agreement (“FRA”) is a forward contract to hedge the risk of movements in interest rates. In FRA
contract, Group fixes the yield on the government bond for the period tilt the maturity of the contract. The Group has
entered into FRA to hedge interest rate risk on forecasted premium receivable from already written policies at future
dates.

Forward Rate Agreement derivative contracis are over-the-counter {OTC} transactions, agreeing to buy netional value
of a debt security at a specified future date, at a price determined at the time of the contract with an objective to lock
in the price of an interest bearing security at a future date.

The Forward Rate Agreement (FRA)} contract is valued at the difference between the market value of underlying bond
at the spot reference yield taken from the SEBI approved rating agency and present value of contracted forward price
of underlying bond including present value of intermediate coupon inflows from valuation date till FRA contract
settlement date, at applicable INR-OIS rate curve.

Interest rate futures are standardized interest rate derivative contracts which are permitted by IRDAI to hedge risks on -
forecasted transactions. These are traded on a recognized stock exchange to buy or sell a notional security or any other
interest-bearing instrument or an index of such instruments or interest rates at a specified future date, at-a price
determined at the time of the contract.

The instrument is classified as FVTPL securities and the net gain on fair value change is recognized in the Statement of
Profit and Loss.

Derivatives Instruments are initially recognized at fair value at the date -
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end of each repo A
accounting. Hedge effectiveness is ascertained at the inception of thh
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5.3.5 Derivative financial instruments {continued)

At the inception of the hedge, the Company documents the relationship between the hedging instrument and the
hedged item, the risk management objective, strategy for undertaking the hedge and the methods used to assess the
hedge effectiveness. Hedge effectiveness is the degree to which changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedged
item that are attributable to a hedged risk are offset by changes in the fair value or cash flows of the hedging instrument.
Hedge effectiveness is ascertained at the time of inception of the hedge and periodically thereafter at Balance Sheet
date.

The portion of fair value gain/loss on the IRD that is determined to be an effective hedge is recognized directly in
appropriate account i.e. ‘Fair value gainfloss on derivatives’ under the head Other Comprehensive Income and
accumulated under the head of Cash Flow Hedge Reserve in the Balance Sheet and the portion of IRD fair value gain/loss
that gets determined as ineffective hedge or ineffective portion of effective hedge, basis the hedge effectiveness
assessment is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The accumulated gains or losses that were recognised directly in the Hedge Reserve are reclassified into Statement of
Profit and Loss, in the same period during which the income from hedged forecasted cash flows affect the Statement of
Profit and Loss (such as in the periods that income on the investments acquired from underlying forecasted cashflow is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss). In the event that all or any portion of loss or gain, recognised directly in
the Hedge Reserve is not expected to be recovered in future periods, the amount that is not expected to be recovered
is reclassified to the Statement of Profit and Loss. Gains or losses arising from hedge ineffectiveness, if any, are
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Costs associated with derivative contracts are considered as at a point in
time cost.

5.3.6 Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued, and other borrowed funds are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the
instrument.

The Group has issued certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked to performance of specified indices
over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded derivative which is fair valued at a
reporting date. The resultant ‘net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. The debt component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to
maturity basis.

5.3.7 Financial assets and financial fiabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have been either
designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured at fair value under ind
AS 109. Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria
are met. Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

+ The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise from
measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on a different basis; Or

s The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed, and their performance evaluated on
a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment strategy; Or

+  The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not significantly modify the cash
flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar
instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value are
recorded in profit and loss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes
in the Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCl and do
not get recvcled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in
interest income or finance cost, respectively, using the EIR, taking intount/ premium and qualifying
transaction costs being an integral part of instrument. Interest earn\ Sasebs 0 RIly required to be measureg
at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate, ‘2‘

Q
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5.3.8 Financial guarantee

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Group to make specified payments to reimburse to holder for loss
that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt
instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate are initially measured at fair
value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the guarantee or the commitment. Subsequently they are
measured at higher of this amortised amount and the amount of loss allowance

5.3.9 Loan commitment

-Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Group is required to provide a loan with pre-specified
terms to the customer during the duration of commitment

5.3.10  Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Group are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument,

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group entity are recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Group's own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or joss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Group's own equity instruments.

5.3.11 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities
The Group does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the exceptional
circumstances in which the Group acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial Liabilities are never
reclassified.
5.3.12 Derecognition of financial Instruments
5.3.12.1 Derecognition of financial asset
Afinancial asset {or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or a part of a group of similar financial assets} is
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The Group also derecognises
the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for derecognition.
The Group has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either.
¢«  The Group has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or
* [t retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but assumed a contractual
obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under pass through
arrangement.
Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash
flows of a financial asset {the 'original asset'), but assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or
more entities {the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following conditions are met:
« The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventua! recipients unless it has collected equivalent
amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full recovery of the amount

lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

»  The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual recipients.

out material delay. In
%sh or cash equivalents
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eventual recipients,
A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
e  The Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

« The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset,

The Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its
entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional
restrictions on the transfer.

The Group also derecognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent
that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to
the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified
as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be POCI.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the modification does not result in
derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the Group records a modification gain
or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been recorded.

5.3.12.2 Derecognition of financial liabilities

5.4

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing financial liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition
of the original financial liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. The difference between the carrying value
of the original financial liability and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group records provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL"} on all loans, other debt financial assets measured
at amortised cost together with undrawn loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to
as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not subject to impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses, A credit loss is the difference between the cash flows that are due to
an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects to receive discounted at the original
effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects
to be paid in full but later than when contractually due.

Simplified approach

The Group follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application
of simplified approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition. The Group uses a provision matrix
to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Group chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by applying general approach to
measure ECL.

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in credit risk
(SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand, the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month
expected credit losses {(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence of a financial asset
being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring. ——
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5.5

5.6

5.7

Lifetime ECL reprasents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events
on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given default {LGD) {i.e., the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for
financial assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Group’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original effective
interest rate. The Group recognises an impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss in the reformatted consolidated
statement of profit and loss with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

If a financial instrument includes both a loan (i.e., financial asset) and an undrawn commitment (i.e. loan commitment)
component and the Group cannot separately identify the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the
financial asset component, the ECL on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss allowance for the
financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross carrying amount of the financial asset, the ECL have
been recognised as a provision. Also, for other loan commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance
has been recognised as a provision.

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Group seeks to use collateral, where possible. The collateral comes in
various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial
assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the balance
sheet, However, the fair value of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. Itis generally assessed, at a minimum, atinception
and re-assessed on a periodical basis. However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Group uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral. Other financial assets
which do not have readily determinable market values are valued using models.

Write-offs

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Group has no reasonable expectation of
recovery. Any subseguent recoveries are credited to impairment on financial instrument on statement of profit and loss.

Redeemable preference shares

Redeemable preference shares issued are classified as financial liabilities and are measured at fair value at inception and at
amortised cost subsequently.

Where the transaction price for the preference shares issued differs from the fair value, the difference is recognized in profit
or loss unless the difference is a deemed capital contribution from the Group, in which case, the said difference is recognized
in equity.

In accounting for these preference shares at amortised cost subsequent to initial recognition, interest expense based on the
effective interest rate is recognized in profit or loss. This effective interest rate is based on the initial measurement of the
preference shares {fair value) and the maturity amount. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss unless
the difference is due to a transaction with a related party, in which case, the same is recognized as a deemed distribution or
return of deemed capital contribution, as the case may be.
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5.8 Compulsory Convertibie Instruments

5.9

Compulsory Convertible Debentures/ Preferance shares are separated into liability and equity components based on the
terms of the contract. At the inception of the Compulsory Convertible Instruments, the following two elements will be
separated:

{a) a liability component arising from the interest payments; and
{b} an equity component representing the delivery of fixed number of equity shares in future,

On issuance of the Compuisory Convertible Instrument, the fair value of the liability portion is determined using a market
interest rate for an equivalent non convertible bonds. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis until
extinguished on conversion of the bonds. The remainder of the proceeds is attributable to the equity portion of the
compound instrument since it meets Ind AS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation, criteria for fixed to fixed classification.
The carrying amount of the equity component is not subsequently re-measured.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction in the principal {or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market
conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived
from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models.
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation is
required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates inciude considerations of liquidity and model inputs related
to items such as credit risk {(both own and counterparty), funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Determination of fair value

The Group measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction hetween market participants at
the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or
transfer the liability takes place either:

* [nthe principal market for the asset or liability, or

e In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal or
the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest. A fair value measurement of a
non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its
highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The
Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. In order
to show how fair values have been derived, financial instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation technigues,
as summarised below:

o level 1 financial instruments -Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Group has access to at the measurement date. The Group
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and liquidity of
the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes available on the balance
sheet date.

¢ Level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived
from directly or indirectly cbservable market datz available over the entire period of the instrument’s life,

. Level 3 financial instruments ~Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the

measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the

Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hiegarchy by re-assessing categorization (based

on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measureme end of each reporting period,
onred etmablop

The Group periodically reviews its valuation technigues including the 7§ and model calibrations.

the
N T
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5.10

Therefore, the Group applies various technigques to estimate the credit risk assoctated with its financial instruments
measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty
over the full lifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for non-
collateralised financial instruments.

The Group evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and reclassifies instruments
when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Leases
Group as a lessee

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. The Group applies a single
recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets,

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend .on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of [ease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments {e.g., changes to future payments resulting from a
change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short term lease

The Group has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease liahilities for short term leases of property that has lease
term of 12 months or less. The Group recognises lease payment associated with these leases as an expense on a straight-
line basis over |lease term.

Group as a lessor

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset is
classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms, Initial direct
costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period
in which they are earned.

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Group
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables at the Group’s net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the
net investment outstanding in respect of the lease.
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5.11

5.12

5.13

5.13.1

5.13.2

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year
by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts ta issue equity shares
were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax
attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving
basic earnings per share and welighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all
dilutive potential equity shares.

Fareign currency transactions

The consolidated financial statements are presented in indian Rupees which is also functional currency of the Group.
Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e., foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Retirement and other employee benefit
Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Group contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined contribution scheme.
The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity

The Group’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Group’s net obligation in respect of the gratuity benefit scheme
is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the
current and prior periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if
any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial
valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an insurance company
approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority {IRDA).

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in net
interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained
earnings through OCI in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.
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5.13.3 Compensated Absences

5.14

5.15

The eligible employees of the Group are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual leave entitlement to
subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Group recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding
liabkility on such non-vesting accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of
providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are granted by the ultimate parent Group. These are measured by
reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at the grant date. These includes Stock Appreciation Rights (“SAR”s)
where the right to receive the difference between the SAR price and the market price of equity shares of the ultimate parent
Group on the date of exercise, either by way of cash or issuance of equity shares of the ultimate parent Group, is at the
discretion of the ultimate parent Group. These are classified as equity settled share based transaction.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed over the vesting period,
based on the Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At
the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its estimate of the humber of equity instruments expected to vest. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimate, with a corresponding adjustment to the "ESOP reserve’. in cases where the share options granted vest
in instalments aver the vesting period, the Group treats each instalment as a separate grant, because each instalment has a
different vesting period, and hence the fair value of each instalment differs.

Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs) / Stock Appreciation Rights {SARs)

The Holding Company {Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL"}) has Employee Stock Option Plans and Stock
Appreciation Rights in force. Based on such schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares
of EFSLthat would vest in a graded manner to company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged
the fair value of such stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee
cost.

Property, plant and equipment and right ~ of - use assets

Property, Plant and Equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day—to—day servicing, less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation
period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment are recognised in the carrying amount thereof when
those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. :

Capital work in progress is stated at cost, net of accumulated impairment loss, if any. .

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and properties under construction}
less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the
asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided up to
the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Group has evaluated the useful lives of the respective
fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation, The estimated useful
lives of the fixed assets are as follows:
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5.15 Property, plant and equipment and right — of — use assets {continued)

Estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated Useful Life
Building {Other than Factory Building) 60 years
Plant and equipments 15 years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Vehicles 8 years
Office equipments 5 years
Computers - Servers and networks 6 years
Computers - End user devices, such as desktops, laptops, etc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those components which have been separately
recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Land and buildings are subsequently shown at fair value based on periadic valuations by external independent valuers, less
subsequent depreciation for buildings. Valuations will be carried out on a regular basis, unless the management consider it
appropriate to have an earlier revalvation, such that the carrying amount of property does not differ materially from that
which would be determined using fair values at the end of the reporting period. Any accumulated depreciation at the date
of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset, and the net amount is restated to the revalued
amount of the asset.

Subsequent measurement of land and building under revaluation model

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land and buildings are credited to other comprehensive income
and shown as a revaluation reserve in shareholders’ equity. An exception is a gain on revaluation that reverses a revaluation
decrease (impairment} on the same asset previously recognised as an expense. Decreases that offset previous increases of
the same asset are charged in other comprehensive income and debited against the revaluation reserve directly in equity;
all other decreases are charged to profit or loss. Each year the difference between depreciation based on the revalued
carrying amount of the asset charged to profit or loss and depreciation based on the asset’s original cost is transferred from
the revaluation reserve to retained earnings.

Right-of-use assets are presented together with property and equipment in the statement of financial position. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upen disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those components which have been separately
recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement
of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial
vear end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.
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5.16

5.17

5.18
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5.19.1

5.19.2

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.

Intangibles such as software are amortised over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.
Intangible assets under development are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets.
Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired based on
internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such
recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment
loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is reflected at the recoverable
amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Group will be regquired to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

if the effect of the time value of moaney is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows
to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
1o settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent [iabilities are
also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group. Claims
against the Group, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as contingent
liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition of income that may
never he realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent
asset and is recognised.

Income tax expenses:
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.
Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from ‘profit before tax’ as reported in
the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
iterns that are never taxable or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temperary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilised.
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5.19.2 Deferred tax {continued):

5.19.3

5.20

521

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax
credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary difference, unused tax loss or unused
tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the pericd
of reversal of deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss ¢an be carried forward or back. When this is
not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable that:

s the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible temporary difference
or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or
s tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have heen enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liahilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive inceme or directly in equity respectively.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three maonths or less.

Investment property

Properties, including those under construction, held to earn rentals and/or capital appreciation are classified as investment
property and are measured and reported at cost, including transaction costs.

Depreciation is recognised using written down value method so as to write off the cost of the investment property less thefr
residual values over their useful lives specified in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 or in the case of assets where the
useful life was determined by technical evaluation, over the useful fife so determined. Depreciation method is reviewed at
each financial year end to reflect the expected pattern of consumption of the future benefits embodied in the investment
properiy. The estimated useful life and residual values are also reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any
change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use
and no future economic benefits are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of property is
recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the same period.
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6.1

Significant accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described in note 5, the management is required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are brased on historical experience and other factors that are
considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, orin the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the consolidated financial statements.

a. Business model assessment :

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI}
and the business model test. The Group determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups of financial
assets are managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all-
relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks
that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.
The Group monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand
the quantum, the reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which
the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change
in business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

a. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An
asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit
risk of an asset has significantly increased the Group takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

b. Consaolidation of structured entities

Astructured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not the dominant factor in deciding
who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are
directed by means of contractual arrangements. In the context of the Group, structured entities comprise securitisation trusts
in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative investment funds / schemes thereof. The Group
consolidates the structured entities that it controls. When making this judgement, the Group also considers voting and
similar rights available to itself and other parties, who may limit the Group's ability to control, including rights to appoint,
reassign or remove members of the structured entity’s key management personne! who have the ability to direct the
relevant activities, the exposure to variability of returns and whether the Group has the ability to use its power to affect the
amaount of the Group’s returns i.e. the variability of returns in relation to the total returns of the investee entity.

c. Determining lease term for lease contracts with renewal and termination option

The Group determines the [ease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option
to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if
it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Group applies judgement in
evaluating whether it is reasonably certain, whether or not, to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commencement date, the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a_significant event or change in circumstances
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6.2  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, as described below. The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the consolidated financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability
in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current
market conditions {i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another
valuation technique. When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot
be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of
valuation models, The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not
feasible, estimation is required in establishing fair values.

For Investments made into Security receipts {SRs), Group uses discounted cash flow model, given that the SRs are less
liquid instruments. Expected cash flow levels including timing of cash flows are estimated by using guantitative and
qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including default rates, nature and value of
collaterals, manner of resoluticn and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are based on models, Judgements
and estimates are applied, which include considerations of liquidity, credit risk {(both own and counterparty), funding
value adjustments, correlation and volatility.

b. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires judgement, in particular, the
estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and collateral values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes
in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Group’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions regarding the choice of
variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements
and estimates include:

. PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.
. The Group’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and so allowances for
financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and the qualitative assessment.

. The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL s assessed on a collective basis.
. Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

. Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

. Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to derive the
economic inputs into the ECL models.

It is Group’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when necessary.
c. Effective interest rate method

The Group's £EIR methodology, as explained in Note 5, recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural life of loans given / taken and
recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle.

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life-cycle of the
instruments, as well expected changes in fee income/expense that parts of the instrument.

e TERTS
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6.2 Keysources of estimation uncertainty {Continued)

d.

Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses with respect to certain subsidiaries where
the Group believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the estimated future taxable
income which in turn is based on approved business plans and budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward
to the years in which the Group expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate ('IBR’) to measure lease liabilities. Incremental borrowing rate is the rate of interest that the Group would have
to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value 1o the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
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7. Cash and cash equivalents

Particulars “-March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Cash in hand e 0.0l -
Balances with banks PRy
- in current accounts e ':8,803.90° 1,178.07
- in fixed deposits with originat maturity less than 3 months #41,400.86 ¢ L 111.15
Total 010,204,775 1,289.22
8. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Particulars :i‘March'31;2024  March 31, 2023
Fixed deposits at amortised cost {refer Note 1 below) e

2,512.49 2,430.22

Other bank balances {refer Note 2 below) 28.73
Total 2,458.95
Note 1:

o Pledged fixed deposit aggregating to T 1,944.69 million (previous year ¥ 1,502.65 million) with bank for securing credit facilities,
obtaining bank guarantees, securitisation/ assignment under partial credit guarantee scheme.

« Pledged fixed deposit aggregating to ¥ 63.98 million (previous year ¥ 4 million) with exchange and banks to meet margin
requirement.

# Pledged fixed deposit aggregating to T 81.89 million (previous year £ 65.84 million) with VAT, Sales Tax and Custom autharities.

» Pledged fixed deposit aggregating to ¥ Nil million (previous year ¥ 13.09 million} with agriculture produce market committee for
obtaining Mandi license.

Note 2:
e Bank Balance aggregating to ¥ 440.54 million (Previous year: ¥ 28.73 million} have been held in Escrow account is charged against
debt securities
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9. Derivative financial instruments

Notional amount Fair value of asset

Notional amount Fair value of

March 31, 2024 (units) @ (units} liability (%)
{i) Commodity linked derivatives
Futures 27,000 2.32 - -
Less: amounts offset {refer note 9.A}) - (2.32) - -
_ﬁﬂhterest rate derivatives o
Interest rate swaps 17,750 91.28 7,800 21.98
Interest rate futures - - 4,33,46,000 8.02
Less: amounts offset (refer note 8.A) - - - (8.02)
Subtotal (i) 91.28 21.98
{iii) Index linked derivatives ) i
index Futures 1,76,580 15.93 . A7,895 340
Qptions purchased o 15,83,110 312.57 - -
Options sold {written) T - - 8,38,915 249.79
Less: amounts offset {refer note S.A) - {15.93) o - (3.40)
Subtotal {iii) - 31257 249.79
{iv) Embedded deivatives o o
In market linked dehentures - 299.64 - 652.91
Subtotal (iv) 299.64 652.91
(v) Equity linked derivatives
Stock Futures 1,25,79,286 139.06 62,69,122 34.29
Options 93,26,378 327.50 __93,26,753 23115
Less: amounts offset {refer note 9.A} o - {139.06) - {34.29)
Subtotal (v) 327.90 231.15
Total 1,031.38 1,155.83
March 31, 2023 Notional.amount Fair value of asset Notional.amount F?ir \..'filue of
{units) {Z) {units) liability (¥}
(i} Currency derivatives
Currency Futures 10,593,000 89.97 . -
Less: amounts offset (refer note 9.A) (89.97) -

Subtotal (i)

fii) Index linked derivatives

Index Futures

Options purchased

Options sold (written)

Less: amounts offset {refer note 9.A)

Subtatal i)

{iii) Equity linked derivatives

Stock Futures

Less: amounts offset (refer note 9.A)

Subtotal {ii}

Total

Note:

Notional amount in the above tables refer to number of underlying equity shares in case of stock futures and options, number of underlying
index units in case of index-linked derivatives, number of underlying currency units in case of currency derivatives, number of underlying
government securities / bands in case of interest rate future, amount of notional currency in case of interest rate swaps.
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9.A Offsetting

The tables below summarise the financial assets and Habilities subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting and similar agreemsents, as well as financial collateral
received to mitigate credit exposures for these financial assets, and whether offset is achieved in the balance sheet:

March 31, 2024:

Financial assets subject to
offsetting

‘Offsetting recognised in balance ;7

Derivative Assets

Financial liabilities subject to
offsetting

‘i Liahilities not
: subject to nett

“ arrangements

netting potential -

Derivative Liabilities

March 31, 2023:

Offsetting recognised in balance Netting potential not recognised in balance Assets not Total Maximum
sheet sheet subject to netting  Assets  Exposure to Risk
arrangements
financial assets subject to - - - -
offsetting Gross asset Amount  Netasset Financial Collaterals Assets after Assets recognised Aecognised After
before offset  recognised assets paid consideration of on the balance inthe  consideration of
offset on the netting potential sheet balance netting
balance sheet potential
sheet
Derivative Assets 89.97 {89.97} - - - - - - -
Offsetting recognised in balance Netting petenttal not recognised in balance Liabilities not Totat Maximum

Financial liabilities subject to
offsetting

sheet sheet subject to netting Liabilities Exposure to Risk
arrangements
Gross Amount Net Financial Collaterals Liabilities after Liabilities Recognised After
Liabilities offset Liabilities Assets Paid consideration of recognised on inthe  consideration of
before recognised netting potential the balance sheet balance natting
offset on the sheet potential
balance
sheet

Derivative Liabilities
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10. Trade raceivables

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Trade receivables RO B

Receivables considered good - secured - - S -
Receivables considered good - unsecured T TSy 3siad
Eéégvggigs which have significant increase in creditisk o 210,65 652
Receivables - creditimpaired e - . - 385.83 362.75
Eross Receivables .:5,666.25 : 761.71
_A_llmr_lgg for expected credit losses - Receivables considered good - Unsecured =~~~ = s (A7) _ {o0.58)
Allowance for expected credit losses - Receivables which have significant i mcrease in credit risk Fe.80) {6.52)
Allowance for expected credit losses - Credit impaired - w1 {382.95) {362.75)
Total receivables net of provis?on "5,268.23 391.88
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10. Trade receivables {Continued)
10.1 Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at March 3%, 2024 Outstandmg for fol!owlng perwds from due date nf payment s
B B - oI Ctetal
Particulars : l.ess than 6 B months -1 year 1—2 years 2-3 years . More than.a LT
._mun_th_s IR . PRy TR years e
(il Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good- Gross L --5,230.20 - .o 39,57 b S bt e s 005 06097
(i} Undisputed Trade Receivables 5k-Gross Cosian e ot 0118 294 653 Too et WL 65
{iii) Undlisputed Trade Receivables - G784 e QL A3 e 38583
Gross receivabies {A) 5,238,084 . 40,86 4,26 :5,666.25
(|} Undlsputed Trade receivables — considered good-ECL 4.54) G f0UB3) e ¢(5.17)
(i} Undisputed T Trade Receivables — which have significant increase in credit risk-ECL Lilitmn it i (0,43) 0 (2.94) (D)
{iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired-ECL 2o4.86) o oo (L) e (1,33 o e 2 [376.56) 7 [382.95)
Total ECL provision an receivables (B) e i {9.50) i (1.17) [4.25) : +1{376.56) ' ~(398.02).
Total receivabies net of provision = (A}+{B) 5,228.54 139,69 - Ll (0,00} - 5,268.23
As at March 31, 2023 Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
! Total
Particulars Less than 6 6 months-1year 1-2 years 2-3years More than 3
months years
) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered gaod-Grass s - ... 39284
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have significant i increase in credit risk-Gross - - 6.52 - - B.52
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired-Gress I 1.52 - 4.86 1231 344.06 362,75
Gross receivables (A) N 393.96 - 1138 12.31 344.06 76171
(il Undisputed Trade receivables —considered goad-ECL [0.56) - - - 0.5 SET
(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables ~ which have significant increase increditriskCL - . (es3) - - (653
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables — credit impaired-ECL {1.52) - (4.86) {12.31} {344.06) (352 75)
Total ECL provision on receivables {8) . {2.08) - {11.38) {12.31) {344.08) {369.83)
Totzl receivables net of provision = {A]+(B) " 391.88 - - - - 391.88
There are no unbilled cr not due trade receivables as at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
10.2. Reconciliation of impairment allowance on trade receivables:
: Asat Asat
I
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Impairment allowance measured as per simplified approach
Impairment allowance - opening balance e 369.83 39297
Add/ {less}: asset orlglnated or acquired (net} e 28.19 [23.14)
Impairment ‘allowance - closing halance 398.02 369.83

Notes:

1) Mo trade or other receivables are due from directers or other officers of the company either severally or jointly with any other person
2) No trade or other receivables are due from firms ar private companies in which directors is partner, a director or a member.
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11,

Loans

1 Miarchi 31,2024 i Gl March 31, 2023
Particufars atFVTPL “i\ 7@t FVOCE - 7 Total “: - atamortised at FVEPL at FvoC! Total

o 3 : cost

Corporate and Retail Credit 2 BALRG TR 962,40 71 81,791,585 47,085.67 2,645.09 - 49,730.76
Total gross (A) 2,641.84 10:3,962.40 1 81,791.55 1 47,085.67 2,645.09 - 49,730.76
Less: Impairment loss allowance {12,693.87) (8,043.59)__" B . e (8,0:4;5‘9_)_
Total {Net} [A) 39,042.08 2,645.09 - 41,687.17
Collateral :
Seeured by tangible assets 29,241.43 A58 - 29,667.31
Secured by inventories, unlisted securities, - - . B
project receivables & other marketable
securities
Unsecured 17.844.24 2,219.21 - __20,063.45
Total gross (B) _47,085.67 2,645.09 - 49,730.76
Less: Impairment loss allowance '(1 693.87} (8,043.59] - - B iéjﬁ43.59)
Total {Net) (B} 39,042.08 2,645.09 - 43,637.17
Loans in India
Public sector i - ” - . -
Others ‘81.791)55°  47,085.67 2,645.0% - 49,730.76
Total gross (C) 47,085.67 2.645.09 - 49,730.76
Less: Impairment loss allowance (12,693.87)°  [8,043.59) - - {8,043.59)
Totat (Net} (C) (1) 39,042.08 2,645.09 - 41,687.17
Laans outside India - - - . -
Less: Impairment loss allowance - - . -
Total (Net) {C) (1t} R - - - -
Total {€) {1) and {C) (1) H069,097.68 ¢ 39,042.08 2,645.09 - 41,687.17




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)
{Currency: Indian rupees ir millions)

11. Leans {Continued)
11.1 Credit guality

The table below shows the credit guality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group's year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment
aflowances. Details of the Group's internal grading for stage classification are explained in Note 55.D.1 and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or
collective basis are set out in Note 55,01

Loans at amortised cost

Particulars Ep e sl As ot March 31, 2024 sk As at March 31, 2023

Lo Stagel ol Stage G Stage IE T Total Stage | Stage 1l Stage llI Total
Performing TN R -
Highgrade 58,2184 Tl 58,921.84 3547190 - - 3547190
Standard grade SR SENRT R 96T AR B g 3R T 1R - 3,420.74 - 342074
‘Non-Performing i
Impaired 17712,908.34 1:112,908.34 | - - 8,193.03 8,193.03
Total 58,921.84°1:::3,357.13 "1112,908.34 7 75,187.31 ¢ 35,471.90 3,420.74 8,193.03  47,085.67

Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL allowances for loans and advances to corporate and retail customers:

The following disclosure provides stage wise reconciliation of the Group's grass carrying amount and ECL alfowances for loans and advances to ¢orporates and retail customers. The
transfers of financial assets represents the impact of stage transfers upon the gross carrying amount and associated allowance for ECL. The net remeasurement of ECL arising from stage
transfers represents the increase or decrease due to these transfers.

The ‘New assets ariginated /repayments received {net)’ represent the gross carrying amount and associated allowance ECL impact from transactions within the Group's lending portfolio.

Gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL reconciliation ~ Loans

- Credit Impaired .
TStage B i

Particulars

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Assets originated due to consolidation
Transfers:
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)

Transfers to lifetime £Ct [Stage 2)

Transfers to lifetime ECL- Creditimpaired (Stage 3}
Remeasurement of ECL arising from transfer of stage (net}

Net new and further lending/(repayments) {including write-off}
and sale to ARC / AIF

Loans sold to assets reconstruction

Amounts written off

(;.’?2) :

Balance as at 31 March 2024 ©i5R,921.84 i S457.83 13,3573 Y00 305.64° 7112 90B.34 11,573.42

Gross carrying amount and corresponding ECL reconciliation — Loans

Non Credit Impaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage | Stage 11 Stage 1|

Particulars Gross Cartying  Allowance Gross Allowance Gross carrying Allowance  Gross carrying  Atlowance

Amount for ECL carrying for ECL Amount for ECL Amount for ECL

Amount

Balance as at 31 March 2022 33,243.65 302.25 5,440.81 475.71 3,133.05 2,542.82 41,822.51 3,320.78
Transfers: o
Transfers to 12 Month ECL (Stage 1)  (25308) 5443 _ (56124)  (2817) (16883 _ (26.31) (©8335) - _
Transfers to lifetime ECL {Stage 2} {820.78) {5.05) 906.13 18.29 {85.35) {13.24) - -
‘Transfers to lifetime ECL- Credit impaired [Stage 3) {319.33) [1.60) (388.07) {30.11) 707.40 3171 - -
Net re-measurement of ECL arising from transfer of stage - - {50.39) .. 3065 - 5264 - 3290
Loans sold to assets reconstruction - - - - (410.09) (28.56) (410.09) {28.56)
‘New assets originated / {repayments) received (net) 362243 - {1,971.78) {220.10) 5,035.65 4,950.53 6,686.30  4,730.43
Amounts written off {0.99) {0.08) {5.11} {3.07) (23_.5_!0] {8.81) {25.90) (11.96)

Balance as at 31 March 2023 35,471.50 299.61  3,420.74 243.20 8,193.03  7,500.78 47,085.67 _ 8,043.59
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12, Investments

-Amortised cost ThroughOCl - - “FVTPL - S AtCost - Total

March 31, 2024 T L e {Associates <
S . Do mOthersh oo

Equily instruments e . 2229607 10,069.61 . 3236568
Deb Securities o 75000 - ‘31,174.12 PR T TR
Preference Shares Lo L - UL BE3S3 Y T-E )
Security Receipt Cohoi 3976821 143230 - AL200.51 .
Warrant R N Y Cel o 16443
Units of AIF 7,646.47 .- R e
Mutual Fund 306562 = B,065.62
Others 280.82 6362
'!r“\ygfsmenzincompulsorycunvertihle instruments 106.63 1o 106,63
Total - 57,029.99 1 16,069.61 C01,17,974.61 ¢
[} Investments cutside India : R L [ R F | Bt
(i} Investment in India 5239,768.21 - 66,299.86 - 10,069.61 ~1,17,244.48
Iotal - 39,768.21 .- 067,029.99 - -10,069.61 ::1,17,974.61 "
Lass: Allowance for impairment i RS ARRALY L T (0,30) 2 (453.28)
Total oL 1,106.80 - 39,768.2 - 68,576.88 -- 10,069.51 ;- 1,17,521.41 -

Note: During the quarter ended March 31, 2024, ane of the subsidiary of the Group and EFSL, the ultimate holding company has agreed te discontinue risk
and reward agreement in respect of security receipts {SRs).

Amertised cost  Through OCI FVTPL At Cost Total

March 31, 2023 [Assaciates
& Others}

Equity instruments - - 4,103.26 6,045.51 10,148.77
Debt Securities - - 4,879.70 - 4,879.70
Preference Shares - - - 858.92 858.92
Security Receipt - - 2,155.73 - 2,155.73
Warrant - - - - -
Units of AIF - - 3,667.28 - 3,667.28
Mutual Fund - - 244.98 - 244.98
Others 502.37 - - 3.16 505.53
Investment in compulsory convertible instrumants 1,000.10 - - 6,600.00 7,600.10
Tatal _ 1,502.47 - 15,050.95 13,507.59 30,061.01
i) Investments outside India - - - - -
[#i} lovestment in India 1,502.47 - 15,050.95 13,507.59 30,061.01
Total 1,502.47 - 15,050.95 13,507.59 30,061.0
Less: Allowance for impairment - - {86.81) - {86.81}
Total 1,532.47 - 14,564.14 13,507.5% 9,974,20

12.1 Investments measured at amortised cost:

Credit quality of assets:

The table below shows the gross carrying ameunt of the Group's investments measured at amortised cost by credit risk, based on the Group’s internal
credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amount presented are gross of impairment allowances. Details of the Group’s internal grading
system and policies on whether ECL allowances are calculated on an individual or collective basis are set out in the notes to the consalidated financial

statements,
March 31, 2024
Lo GROSS o U Gress | o Gross i Gross,
Particulars r.ja_rryi_ng; canjy__ing o5 : t_'.amr[_ng S camfh)g;
Y (stage ) - 7 {Stage ) L. (Stage I} LG
Performing e T 3,106.80 T LT -
High grade ) : SR e e
Tou T NS
March 31, 2023
Gross Gross Gross
Particulars CArTying carrying carrying
amount amount amount
[Stage 1} (Stage If) [Stage 111}
Performing 1,502.47 - -
High grade - - ] *
Totat 1,502.47 . -
it} Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for invastments measured at amortised cost
March 31,2024 . ) March 31, 2023
Gross 12 months Gross 12 months
Particulars Carrying TECL 0 Carrying ECL
‘Amount @ - "allowance .°  Amount allewance
{Stage ) " -{Stagel) ‘i’ {Stage I} {Stage 1)
Gross carrying amount - opening balance e ) . - 1,502.47 L ~e s 212626 [5.67)
Assets acquired or recognised 1,306.80 - __1,502.47 -

Unwinding of discount {recognised in interest income) . o o
Changes to contractual cash flows due to modifications not resulting in derecognition ot
Assets derecognised or matured L o £1,502.47) - (2,126.26) 5.67

Closing balance ' 1,106.80 - 1,502.47 -
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13.

14.

15,

Other financial assets

Particulars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories o i 208,82 14.42
Deposits- others - ) : o 72.34
Rentaldeposits =~~~ “7.68 5.19
Margin placed with broker i 791,13 123
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 01,489,72 1,335,72
Others SLTT81.96 (.67
Total B - . 2,686.18 1,429.57
Current tax assets [net)

Particulars ~ o March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Advance income taxes {Net of provision for tax ) HEGI20623 2,232.13
Total RS, 208,23 2,232.13
Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Deferred tax assets wuiiMiarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for expected credit losses N LniiY106,51 £96.39
Unused tax losses / credits o 2,470.14 1,810.62
Employee benefits obligations 7822 2.26
Fair valuation of Financial Assets 3,104,60) (638.59)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets _ 111894 66} (508.12)
Adjustment of effective interest rate on Borrowings 2:0:{137,19) {47.85)
Special Reserve u/s 36{1){viii) AT -
Total 9 BB A2 1,314.71
Deferred tax liabilities i March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Provision for expected credit losses : _(116.32)
Employee benefits obligations _{e80)
Fair valuation of Financial Assets 3562
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets __12a20
Adjustenent. of effective interest rate on Borrowings 736
Special Reserve u/s 36{1){viii) 2.33

Total

43.59
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16. Investment property

Investment Property

Particulars Land Real Estate Total

as at March 31, 2022 - 137.43 4,577.60 4,715.03
Disposals - - (438.74) (438.74)
as at March 31, 2023 - 137.43 4,182.92 4,320.35
Additions 23S 114502 137337
Disposals o (36.93) (1,064.06} {(1,100.99)
as at March 31, 2024 - 328.85 4,263.88 4,592.73
Depreciation and amortisation: _ —

as at March 31, 2022 } - 1,176.02 1,176.02_
Impairment charge/ (reversals) for theyear - - -
Depreciation/amortisation for the year - - 11174 11174
Disposals o - I
as at March 31, 2023 S - 1,287.76 1,287.76
@a_iﬂrme_qtghﬁarge/ (reversals) for the year S - -
-aepreciation/amortisatio)r}uf_gf the year - 111.58 : 111.58
Addition / adjustments S - ae17s 26175
Disposals o - (402.21) {402.21)
asat March 31,2024 - 1,264.88 1,264.88
As_e_lll\_/iarch 31,2024 o 328.85 2,999.00 1 3,327.85
As at March 31, 2023 13743 2,895.17 3,032.60
Fair value of investment properties

Property March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Land L LB2743 1,327.43
Real estate property S 9,425.52 9,913.31
Total 10,752.95 11,240.74

Note:

During the current financial year, one of the subsidiary of the Group reclassified certain assets that were previously
categorized under Property, Plant and Equipment {PPE) to Investment Property. As a result of this reclassification,
assets with net block value of ¥ 206.09 miillion were transferred from PPE to Investment Property.
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17. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Property. plant and equipment

Intangible Assets

Plant and

rtcul d vif-

Particulars Bullding Land® Leasehold Plant and Machinery- Furniture an Vehieles Office Vessel{Boat) Computers Total PPE Right-af-use Grand Tatal Computer Goodwill Total Totak
{Flany* improvements  Equipment Flxtures equipment Asset (ROU) Software
Solar power

as at March 31, 2022 2,329.67 164.23 18.73 0.50 42,05 78.24 3.29 69,29 - 157.38 2,883.38 329.09 3,212.47 129.64 18.68 14832 3,360.79
Additions - - 212 - - 1.37 . 372 - 10.16 17.37 33.34 50.71 63.13 - 63.12 113.84
Disposals - - {0.03} - - {0.83) {141) {23.25) - {86.65] (112.19) {8,10) {120.29) {9.10) - 210 (129.38)
as at March 31, 2022 2,329.67 164.23 20,80 0.50 52.05 78.78 1.83 49.76 - 80.89 2,788.55 354.33 3,142.80 183.67 18,68 20%.35 2.345.25
Adjustment 0,96 0.96 0.95 0.96
Additions 1,767.43 4142 12,49 12.31 - 138,67 6.54 90.18 4.84 00173 2,275,61 73201 3,007.62 317.33 - 317.33 3,324.95
Disposals {288.18) - {2.95) - (1.97) {3.32) {2.32) {4.21) - {47.87) (350.82) {39.49) {390.31} - - - (390.31)
as at March 31, 2024 3,808.92 205.65 30.33 12.81 0,08 214.13 6.10 136.69 4.84 234.75 4,714.30 1,046.85 5,761.17 501.00 18.68 519.68 5,280.85
Dagraciation :
as at March 31, 2022 284.76 - 13.12 0.31 30.20 45.04 1.46 54.73 1258.29 567.91 214.65 782.56 115.60 18.68 134.28 916.84
Depreciationfamortisation for the year 181.19 - 339 0,03 4.14 791 .30 7.18 - 1064 215,78 30,98 246.76 71.65 - 7485 254.41
Disposals - - {0.05) - - {0.54) {o.e7) {22.59) - (BO.B7) (105.02) {0.39) {105.41} (5.90) - {5.90) (111.31)
as at March 31, 2023 465.95 - 16.46 0.34 43.34 52.41 1.79 39.32 59.06 G78.68 245,24 92391 117.35 18.68 136.03 1,059.94
Adjustment 255.44 9.76 in 5563 428 70.98 277 114.38 516.55 339.67 85622 139.02 139.02 995.24
Depreciation/amortisation for the year 131.08 - .04 1Loo 3.38 2482 0.08 6.39 0.35 33.92 203,06 41.24 25030 45.85 - 45.85 296.15
Disposals 407.53 - {1.96) - (1.47) {1.68) {D.5%) {2.28} - {30.95) 368.69 - 368.69 - - - 368.69
as at March 31, 2024 1,260.00 - 26.30 4,65 45.25 131.18 5.65 114.41 3.12 176,41 1,766.97 632.15 2,399.12 302.22 18.68 320,99 2,720.02
Het Baok Value

As at March 31, 2024 2,548.92 205.65 4.04 8.16 14.83 82.95 0.45 22.28 172 58.34 2,947.34 414.71 3,362.05 193.78 - 198.78 3,560.83

As at March 31, 2023 1,863.72 164.23 4.3 0.16 18.71 26.37 0.08 10.44 - 21.83 2,109.89 109.09 2,218.98 66.32 - 56.32 2,285.31

* Pledged against issuance of NCDOs and Corporate Guarantee.
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18. Capital Work in Progress {CWIP} and Intangible Assets Under Development

a. Capital Work in Progress {CWIP}

: CW[P

Description of assets

'.'Add:t:on i _Caputallsatmn'f"

CWIP
Total

CWIP
Description of assets As at . e As at
01-Apr-2022 Addition Capitalisation 01-Apr-2023
CWIP - - - -

Total - - - -

CWIP ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

‘Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for aperiodof i
Particulars ik : yre than

Project in progress
Total

As at 31 March 2023

Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for a period of
Particulars More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years
years
Project in progress - - - - -
Total - - - - -

b Intangible assets under development aging schedule

As at 31 March 2024

i Amount in lntanglble Assets Under Development for a permd of L

Particulars

Project in progress
Total

As at 31 March 2023

Amount in Intangible Assets Under Development for a period of

Particulars More than 3 Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 Years 2-3 years
years
Project in pragress 12.40 - - - 12.40
Total 12.40 - - - 12.40

c There are no Intangible Assets Under Development, whose completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost compared to its
original plan.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued}

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions}

19, Other non-financial assets

Particulars - March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Input tax credit L2 329.84
Prepaid oxpenses — L Imsgr T Tas%
Vender Advances N -'53.36 49,46
Advancas ta amployees T SRR -
Deposits et et EBBE e 1883
Others o, . - 38983 29,87
Total o1, 330,89 47815
20. Trade Payables
Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Total sutstanding duses of micro enterprises and srall enterprises {MSME) S AT 847
Total outstanding dues to creditors other than micro eaterprises and small enterprises 5 10,238 55 ¢ 39341
Total 1024887 401.88

20.A Details of dues to micro and small enterprises
Trade Payables includes ¥ 10.27 million (Previous Year ¥ 8.47 million) payable to "Suppliers” registered under the Micra, Small and
Medium Enterprises Develepment Act, 2006. Interest paid by the Groug during the year to *Suppliers” registered under this Actis 7
NIL million (Previous year: T NIL millian). The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Group to its inquiries with
suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

20.B  Trade Payables ageing schedute

As at March 31, 2024 O ding for following periads from due date of payment
Unbiiled Netdue Llessthanl  1-2years  2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Particulars
year Years
(i MSME 0.24 - 10.03 - - -
(i) Others 114.06 - 10,684.25 18.29 3.86 17.99
Total 114.3¢ - 10,694.28 18.29 3.96 17.9% 10,248.82
As at March 31, 2023 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
. Unbilled Notdue Lessthanl i-Zyears  2-3Years Mere than 3 Total
Particulars
year years
I)MSME___ = P : 8.47
(i) Others 22,53 - 365.28 2.80 0.74 2,26 393.41
Total 22.83 - 373.45 2.60 0.74 226 401.88

21, Debt securitles
Particulars “March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
At amortised cost e
Secured

71,22841 21,789.44

Non-convertible red ble debentures

Unsecured _ i

‘Non-convertible red ble dehentures 11,524.75 11,378.02
Commercial Paper . wi 11,795.58 6,898.83
Total (refer Note below) SR 1 00,548.75 40,067.29
Debt Securities in Indfa 000 1,00,548.75 40,067.29
Debt Securities outside India R L -
Total :1,00,548.75 . 40,067.29

Note:
For secured debt, the Group has previded colfateral in the nature of Pari Passu charge of immavable property, receivable from
financing business, securities held for trading, investments, property {excluding intangible assets) and other assets.

Debt Securities 33 at March 31, 2024

Maturities <1 ¥ears 1.3 Years >3 Years ..o Total oo
Rate of Interest o orasmiie i T e e
8.00 - 8.95% L e 3,40696 1 3,381.29 0 : 6,788.25
9.00-9.95% 12,245.15 6,978,000 U STA5L09 o 37,074.24
10.00 - 10.99% 71,526,990 4,028.14 - 6,320,030 1,875.17
11.00-15.00% Hoen 0] FOFMAL G L0273 S 2,734.58 ¢
16.00 - 18.00% 235 25FA3D o oanol U R EGAET
Zero Coupon Debentures 24382 o 24362
Provision for redemption premium on NCD - G T T e L e T L
Various {benchmark linked) 5,061.59 32,3552 00765780 . 4507461
Accrued Interest and iR SLS62AB . e et ), SELTR
Tatal” 20,661.78 - 51,04B.05 . 26,237.38 - 97,947.2%
* Compulsory Convertible Debentires amounting 1o T 2601.53 millon not considered for matarity pattern,

Debt Securitles as at March 31, 2023

Maturities <1Years 1-3Years >3 Years Totat

Rate of Interest

8.0G-8.99% 1,070.00 8§15.12 - 1,885.12
9400-9.99% 5939.74  4,756.17 6,295.83 16,991.84
10.00 - 10.95% - 5,144.18 7,833.17 12,982.35
11.00 - 15.00% - - - -
16.00 - 18.00% o - - -
Zero Coupon Debentures - - - -
Varicus {benchmark Iinked) 1,974.40 3,350.05 2,106.15 7,470.60 i
Accrued Interest and EiR - - - 737.38

Total 8,984.34  14,105.52 16,240.25 40,067.29
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22, Borrowings {other than debt securities)

Particulars " March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Atamortised cost e it o
Secured e — —
Termtoans R . ;

_:FromBanks s — 12,783.69

__-National Housing Bank -1,096.53

__-Financial Institutions _ e L1 13,782.88 T
{Secured by charge on receivable, cash and cash equivalents, immovable property f Fixed Assets, - -

investments, other assets from financing business and corporate guarantee from group °
company] |

Bank Ovérdraﬂ
[Secured by charge on receivable from financing business and fized deposit]
Bank overdraft is in nature of Committed Cash Lredit Lines repayatle on demand.

Working Capital dernand loan (WCDL) LS 000,01 0 -
[Secured by charge on receivable from financing business] U

Tri party REPO +:39,799.66 -
[Secured by pledge of government securities] SRR

Unsecured .

Loan and advances fromn related parties
{Interest rate 11.00% to 14.50%) (£1.00% to 14.50%)

©.31,854.89 18,783.48

TTRGISD0L. 2675044

Borrowings in India
Borrowings putside India . .. et EE ;
Total S0 75,695,02 ¢ 28,750.44

7569502 28,750.44

Following is the repayment terms of term loans:

Term loans from Banks - Secured as at 31 March 2024

Maturities “oel Years | 01-3 Years Do >3 Years 0 Total
Rate of interest . e S e SRR

7.00- 7.99% R

8.00 - 8.99% ST

9.00 - 5.99% 136243 0o 6,560
10,08 - 10.99% o = 1,420.50 o0 6,198.23
11,00 - 11.99% e .

12.00- 12.99% -

14.00 - 14.99% e . - : -

Accrued Interest and EIR e B R STt 0 i DR

Total 891385 . 5110.00 2,782.893 - 16,566.58
Term loans from Banks - Secured as at 31 March 2023

Maturities <1Years  1-3Years >3 Years Total
Rateofimterest o
700-79%% o as100 - - 451.00
800-899% o 554.10 547.25 187.50 1,288.85
8.00-899% o 1p3Ba88 2,526.04 993.53 535845
10,00 - 16.59% R 2,08L78 - - 2,081.78
Accrued Interest and EIR e - - - {130.17)
Total Y 493576 3,073.29 1,181.03 9,049.91
Term loans fram Others - Secured as at 31 March 2024 (NHB)

Maturities .<1Years ‘1-3Years ‘.o >3 Years - - Total
Rate of Interest I A e R R R TIRE
2.00-499% I O TS
5.00-5.99% o At e DA TR
6.00- 6.99% 315467 [ 6890 - 7351 - ' 297.08
7.00-7.59% . o A L Seiar i HEN
8.00- B.89% 47.67 . enie e ©.711045
9.00- 9.99% o _ 119,64 23928 . U1330.08 . 689.00
Total e 321.98 - 370.96 403,58 .0 . 1,096.53
Term loans from Others - Secured as at 31 March 2023 {NHB)

Maturities <1 Years 1-3 Years >3 Years Total
Rate of Iaterest ) . o L o
4.00-4.95% 158.04 15732 - 31636
5.00-5.99% - e -
5.00-6.99% e , 580 38S - 96
700-799% o R - - -
8.00-899% o o 132.78 255.35 202.91 591.04
5.00-9.99% - - -

Total e 7 C T g7E 416w 202.91 917.05
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23,

24,

24.A

Deposits (at amortised cost}

bnsecured

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Inter-cozperate deposits
Repayable on demand {Interest rate 6,55% p.a.) {PY 6.55% p.a.}

Interest accrued - inter-corporate deposits

Total

Con1248

4.52

©o i 16.98

T_nter—curparate deposits in India

Inter-corporate deposits outside India

Total

Suberdinated Liabilities (at amortised cost)

s 16,98

1698

Unsecured

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Non- convertible subordinated debt

643.03

Preference share capital

L 1389205

427.10

Total

13,392.05

1,070.13

Subordinated liahifities in India

1,070.13

Subordinated liahilities cutside India

-++.'13,892.05

Total e

i13,892.05

1,070.13

Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

Terms and condition related to subordinated fiabilities:

Subordinated Liabilities — March 31, 2024

Maturities

<1 Years

>3 Years o

Rate of Interest

13 Years .~ o

“. Total

9.00-5.99%

U 62000

. 3,740.01

.'3,360.01 -

10.00-10.89%

270000 o

'5,847.25

11.00-11.99%

‘3,147.25 -

14.00 - 14.99%

B TE800 U

Cl003,788.00

Zero Coupon Debentures

Accrued Interest and EIR

7 896,79

7,108.00 - -

©13,892.05

Subordinated Liabifities — March 31, 2023

Maturities

1-3 Years

Rate of Interest

9.00-9.59%
10.00- 10.98%

481.91

1£.00-11.95%

150.00

14.00- 14.95%

Zero Coupon Debentures

Accrued Interest and EIR

Total

631.91
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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25. Other financial liabilities (at amortised cost unless otherwise specified)

Particulars ‘March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Book overdraft S 3 06 -
Payable to employees - 8431 5862
Lease liabilities 550,88 134.24
Payable on account of securitisation 13,454.44 " 10,817.12
Other Liabilities - 2,075.69 1,381.49
Total °16,169,28 ¢ 12,391.47

26. Current tax liabilities (net)

Particulars

Provision for taxation {Net of advance tax)

{March'31,2024 March 31, 2023
121025 33.44

Total 33.44
27. Provisions
Particulars 4 March 31, 2023
Pravision for employee benefits :
Gratuity 35.77
Compensated leave absences L. 0000336 1095
Provision for expenses -
Others 11.70
Total 58.42

28. Other non-financial liahilities

Particulars

Statutory liabilities 67.27
Income received in advance 23.06
Others 45,19
Total 135.52
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Notes to the consclidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 (Continued)

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

29, Equity share capital

. March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars —
No of shares oo Amount 0 No. of shares Amount

Authorised: = ORISR S _
Equity Shares of X 100 each 22,85,00,000 22,850.00 22,8500,000 22,850.00
Preference shares of 100 each . /5,00,00,000 '175,000.00 5,00,00,000 5,000.00

- 27,85,00,000 - 27,850.00 __ 27,85,00,000 27,850.00
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up: L B : o
Equity Shares of X100each . :7.9,56,67,388 9 566 75 7,56,67,388 7,566.75
:l'_cltal cuid 9, 56,67,388 1 i009,566,75 7,56,67,388 7,566.75

29.A Reconciliation of number of shares

20 Miareh 31 2024 S

March 33, 2023

Particulars No of shares No. of shares Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1.ii°7,56,67,388 5,56,67,388 5,566.75
Additional equity shares issued during the year 1402,00,00,000 50 2,00,00,000 2,600.00
Outstanding at the end of the year 778,56,67,388 9 566.75 7,56,67,388 7,566.75

Notes:

During the financial year 2023-24 the Company has issued 2,00,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of X 100 each aggregating to

% 2,000 millions to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

29.B Terms/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of X 100/-. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per

share held.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity sharehalders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, if any, in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

23.C

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Particulars

“March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

29.D

"No ofshares i Z'-.% holding " No. of shares % holding

Holding company i Stk e

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL}* : -'”9,56,67,388.. i.";":100.00%" 7,56,67,388 100.00%
Total :9,56,67,388 ;- 160.00% - 7,56,67,388 100.00%
* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL
Details of shares held by promoters in the Company
As at March 31, 2024

-~ No. of Shares Change dunng ‘No. of shares at %of total shares % Change during
i Y: the end of the” :

Promoter name

. the year 3

: year .

i the year

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited*

=i 55,5_7,388 :

©2,00,00,000 -

-9,56,67,388

C100.00%

Total ~ 7,56,67,388

T 00,00,000

9,56,67,388

" 100.00%

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares

Change during No. of shares at %of total shares

atthe theyear  the end of the
Promoter name beginning of year
the year
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited* 55667388 2,0000,000  7,56,67,388 100.00%
Total 55667388 2,00,00,000 7,56,67,388 100.00%

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL
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29. Equity share capitat (Continued)
29.E Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

Particulars i March 31,2024 C March 31, 2023
No.ofshares - % holding - No. of shares % holding

__Edelweiss Financial Services Limited* R ©9,56,67,388 ©100.00% 7,56,67,388 100.00%

Total ++7.9,56,67,388 - 7100.00% - 7,56,67,388 100.00%

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL
29.F There are no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sale of shares / disinvestment.

30. Instruments entirely equity in nature

Shares {(“CCP5"} of face value of X 100/-)

. faiMarch 31,2024 Sy March 31, 2023
A. Particulars e L S T T
-~ No. of shares "::2 - Amount Na. of shares Amount
Compulsorily Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS) R : o
_ o . . R T e e T
(16,500,000 CCPS - 0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Preference "1»55n091_00f.3_ Lo | 1,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650.00

Total 16500000 1,650.00.  165,00,000 1,650.00

The entire CCPS issued by the company of T 1,650 millions is held by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

Reconciliation of number of CCPS

. -~ March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Particulars R A i
7 No. of shares 77 Amount ©5% No. of shares Amount
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year i0,65,00,000 £ 1 0,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650.00
Additional CCPS issued during the year Sl e
Qutstanding at the end of the year #11,65,00,000 v -1,650.00 ¢ 1,65,00,000 1,650.00

Terms of Compulsorily Convertible Prefarence Shares ("CCPS")

The Company has issued and alloted 65,00,000 0.01% CCPS aon March 9, 2021 convertible into Equity shares on March 8, 2026 at a ratio of
1.

The Company has issued and alloted 1,00,00,000 0.01% CCPS on March 20, 2021 convertible into Equity shares on March 19, 2026 at a
ratio of 1:1.

LT March 31,2024 0 March 31, 2023

B. Particulars S R e S e
“No. of shares "' "Amount "7  No. of shares Amount

Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD)
{80,00,600 CCD - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Debentures
{“CCD") of face value of T 1000/-}

. 8000000 - . 8,000.00 - -

Total o 80,000,000 0 -8,000,00 - -

The entire CCD issued by the company of ¥ 8,000 millions is held by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

Reconciliation of number of CCD

. pineral U Miarch 31, 2024 L March 31, 2023
Particulars T el i
= No. of shares i Amount . No. of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year R D T - -
‘Additional CCD issued during the year - 7780,00,000 1T 8,000,000
Outstanding at the end of the year I 80,600,000 -7 '8,000.00 - -

Terms of Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {("CCD"})

The Company has issued and allotted 80,00,000 0.01% CCDs on March 28, 2024 and CCDs will be converted into equity shares within
period not exceeding 10 years from the date of allotment.

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Amount Amount

Total of Instruments entirely equity in nature (A+B)
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31.

311

31.2

313

31.4

315

316

31.7

Other Equity

Particulars “"‘March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Capital redemption reserve ootz 11434
Capital Reserve o N CITEIEN183.59) (3,596.26)
Securities premium reserve o ST 5 4,269.44
Statutory Reserve under Section 45-IC of the Reserve Bank of india Act, 1934 154482
Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 607.55
Retained earnings o (10,284.48)
Deemed capital contribution - Equity 52.55
Debenture Redemption Reserve o 219.07
Revaluation Reserve through other comprehensive income R 864.32
Impairment reserve 32.27
Financial instruments through Other Comprehensive Income ol 5 (417.538) -
Total £1.(10,064,13). {6,176.38)

Capital redemption reserve

The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Capital Reserve
Capital reserve represents the gains of capital nature which is not freely available for distribution.

Securities premiunt reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited
purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

Statutory Reserve under Section 45-1C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934
Reserve created under 45-1C{1) in The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every
year as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before any dividend is declared.

Statutory Reserve under Section 29C of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

In terms of Section 29¢C of the National Housing Bank Act, 1987 every housing finance institution which is a company is required
to create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty percent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the
profit and loss account before any dividend is declared. Housing Finance Companies {(HFCs), are permitted to withdraw from the
said reserve fund, the excess amount credited {in excess of the statutory minimum of 20%)} in the previous years for any
business purposes subject to suitable disclosure in the balance sheet and in the case of HFCs which have transferred only the
statutory minimum in the previous years to selectively permit them to withdraw from the reserve fund only for the purpose of
provisioning for non-performing assets subject to the conditions that there is no debit balance in the profit and loss account and
that the reason for such withdrawal are stated explicitly in the balance sheet.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.

Deemed capita! contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contribution relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company
under its employee share option plan.
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31

31.8

319

31.10

31.11

Other Equity {Continued)

Debenture Redemption Reserve

The Companies Act 2013 requires companies that issue debentures to create a debenture redemption reserve frem annual
profits until such debentures are redeemed, Company being NBFS has to maintain Debenture Redemption reserve upto 25% of
the value of debentures issued through public issue. The amounts credited to the debenture redemption reserve may not be
utilised except to redeem debentures. On redemption of debentures, the amount may be transferred from debenture
redempticon reserve fo retained earnings.

Revaluation Reserve through other comprehensive income
Group has decided to change to revaluation model from cost model of accounting for a class of asset. Similarly, group entities
have also changed their existing model for Flats and building to align with the Group policy.

Impairment reserve

As per the RBI circular RBI/2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than
the provisioning required under IRACP (including standard asset provisioning}, NBFCs (CICs) shall appropriate the difference
from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘Impalrment Reserve’. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this
reserve without prior permission from the RBI.

Equity instruments through other comprehensive income

The Group has elected to recognise changes in the fair value of certain investments in financial instruments in other
comprehensive income. These changes are accumulated within the FYOCI within equity. The Group transfers amounts from
this reserve to retained earnings when the relevant financial instruments are derecognised.
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32. Interest Income

Particulars oo March 31, 2024 ¢ March 31, 2023
on financial assets measured at amortised cost R
Interest on loans Fo 5,133.76 5,101.04
Irterest income from Investments S 9 706 (4.26)
interest on fixed deposits with banks 11543
Other interest Income 91.45
on financial assets measured at fair value through prefit or loss
interest on loans 221.32
interest income from Investments 470.71
Total 5,99%.69

33. Dividend Income
Particulars

March 31, 2023

Dividend on Investment 4.12
Total 4.32
34, Fee and commissicon income
Particulars March 31, 2023
Advisory and other fees Income o e 51711
Total e 74933 ¢ 517.11
Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with custemers and its reconciliation to amounts reparted in statement
of profit and loss:
Particulars March 31, 2023
Service transferred at a point in time - - o . 20566
Service transferred over time 711.45
Total revenue from contract with custamers o o 517.11
35, Netgain / {loss) on fair value changes
Particulars March 31, 2023
Net gain/ (loss) an financial instruments at fair value through profit ar foss
On trading portfolio
_lovestment at FVTPL -
On investments and securities held for trading e 1,522.93
On trading of securities (net) = 27597
On Sale of debt instruments 0.10
On security receipts {4.65)
_ Derivatives at FVTPL et e et et
O derivatives financial instrument - 5017
Others . . .
Other financial instruments 309.33
Total Net gain/{loss} on fair value changes 1,505.84
Fair value changes
Realised 1,199.73
Unrealised 706.11
Total 1,905.84
36. Other operating income
Particulars s Nfargh 31,2024 ¢ March 31, 2023
Rental income i Ll 4068 355.39
Income from Training Centre 55.35 - =
Total -476.03 . 355.39

37. Otherincome

Particulars S : March 31, 2023
Profit / [foss} on sale of investments : : : . 83800
Interest on Income Tax Refund e
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment and tangible assets {net)
Miscellaneous income
Total
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38.

39.

40.

Finance costs {at amortised cost uniess otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31,2024 ° March 31, 2023
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities *4,605.19 - 422305
_Interest on debt secur‘itie‘s______w___u e w0 06,509.48 3,212.47

Interest on subordinated liabilities ' e 28379 265.35
WC')ther Interest Expense e e e SR E01,993.76 ,977‘43
Total S 1 13,392.23 8,678.30
Impairment on financial instruments
Particufars i Mtarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Onloans o L wn e i337.27 - {99s.07)
On investments 3 LT A {163.46) 51043
On trade receivables AR 66,09 ' 243.01
Total 239,90 {245.93)
Employee benefits expense
Particutars ~:March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Salaries and wages - - UIENENLY, 485,46 _950.83
Contribution to provident and otherfunds s -BB32 53.75
E;pense on Employee Stock Option ScheméﬁO_lf_)_a}qQ_S_AF_i (refer note below) 486 723
Staff welfare expenses ' - ‘__' o i 64,90 72.36
Gratuity Expenses 7 ) H 216417 9.3
Total 012,659,065 1 1,053.40
Notes:

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (“EFSL”) the holding Company has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that
would vest in a graded manner to Company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such
stock options, Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.
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41.

41.A

Other expenses

Particulars s iMarch 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Advertisement and business promotion BT  BE RN & W1 I 874
Auditors' remuneration {refer note 41.A) SRRty . )] 16.45
Commission and brokerage IR 39,37 4.08
Communication expenses el 4287 C 2707
'C_c")_n~1puter expé—ﬁses i 236.60
Contribution towards Corporate Social responsibility 5.72
Directors’ sitting fees 3.86
‘Dematerialisation charges 230
Electricity charges 4114
Insurance Z_wﬂ_i
Legal and professional fees o 679.29
Loan origination costs amortised 70.00
Management fees -
Office expenses e 95.33
Rates and taxes 216.37
Rent e 5.57
Repairs and maintenance 1417
Stamp duty 20.97
Security transaction tax ~ 5.07
Transportation and Freight Expenses 42.70
Housekeeping and security charges -
Miscellaneous expenses 78.42
Total 1,576.10

Auditors' remuneration:

Particulars i March 31,2004 March 31, 2023
Audit fees St 13.57
Tax Audit B o .
Limited Review 1.65
Certification 1.02
Reimbursement of expenses 0.21

Total

16.45
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42,

42.1

Income tax
The components of income tax expense recognised in profit or loss for the years ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023 are:

Particulars March 31,2024 . March 31, 2023
Current tax o Tames eass
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years w0 {15.33) 5.53
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences CU{2,371.26) 413.84
Deferred tax relating to unused tax losses and unused tax credits (including write-downs) (net) cier 1,187,489 -
Total tax expense T T T (1,067.01) 503.95
Total current tax B LRI 116,76 90.11
Total deferred tax e " (,183.77) 41384

Reconciliation of the total tax expense

The tax expense shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax expense that would apply i all profits had been charged at
India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the
years ended, as follows:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Profit / {Loss) before tax ) ] 40(2,012.86) (1,386.52)
Tax rate N . T A071% 25.17%
Income tax expense calculated based on above tax rate _ mui(819.41) (348.96)
Adjustment in respect of income tax of prioryears  ~~~~Laa /:+{15.33) o MELSE:
Write-down [ reversal of write down of deferred tax assets on unused tax credits and unused tax i 17.66 215.46
losses (net} BRI DO

Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period losses 960,74 805.71
Ef—fézfgf?étggnition of deferred tax asset on prior period_Eéé; - earlier not recognised ) G0 {150.22) : -
impact of tax rate change T ‘ R {1,396.30) (171"E)_
Others © 335,85 {2.30)

Tax expense recognised in profit or loss e nbe7e) 503.95
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43, Componeants of deferred tax
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the Balance sheet and changes recarded in the income tax expense:

. ‘Opening ' - Addition/Reduct Recognised in profit " Recognised in .. - g deferred’

':Others ° ° ’ Total Movement Closin

tax’ on account o or ] other’ tax
31 March 2024 ity) - of acquisition /T rehen: /{abi
tvestment

) 7 during the year - i e T i I e :
Provision for expected credit losses 723.93 431.63 (26.70) . - - 404.93 1132.86
Unused tax losses / credits 1810.60 ...8385.00 2274.55 - - 10659.55 2247015
_Employee benefits obligations 11.86 4852 28,12 0.39) - 76.25 88.11
Fair valuation of Financial Assets {581.63) {1415.50} {997.59) ) {0.04) - (2413.13) {2994.7¢6)
wP_{g?:Erty, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets {542.68) {343.76) (84.79) - - {438.55) {981.23)
Adjustment of effective interest rate on Borrowings {48.30) (91.38}) 6.02 - o - (85.37) {133.67)
Specizl Reserve u/fs 36{ L){viii} {106.66) 0.00 {5.84) - - (5.84) {112.50)
Total 1,271.12 7,014.50 1,183.77 (0.43) - 8,197.84 9,468.96

Opening Addition/Reducti Recognised in profit  Recagnised in Others Total Movement Closing deferred
deferred tax  on on account of or fess other tax
33-Mar-23 asset/(liability}  acquisition / comprehensive asset/[liability)
divestment income (OCI)
during the year —

Provision for expected credit fosses 952.10 - (264.17) - - {264.17% 727.93
Unused tax lesses / credits 1569.33 - 241.27 - - 241.27 1,810.60
Emgloyee benefifsmgilligaticns 13.28 o {2.08) 0.66 - (1.42} 11.86
Fair valuation of Financial Assets {125.40} - (456.39) - 0.16 {456.23) {581.63)
Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible assets {546.94} - 4.26 - - 426 {542.68)
Adjustment of effective interest rate ¢n Borrowings {117.21} - 68.91 - - 68.91 {48.30)
Special Reserve ufs 36{1}{viii) -101.02 - {5.64) - - {5.64) {106.66)

Total 1684.14 - (413.84) 0.68 0.16 {413.02) 1,271.12
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43. Components of deferred tax {Continued}
43.1. Details of temporary differences where deferred tax assets have not been recognised in the balance sheet

As at March 31, 2024
Financial Year 7 Deductsble temporary Vi
towhichthe i/ :

loss refates to

o _Unused_ t_axl_o_sses

-Unabsorb 'd_D_epl_'eciatio_n Unabsorhed !.angTerm caplta] - Business Loss/ Shart term o Total:

IR closs o ": capital loss | oy :
Expirvyear- I Amount Explryyear-_ “Amount - " ‘Expiryyear--:: -Amount: "
L : i - financial year R '_f_'nanma! year o1 LT fimanctal year U
2023-24 83.42 Not applicable _1_0_4.91 No expiry - - 194522 203132 2,050.13
2022-23 556.00 Not applicable 127.25  No expiry - - 253080 203031 . 2,657.85
202122 140,55 Notapplicable. 153.90  No expiry - - 1,788.99  2029-30 1,942.89
2020-21 9 632.05 Notapplicable - 1.82 Noexpiry 936,18 2028-29 2,488.00 2028-29 3,426.00
2019-20 1,693.36 Not applicable 2556 No expiry - - 138072 202728 _1,383.68
201819 - Not applicable 4,24 No expiry - - 588.75  2026-27 59299
2017-18 - Notapplicable 263  Noexpiry - - 439,31 2025-26 441.94
2016-17 - , - 4.80 __ No expiry - - 49641 202425 50121
2013-14 - - 0.74 _ No expiry - - - 0.74
_Total 12,105.38 403.25 936.18 11,658.00 12,997.43
As at March 31, 2023
Financial Year Deductible temporary Unused tax losses
to which the differences
loss relates to Amount Expiryyear-  Unabsorbed Depreciation  Unabsorbed Long Term capital  Business Loss/ Shart term Total
financial year loss capital loss
Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year- Amount Expiry year - Amoung
financial year financial year financial year
2022-23 856.00 Not Applicable 227 _ Mo Expiry_ - - 263634 _ 2030-31 2,638.61
2021-22 140.55 Not Applicable 153.90  NoExpiry - R 1,789.86 2025-30 1,943.76
2020-21 9,937.35 Nat Applicable 173 NoExpiry 93618 2028-29 247138 2028-29 3409.29
2019-20 __1,693.36 Nat Applicable 280 NoExpiry - - 1,380.17  2027-28 1,382.97
2018-19 - - 073 NoExpiry - - 2706 2026-27 27.79
2017-18 - - 071 NoExpiy - - 7450 2025-26 75.21
2016-17 - - 0.82  No Expiry - - 72.25 202425 73.07
2015-16 - - 0.12 No Expiry - - 222.25 2023-24 222.41
Total 12,627.26 163.08 936.18 8,673.85 9,773.11

44. Earnings per Share (EPS}

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 33 ~ “Earnings Per Share” prescribed by Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015, the computation of earnings per
share is set put below:

Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Profit /{loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent B R =i {558.78)  {2,015.10)
Weighted average number of shares T e L

- Number of equity sha shares outstanding at the beginning of the year o } ' 7,56,67,388 5,56,67,388
- Number of equity shares issued during the year S o o +'2,00,00,000  2,00,00,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of theyear L __ 1.8,56,67,388 7.56,67,388
Total number of CCPS outstanding at the end of the year o - 1,6500,000  1,6500,000
Total number of CCD outstandlng at the end of the year - 80,00,000 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (| (based on' the date of tssu_gis_ha_r_es] o +10,24,27,060 7,23,86,566
Weighted average number of dituted equity shares outstanding during theyear o ~-10,24,27,060 7,23,86,566
Adjusted net profit for diluted EPS o o - {559.78) (2,015.10)
Basic earnings per share (T) o o . o S (5.47) (27.84)

Diluted earnings per share (T} £547) (27.84)
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45, Segment information

Primary Segment {Business segment)

The Group’s business is organised and managerment reviews the parformance based on the business segments as mentioned below:

Segment Activities covered

Capital based business

Finaneing business Whalesale and retail financing

Capital intensive business includes Lending, investing and investment property

Treasury management

Interest income and trading in securities

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditure, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified with
individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic basis. Based on such ailocations, segment disclosures relating

ta revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Secondary Segment

Sinee the business operations of the Group are primarily concentrated in India, the Group is considered to operate only in the domestic

segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment

The following table gives information in terms of provisions of Accounting Standard on Segment Reporting (Ind AS 108)

Segment information Particulars

Year Ended

1 Segment Revenue*

‘March 31,2024 3 March 31, 2023

Capital based business ) 9,860.42
Financing business '5,354.60 -
Treasury management Do 7 648,59 99,21
Unallocated CITEE T G662 15,55
Total Income 18,399,231 ¢ 9,975.18
il Segment Results {Profit/{loss) before tax) : UL L
Capital based business 0 14,015.40) {1,127.61)
Financing business 184,29 -
Treasury management 232956 (379.07)
o Unallocated #{172.54) 13.85
Profit / {Loss} before taxation {1,679.08): {1,4592.83)
1il Segment Assets
Capital based business s A6,002.79 83,171.18
Financing business :1,11,920.80 -
Treasury management [58,31447.  678.17
Unallocated [i515,696.67 . 2,883.74
Total assets ©2,31,984.74 ¢ 86,732.09
IV Segment Liabilities P ; -
N Capital based business - 82,353.76 82,725.62
Einancing business 81,158.30 -
Treasury management 54,450,559 : 156.96
Unallocated . 524,42 69.60
Total liabilities 02,18, A87.08 ¢ 82,952.18

*Segment revenue includes share in profit/{loss) in associates,
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46. Transfer of financial assets

The following tables provide a summary of financial assets that have been transferred in such a way that part or all of the
transferred financial assets do not qualify for derecognition, together with the associated liabilities

Particulars “March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Securitisations Tt
Carrying amount of transferred assets (held as Collateral)

'15,828.02. 11,144.33

Carrying amount of associated liabilities B 15,389.60 10,832.69
‘Fair value of assets B ‘-.15','801'.54_8: “ 11:406.7§M
Fair value of associated liabilities 14,709,797 : 10,832.69

Net position at fair value SRRE01,091.81 0 574.07
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47,

Disclosure of interest in other entities

1 Details of non wholly subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests.

Place of Proportionof  Proportionof Profit/ {loss] allocated to non- contralling
incorparation ownership ownership interests
and principal  interests held interests held by
Name of subsidiary place of by nan- non-controlling &
husiness controlling  interests - Mar .
interests - Mar 2023 31-Mar-23
2024 :
Allium Finance Private Limited » India 11.72% _.26.24% .. 1029
Nido Home Finance Limited India 5.00% 5.00% 8.15
Ecap Equities Limited India 19.77% __0.00% s -
Edelcap Securities Limited India 19.77% 0.00% - -
Edelweiss Retail Finance Finance Limited India 18.38% . D.o0% -
Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund India 4.40% 0.00% -
Edeiweiss Value and Growth Fund india 3.95% 0.00% ’ -
India Credit Investment Fund Il india 0.00% 0.00% :* -
India Credit Investment Fund - 5 India 0.00% 0.00%

Summarised financtal information in respect of each of the Group's subsidiaries that have material non-controfling interests is set out below,
The summarised financial information below represents amounts before intra-group eliminations.

- . - . As at
Allium Finance Private Limited : 31-Mar-23
Financiaf assets :1,431.04 : 1,305.26
Non-financial assets CIR07 6.08
Financial liabilities 10,32 0.36
Non-financial liabilities (e 7 2.63
Equity attributable to owners of the company 11,265,747 965.03
Noan-controlling interest 3168.04 : 343.31
Particulars [ For.thg year ended For the year ended

i ::31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations -- 58.35
Total income 58.37
Total expenses {4.47)
Profit / {loss} before tax 62.84
Tax expense 26.14
Profit / {loss} for the year 36.70
Total camprehensive income / {loss) 36.70
Profit / {loss} for the year attributable to owners of the parent 2641
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests 10.29
Cash flows [used) / generated from operating activities - 352,79 (18.38)
Cash flows [used) / generated from investing activities 11,075.88 20.52
Cash flows [used) / generated from financing activities S o
Net cash inflowfoutflow) £:1,828.63 ° 214
. " o SomnhnioAsat As at
Nido Home Finance Limited 3n.Maras 31-Mar-23
Financial assets ~ i 36,875.65 ¢ 3731947
Non-financial assets ~ G738 54201
Financial liabilities 29,283.40 " ..29,763.68
Non-financial liabilities - 218,18 . 154.02
Equity attributable to owners of the company - 2 7,780.49 7,547.45
Nan-centrolling interest 11407.39 357.23
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47, Disclosure of interest in other entities (Continued)

particulars - Far t.i.u.a._yea'r aended  For the year ended
: : 31-Mar-24 31.Mar-23

Revenue from operations - 4,587.89 4,414.62
Total income - ,657.12 4,446,485
Total expenses i174,306,57 4,238,78
Profit / (loss) before tax » 260,55 . 208.07
Tax expense I - §7.50 47.44
Profit / {loss) for theyear 193,95 160.63
Total comprehensive income / (foss} o 192,49 _.1s2.99
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent 182,87 154.84
Profit / {loss] for the year attributable non-controlting interests e 8.15
Cash flows [used) / generated from operating activities (533.63)
Cash flows [used) / generated from investing activities {49.18)
Cash flows {used) / generated from financial activities {1,343.37)
Net cash inflow/{outflow) {1,926.18}
e Has As at

Ecap Eruities Limited R $1-Mar-23

Financial assets

47,445.90

Non-financial assets

:14,014.36

Financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities i -
Equity attributable to owners of the company 7,537.47 -
Non-controlting interest e < +1,B57.36 -

7 the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars | 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from aperations 14,386,277 -
Total income THi14,388.97 -
Total expenses 140018,523.80° -
Peofit / {loss) before tax U B65.6T -
Tax expense {334.22) -
Profit / {loss) for the year ,399.89 . -
Total comprehensive income / (loss) 1,399.66 - -
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent ©1,122.94 -
Peofit / {loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests 276,71 -
Cash flows {used} / generated from operating activities +/1,197.38 - -
Cash flows {used} / generated from investing activities ,684.59] -
Cash flows {used} / generated from financing activities _ CT6L62 -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) 274.01 -
Edelcap Securities Limited PR iy As at
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Financial assets " 5,432.48 -
Non-financial assets B ST 46914 -
Financial liabilities R N LIRER T
Non-financial liabilities o . .47.95 —
Equity attributable to owners of the company o 203,286,107 -
Non-controlling interest e SN 80977 - i ®

: ‘For the yearended  For the year ended
Particulars L S ward 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations 211 515,92 -
Total income 1,524.52 -
Total expenses 1,284.67 -
Profit / {loss) before tax '239.86 -
Tax expense {39.57) -
Profit / {loss) for the year 279.42 .
Tatal comprehensive income / (loss) 278.83 -
Profit / {loss) for the vear attributable to owners of the parent 22371 B
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests B 5512 .
Cash flows {used) / generated from operating activities Lo 60834 .
Cash flows {used) / generated fram investing activities - {890,39)
Cash flows {used) / generated from financing activities Cla78.71
Net cash inflow/{outflow) 94,65
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47. Disclosure of interest in other entities {Cantinued)

. - o SO Asat As at
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited a1 Mariaa 31-Mara3
Financial assets 8,871.37 -
Non-financial assets 27355 ! -
Financial liabilities 4,529.93 -
Non-financial liabilities 1104.09 -
Equity attributable to owners of the company A,497.94 -
Non-controlling interest 3 1,012.96 . -

Particulars

;v For the

yearended  For the year ended

31-Mar-23

Revenue from operations

Total income

Total expenses

Profit / {loss) before tax

Tax expense

Profit / {loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income / {loss)

Profit / {loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent

Profit / {loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interasts

Cash flows {used} / generated from operating activities

Cash flows {used} / generated from investing activities

Cash flows {used) / generated from financing activities

Net cash inflow/{outflow)

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund

As at
31-Mar-23

Financial assets

Non-financial assets

Financial liabilities

Non-financial liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the company

Non-controlling interest

Particulars

" Forthe yearended  For the year ended

Revenue fram operations

i 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

- (17.04) -

Total income

- {17.04) -

Total expenses

P08 -

Profit / (Joss) before tax

Tax expense

Profit / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income / {loss)

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners offhe parent

Profit { {loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests

Cash flows [used) / generated from operating activities

Cash flows [used) / generated from investing activities

Cash flows (used) / generated from financing activities

Net cash inflow/|outflow)
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47. Disclosure of interest in other entities (Continued)

PV Asat As at
.:31-Mar-24 3t-Mar-23

Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund

Financial assets

Non-financial assets

Financial liabilities

Nen-financial lfabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the company
Nen-controlling interest

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended

-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenug from operations {111.17) -
Total income 2:{315.17) -
Total expenses S 382 -

Profit / [Joss) before tax

Tax expense

Profit / (3oss) for the year

Total comprehensive income / {loss)

Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests

114.78)

{114.78)
#{114.78) -
4 (58.60) -
(56,19). -

Cash flows {used) / generated from operating activities
Cash flows [used) / generated from investing activities
Cash flows {used) / generated from financing activities
Net cash inflow/{outflow]

As at
31-Mar-23

India Credit Investment Fund NI

Financial assets

Nen-financial assets

Financial liabilities

Nen-financial liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the company
Non-contrelling interest

Li-For the'yearended  For the year ended

Particulars et
31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23

Revenue from operations
Total income

Totzl expenses

Profit / (loss) before tax
Tax expense

Tez1n) -

Profit / {loss} for the year :

Total comprehensive inceme / {loss) :{362.12) -
Profit / {loss} for the year attributakle to owners of the parent +{238.23) -
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable non-controlling interests - - {123.88) -
Cash flows {used) [ generated from operating activities B 1/{359,91) e
Cash flows {used) / generated from investing activities :12,398.82 e
Cash flows {used) / generated fram financing activities T L (12,417.45) L
Net cash inflow/{outflow} o L {378.55) . .

As at
31-Mar-23

India Credit Investment Fund V

Financial assets

Non-financiat assets

Financial liahilities

Non-financial liabilities

Equity attributable to owners of the company
Non-controlling interest
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47. Disclosure of interest in other entities (Continued)

Particulars e .For‘the year ended For the year ended
: 31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations o 5 {785.12) -
Total income o . {765.12) s
Total expenses . 2683 -
Profit / {loss) before tax {791.94) -
Tax expense it -
Profit / {loss) for the year {791.94} -
Total cormprehensive income { (loss) s (791.9@) -
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable to owners of the parent S(546.32) -
Profit / {loss) for the year attributable nen-controfling interests 1:{245.63) o
Cash flows {used) / generated from operating activities o4y -
Cash flows {used) / generated from investing activities L ot
Cash flows jused) / generated from financing activities 91,94 . -
Net cash inflow/{cutflow} -
2 Details of associates
i g s As at
ECap Equities Limited 31-Mar-73
Financial assets 52,118.856
Non-financial assets - 4,161.61
Financial liabilities 45,667.70
Nen-financial liabilities 291.97
Total equity 10,320.80
Particulars “iForthe yearended  For the year ended
+31-Mar-24. 31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations o 12,705.30
Total income 12,736.92
Total expenses 13,174.95
Profit / {loss) before tax {438.03)
Other exceptional items -
Profit / {loss) before tax and after exceptional items 1438.03)
Tax expense {285.31)
Profit / {loss) for the year {152.72)
Total comprehensive income / {loss) {151.46)
Share in profit / {loss) of associates {106.31)
Share in profit / {loss) of associates in other comprehensive income -
Cash flows jused) / generated from operating activities = (Gzﬂééi
Cash flows {used) / generated from investing activities = (2,654.57)
Cash flows {used) / generated from financial activities 4,695.01
Net tash inflow/loutflow) 1,419.15
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2 Details of associates {continued)

. e - P coAs at Asat
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited 51 Mar24 31-Mar-23
Financial assets 18,407.86 -
Non-financial assets 11418.47 -
Financial liabilities -

Non-financial liabilities

:6,814.53

Total equity -
particulars For the year ended
31-Mar-23
Revenue from operations .
Total income -
Total expenses :1,683.33 - .
Profit / {loss) before tax " {542.51) -
Other exceptional items SRSAL IR -
Profit / (loss) before tax and after exceptional items {542.51) -
Tax expense :{169.46) -
Profit / (loss) far the year . {373.05) -
Total comprehensive income / [Joss) :{373.07) -
Share in profit / (loss) of associates o (18.43) -
Share in profit / {loss] of associates in other comprehensive income 7 {16.13) -
Cash flows [used) [ generated fram operating activities {557.47) -
Cash flows [used) / generated from investing activities . S 91530 -
Cash flows [used) / generated from financial activities o {322.87) -
Net cash inflow/{outflow) 3496 -
2 Details of associates {continued)
ECL Finance Limited CiossnAsat As at
31-Mar-23

Financial assets

i 31-Mar24

Mon-financial assets

Financial liakilities

Non-financial liabilities

Total equity

Particulars

7 For the year ended
S dl-Mar-24

For the year ended
31-Mar-23

Revenue from gperations

Total income

Total expenses

Profit / {loss) before tax

Other exceptional items

Profit / {foss) before tax and after exceptional items

Tax expense

Profit / (loss) for the year

Total comprehensive incame / [loss)

Share in profit / (loss) of associates -
Share in profit / {loss) of associates in other comprehensive income +109.13 -
Cash flows {used) / generated from operating activities . 19,760,70 -
Cash flows {used) / generated from investing activities e ‘576,13 -
Cash flows {used) / generated from financial activities e - :(23,972.08) -

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

:': {3,635,25)




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

48. Retirement benefit plan

a) Defined contribution plan - Provident funds and Nationat Pension Scheme

Amount of T 81.74 million {Previous year: T 48.04 million) is recognised as expenses and included in "Employee benefit expense” in the
statement of profit and loss

b} Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The following tables summaries the components of the net benefit expenses recognised in the statement of profit and loss and the
funded and unfunded status and amount recognised in the balance sheet for the gratuity benefit plan.

i. Movement in defined benefit liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for defined benefit liability and its
components:

Particulars - March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Opening Balance L R 163 7416
Addition on accaunt of consolidation B o S g6, o
Current service cost B E 117,07 1228
Interest cost ) - . :8.47° 4.27
) 719208 90.69
Other comprehensive Income - - e
Experience . - . Jlaz
Financial assumptions _ o _ (4.72)
‘Demographic assumptions R {1.14)
; S (4.44)
Others . ) i N
Transfer In/ (Out) o S0, __{1.79)
Benefits paid o habisni (9 68) {12.83)
Closing Balance ] T R [ N1 71.63
ii} Components of defined benefit plan cost:
Particulars ~'March31,2024  March 31, 2023
Recognised in Statement of profit or loss N o S
Current service cost o — 017,07 - 12.26
Interestcost e i 8T o
Net Interest on net defined benefit liability/ (asset) Choadnieiigagl 0.35
Net Actuarial (gain}/lass recognized in the year ~ o 21 H{10.88) (1.26}
Total ) ~ ] 20,68 11.35
ili) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
Particulars ~March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year . i hin 112,28 108.56
Contributions by Employer o B L 6B 12.83
Benefits Paid . e 16.73) {12.83)
Interest Income on Plan Assets e -71.97 639
Return on plan assets excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit 828 (2.67}
liability/{asset) . - . R
Effect of acquisition/ (divestiture] B _ ‘8087 -
Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 20951 112.28

Actual Return on Plan Assets Ci248 7.74
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48.

b)

b)

c)

Defined benefit plan {continued)
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity {continued)

iv) Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet

Particulars - March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
Present Value of DBO 174,54 71.63
Fair Value of Plan Assets _ ~209.51% 11229
Liability/ (Asset} recognised in the Balance Sheet ‘3a.97). {40.66)
Funded Status [Surplus/{Deficit)] 34,97 40.66
Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net assets to asset ceiling] 7519 47.34
Net Liability/ [Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet +40,22 6.58
(Of which, Short term Liability ‘445" 1035
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/Loss 490 142

v} Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets

Particulars i March 31,2024  March 31, 2023

Investment Funds with Insurance Company T R6.36% 96.66%
Of which, Unit Linked 5 76.78% 93.11%
Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked 19,58% 3.55%

Cash and cash equivalents 513.64% 3.34%

Total . 100.00% 100.00%

vi) Movement in Other Comprehensive Income

Particulars March 31, 2023

©7March 31,2024

Balance at start of year (Loss)/ Gain N (35.48): {34.22)
Addition on account of consolidation .30)’ -
a. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from changes in demographic assumptions 1.14
b. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from changes in financial assumptions 472
c. Actuarial {Loss)/ Gain from experience over the past year B : (1.42)
Return on Plan assets, excluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit (2.67}
liability/ {asset) ;

Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling excluding amount (3.65
included in net interest an the net defined benefit liability/ (asset}

Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain i R (53.64) (35.48})
Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (continued)

Actuarial assumptions:

The following were the principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date: :March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate ©1'6.90% to 7.00% 5.90%
Salary Growth Rate . ' - 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attrition Rate (based on categories) ST 16% 1o 31% __16.00%
Mortality Rate 27 IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
- S (UItimate) {Ultimate)

Sensitivity analysis:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant,
would have affected the defined benefit abligation by the amounts shown below.

. SR EAs at March 31,2024 As at March 31, 2023
Particulars - - - -
Socingrease ol Decrease ol Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (+/- 1%) 40 S (5,07) 2.62 {2.54)
Discount Rate (+/- 1%) A BI02Y e A (2.51) 2.65

The above sensitivity analysis have been calculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there
are no other changes in market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it does not accur, When we change one variable,

Compensated absences :
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balangé
on actuarial valuation.
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49, Maturity Analysis of assets and liabilities

The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled, With
regard to foans and advances to customers, the Group uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the EIR.

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars thhm 12 ' After 12 Within 12 After 12
Total
months months
ASSETS o ___ ._wg
Fmancm[Assets L -
Cash and cash equivalents 110,2048.77 1,289.22 - 1,289.22
Bank balances other than cash and cash -2,953.03 2,031.09 427.86 2,458.95
equivalents
Derivative financial instruments - - -
Trade receivables _ -. L 30188 - 35188
Loans 33,050.98 . *'36,046.70 . 69,097.68  16,191.08 25496.09  41,687.17
Investments . 46,275.33  71,246.08 = 1,17,521.41 9,072.79 20,901.41 29,974.19
Other fmancualassets B ©71,189.96 100 0101.496,22 0002,686.18 424.36 1,005.21 1,429.57
Total financial assets {A) 7 98,103.41 711,10,659,27.7:2,08,762.68 29,400.42 47,830.57 77,230.99
Non-financial assets Sh R edveeen et oo
Current tax assets {net} ©5,116.74 5 5,205,23 9.71 2,22241  2,232.12
Deferred tax assets (net) .179,518,42 -~ © 9,518.42 - - 1,31471 131471
Investment Property 0332785 - '332785. - 3,032.60 3,032.60
Property, Plant and Equipment 3,362.05 . 3,362.05 - 2,218.98 2,218.98
Capital work in progress i R N A - - -
Intangible assets under development T30 123,50 - 12.40 1240
Goodwill ©209.83 1+.209.83: - 146.82 146.82
Other Intangible assets Siim 19878 07019878 ... .. 6632 6632
Other non- financial assets 66L75 66894 - 11,330.69 352.71 125.44 478,15
Total non-financial assets (B) 75024 0 22,431.82 0 23,182.06 362.43 9,139.68 9,502.10
TOTAL ASSETS (C = A+B) ' © 1,33,091.09 - 2,31,94474.  29,762.85 56,970.25 86,733.09
LIABILITIES B ] - ) —
Financial Liabilities s i e
Derivative financial instruments ©1,155.83 0 o ©1,155.83 - - -
Trade payables 10,208.58 - - °40.24 - 10,248.82 401.88 = 401.88
Debt securities 20,661.78 - 79,886.97 °1,00548.75  9,967.50  30,09979 40,067.29
Barrowings (other than debt securities) '36,996.21 "' 3B,698.81 - 75,695.02 5,131.20 23,619.24  28,750.44
Deposit 16,98 L 1698 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities CUUiBBLY5 - 13,204.30 - 13,892.05 42013 65000  1,070.13
Other financial liabilities ) B0 5,276,968 10,892.32 - 16,169.28 3,290.14 9 101.34 12,391, 48
Total financial liabilities (D) 2:::75,004.09 . 1,42,722.64 - 2,17,726.73 19,210.84 63,470.37 82,681.21
Non-financial liabilities R R o
Current tax liabilities {net) “192,10 -6 1815 .+ 210,25 15.29 1815 33.44
Prows:ons ) ' 63.80 6497 . 12877 5154 __g-.‘»__ijz__ 5842
Deferred tax liabilities (net) e 40 48 149,46 - 4359 4359
Other non-financial liabilities 302,24 - 69,63 371,87 133.75 1.77 135.52
Total non- fmancnal liabilities (E) 55814 202,21 760.35 200.59 70.38 270.97
TOTAL LIABELITIES (F = D+E) 1 75,562.23 ' :1,42,924.85 2,18,487.08 19,411.43 63,540.75 82,952.18
NET TOTAL ASSETS / (LIABILITIES) (C-F) 23,291.42 _ (9,833.76) 13437k 10,351.42 (6,570.50) 3,780.91
S & OFy

Note: The Group has sufficient short term net assets to cover the liquidity gap i




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

50. Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Particulars

7 1,90,152.80 |

Borrowings* UL P
Total liabilities from financing activities 69,887.86 1'11,20,264.94 SR T 1,90,162.80
As at Changes in Fair As at
Particul C Oth b
articulars April 1, 2022 ash Flows value ers (et \rarch 31, 2023
Borrowings* 74,001.44 {4,113.58) - - 69,887.86
Total liabilities from financing activities 74,001.44 {4,113.58) - - 69,887.86

*Comprises of Debt securities, Subordinated Liabilities and other borrowings.
** Refers to interest expense for the year incurred by entities other than non-banking financial companies in the group.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

51. Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements:
51.1 Contingent iiabilities and commitments

a. Contingent Liability
The Group has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt
income under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962, The Group has filed
appeal/s and is defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as
advised by the tax advisors, Group is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the
possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote.

Note - The Group's pending litigations mainly comprise of claims against the Group pertaining to proceedings pending with
Income Tax, Excise, Custom, Sales/VAT tax / GST and other authorities. The Group has reviewed all its pending litigations
and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are required and disclosed as contingent liabilities
where applicable, in the financial statements. The Group believes that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a
materially adverse effect on the Group financial position and results of operations.

Pursuant to the Income Tax Authorities {"the ITA") search, after March 31, 2024, the Group has received assessment order
cum demand notice from ITA for AY 2022-23. Based on the legal opinion obtained by the Group, management believes that
the demand is not sustainable. The Group is in the process of filing appeal against the said assessment order. Thus, no
adjustment has been made or is required in the financial results of the Group.

Details of contingent liability

Particulars

Taxation matters
Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debt
Litigation pending against company

b. Commitment
To meet the financial needs of customers, the Group enters into various irrevocable commitments, which primarily consist
of undrawn commitment to lend.

Details of commitment

Particulars i siiiAsat As at
‘“March 31,2024, March 31, 2023

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account {net of L ' 1.95

advances) and not provided for ) . 5 SR

Undrawn committed credit lines subject to meeting conditions ] N 656,91 336.00

Loan sanctioned pending disbursements 01,852,927 - 1,399.92

Uncalled commitments on investments in AIF/ Venture Fund - T 2/194.87 384.95

Corporate guarantee _ S02,468.33 -
Bank Guarantee ) CEUEEEUAYS 86 ) 423.44




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

51. Contingent liabilities, commitments and leasing arrangements: (Continued)
51.2 Leases
1) This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee. Group has not given any property on
lease.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
recognised and the movements

Balance as at April 1

As at

37718

Addition 7718 33.34
Lease pre-closure (Net) - (24.22) (7.71)
Amortisation for the year (47.23) (30.97)
Balance as at March 31 105.10
Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the As at
movements March 31, 2023
Balance as at April 1 142.39
Addition / disposal during year 31.15
Interest on lease liabilities 12.58
Lease pre-closure (Net) (14.45)
Payments during the year/Repayment of lease obligation (37.43)
Balance as at March 31 134.24
2) Amaunts recognised in profit or loss:

. As at

Particulars March 31, 2023

30.97
12.58
(6.74)

Depreciation/Amortization expense of right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities
Reversal of lease pre-closure

Rent on Short Term Leases
_Totai

36.81




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

[Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

52. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”;

List of related parties and relationship:

A

Hoelding Company
Edelweiss Financial Servicas Limited

Subsidiary Companies

ECL Finance Limited {w.e.f. 28 March 2024)

Nido Home Finance Limited

Edefweiss Retail Finance Limited (w.e.f. 18 April 2023)

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited

£delweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Allium Finance Private Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited {w.e.f. 28 April 2023)

ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) {w.e.f. 18 April 2023}
Comtrade Commaodities Services Limited

Felfow subsidiarles with whom the transactions have taken place
ECap Securities And Investments Limited {formerly known as ECap Equities Limited)
Edel Investments Limited

EdelGive Faundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Uimited

Edehweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss Interrational {Singapore) Pte. Limited

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited

Edeiweiss Takio tife Insurance Company Limited

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited

Edefweiss Resolution Advisors LLP

india Credit Investment Fund Il

Sekura India Management Limited

ZUNQ General Insurance Limited

Entities over whom significant influence is exercised
Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP

Edelweiss Value and Growth Furd

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Furd

India Credit Investment Fund 111

India Credit Investment Fund-5

Assaclates with whom transactions have taken place {Refer Note 3)

Nuvama Asset Management Limited (formerly known as ESL Seeurities Limited)

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Finance & Investments Lirited)
Nuvarna Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss Securities Limited)

ARC Trusts and trustee with whom transactions have taken place
Vardhman Trusteeship Private Limited
Vistra ITCL :ndia Limited

EARC TRUST $C - 251

EARCTRUST $C-391

EARCTRUST SC - 394

EARC TRUST SC - 406

EARC TRUST SC - 453

EARC TRUST SC - 461

EARC Trust 5C 251

EARC Frust SC 394

EARC Trust 5€ 401

EARC Trust SC 418

EARC Trust 5C 447

EARCTrust SC 451

EARC Trust SC 459

Key Management Personnel (KMP})

Vidya Shah - Executive Sirector

Ananya Suneja - Executive Director and Chief Finaneial Officer

Atul Ambavat - independent Diractor

Mr. Sunit Phatarphekar -Independent Director

Mr.vined Juneja - Independent Director

Mr. Tarun Khurana - Company Secretary {upto February 9, 2024}
Ms.Christina D’souza - Company Secretary {w.e.f. February 9, 2024)




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

52, Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 ~ “Related Party Disclosure™ {Continued)

Sr.No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name i:31-Mar24 © . 31-Mar-23
~ Transactions with related parties: . LI
1 Amount paid to broker for cash segment __Edel investments Limited N : :45,965.12 : . -
2 Redemption of Preference Share issued ECap Equi-tié".; Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 16.00

3 Amount received from broker for cash segment

" £del Investments Limited

45,501,835 -

____4 Business support service charges from ECLFinancelimited 68.31
Edef Investments Limited 545
L ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 13.96
- Edelcap Securities Limited B 55.44
EdelGive Foundation 8.15
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 6.17
_ ) Edelweiss Asset Management Limited . 4ass
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited ; 35.09
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known i 3.52
as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly known as 0.14
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as 0.71
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited} o
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 46.76
_ ZUNO General Insurance Limited : 53.88
. Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 0.07_
Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Limited 7.89
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.90
Edelwelss Securities And Investments Private Limited 44.79
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerty known as 244.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 72.62
o Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited 001
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {formerly known as 0.03
ESL Securitfes Limited)
Sekura India Management Limited 0.50
ECap Securities And Investments Limited ( formerly known 0.00
as ECap Equities Limited)
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited -
5 [nvastments in funds sold to ECE Finance Limited 513.98
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 1,671.49
. 6 Buyback / redemption- benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edef Land Limited) __.3,554.02
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as 13.84
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited) ~
Edel lnvestments Limited -
7 Issue of benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 1,7G0.00
Edel Investments Limited 700,00
Edelcap Securities Limited 976.00
8 Redemption/Sale of investment in benchmark linked ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited} 3,810.32
e debentures o
ECL Finance Limited = L
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 1122493 -
9 Purchase of units of fund from ECL Finance Limited — 633198 o
10 Purchase of Investments - Others tndia Credit nvestrment Fund || i 0,419.29 -
L EARC TRUST SC - 453 ] +:57,330.00 ——
11 Redemption of units of fund India Credit investment Fund Il G 890,98
32 Loss on redemption of ICIF Il enits paid to ECL Finance Limited . T 644,24 e
13 Purchase of perpetual bond from ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 492.28
iﬁlewaring charges paid to Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly known as 2.85
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) L
Nuvarna Wealth Management Limited [formerly known as 0.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited) ] _
__EdelInvestmentslimited 188
Nuvama Wealth Maragement Limited (formerly known as - 7.08
Edelweiss Securities Limited). e o
Nuvarna Wealth and lavestment Limited (formerly known 97.40

. @s Edelweiss Broking Limited)




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)

(Currency : Indizn rupees in miflions)

52. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — "Related Party Disclosure™: {Caontinued)

Sr. No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name . :31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
N Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 250
16 Corporatewgvlwl;;antee fee received from _ECL Finance Limited T 5 o 0.02
I Edelweiss Retail Finance Lirited 6.00
Edelweiss Financiat Services Limited 0.09
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -
Y Caorporate guarantee support fee paid to ECap Equitié;l_.i—mited (formerly Edef Land Limited) __oao
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 0.90
T 1 Trusteeship Fees Vardhman Trustesshig Private Limited -
Vistra ITCL India Limited -
~ 19 Directors’ sitting faes Atul Ambavat o 0.39
_Mr. Sunil Phatarphekar . 0.35
- Mr.Vinod Juneja 1.05
20 Remuneration to Key Management Personnel Ms.Christina D’souza -
(Refer note 1) Vidya Shah -
"""21 Donation paid to EdelGive Foundation 5.72
22 ESOP and SAR expenses paid Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
23 ESOP and SAR cost reimbursement Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 3.55
" 24 Interest income on securities ECL Finance Limited B
25 Interest / dividend on preference shares ECL Finance Limited 81.64
ECap Equities Limited {fermerly Edel Land Limited} 110.17
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as 271

Edelweiss Securities Limited)

B 26 Interest expense on Debentures / debt securities

Edel investments Limited 0.44
£Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 478.05
__— Edelcap Securities Limited 76.35
o ECL Finance Limited _ -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited -
ZUNO General Insurance Limited -
27 Iaterest expense on loans taken from ECL Finance Limited 28.13
E£del investments Limited 62.52
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 32.05
Edelcap Securities Limited ) . ..3514
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,655.91
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 145.97
28 Interest incone on loan given to ECap Securities And Investments Limited ( formerly known 7 31.27
as ECap Equities Limited) ; =
ECL Finance Limited 52.50
— Edel Investrnents Limited 18.50 -
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) e 38436
Edelcap Securities Limited 3037
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 33.66
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 47.14
_Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited . o..225
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 287.93
Nuvarna Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known 11.36
. as Edelweiss Broking Limited) .
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited _ -
25 Interest expense on Non convertible Debentures "ECL Firance Limited | 1?5{
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited {formerly known as 0.16
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited}
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - - 11.38
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited - 5.01
. — ZUNOQ General Insurance Limited Ao 0.82
- ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel tand Limited) - 127.38
_ .30 Interest expense on (CCD} issued to 7 / %)  Securities and Investmentsbimited 6.00: -
R I/ N B
31 Interest income an debentures_(tﬁ‘ﬁt)‘:"- - Kpance Limited ) - - 143.47
- [ ax 1 KHpfhuities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limj# 52.34
O * MUMBN . _§Eiyiss Retall Finance Limited L .62
- G\ fvestments Limited 0,08 -
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

[Currency ; Indian repees in millions)

52, Disclosure as required by Indlan Accounting Standard 24 - “Related Party Disclosure”: {Continued)

5r.No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name :31-Mar-24 © 31-Mar-23
32 Interest expense on subordinate debt ECL Finance timited _6.16
R o o __....ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 7.70
. Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited
33 Interest income on investment in debt securities ECap Equities Lin‘iifewmrmerly Edet Land Limited) T
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 192.06
. ECt Finance Limited " -
— Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
34 tnterest income on Nifty Linked Debentures ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Lil:nited] 269.59
35 Interest income on securities Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 6.88
. ECL Finance Limited 68.75
... 36 Investment in debt securities Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
37 Inv_e‘st;'tent in Security Receipts issued by Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Lim‘ltecjm -
38 Investment management support service from Edelweiss International {Singapore) Pte. Limited 8.20
39 Investmentsin other india Credit Investment Fund 1| 247271
40 lnvestments soid to Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 495.28
41 Issue of Non- Convertible Debentures to ECap Equities timited (formerly Edel Land Limited} 1,640.C0
ECL Finance Limited 220.00
Edelweiss Retail Finznce Limited 140,00
42 Issue of equity shares to (including securities premium) Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,000.00
43 Issue of compulserily convertible debentures to Ecap Securities and Investments Limited -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited .
44 Legal and professional fees paid to ECL Finance Limited -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited
45 Loan purchased from ECL Finance Limited 1,998.46
46 Loans given repaid by ECL Finance Limited — < B50.00 4,820.00
Edel Investments Limited £1,106.30 ¢ -
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} : . 16,074.70
Edelcap Securities Limited B 1,428.58
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220,00 ¢ 330.00
. Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited . 1,492.87 ¢ 225.88
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited et 1,750.00
. Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 5:2,638.58 - 6,882.76
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known =0 o 1,000.00
as Edelweiss Broking Limited) L
ECap Securities And Investments Limited ( formerly known 1. 8,238,05 1,800.00
as ECap Fauities Limited) i R
47 Loans given to ECL Finance Limited B 1-1850.00 4,040.00
Edel Investments Limited : 1,106.30 : -
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) T 15,442.67
Edelcap Securities Limited L 3,622.13
— Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 290,00 22000
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 1,747.16 ! . 842.15
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited e 1,750.00
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 778.50
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formetrly known [REI 1,000.00
as Edelweiss Broking Limited) _— ST :
ECap Securities And Investments Limited ( formerly known % "18,349.17 5,171.27
as ECap Equities Limited) R
. Edelweiss Financial Services timited 159542 ¢ .
48 Leans repaid to ECL Finance Limited . .9,650.00 - 1,556.00
Edel Investments Limited s 2,551.40
_.. ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) : 6,185.86
Edelcap Securities Limited L i 2,024.26
__ Edelweiss Financial Services limited - < 33,559.29 26,320.11
_ Edelweiss Retail Finance timited s 3,720.00_
kL .Finance_ Limited ,,;;;, _7717,59.7000
. Edel Investments Limited ___.1g86640
ECap Equities Limited (formerly £dei La 15138

_ _ _Edelcap Secarities Limited

107880
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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52, Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”: (Continued)

Sr.No.  Nature of Transaction Refated Party Name <.31-Mar-24 © . 31-Mar-23
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited wE40,925,74 _..26,0610.60

e . " Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited e TR 250.00

T 50 Management and Advisory Fees paid to ECLFinance Limited i 27605 36072
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited : 189.38 : 13.92
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited R8240 ¢ 19.40
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited BECARIEEEE - R -

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

51 Man;g"ement and Advisory fees received from ECL Finance Limited 28.22
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 2.97
51 "I;r“'rrn:_upal Repayment fram fund India Credit Iavestment Fund II 779.63
53 Margin placed with broker " Ede) Investments Limited L
54 Margin withdrawn from broker £de! Investments Limited -
55 Margins placed with [Refer note 2 below) Edet Investments Limited B 24.18
Muvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly known as 1,721.28
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
56 Margins withdrawn {Refer note 2 below} Edel Investments Limited 24,22
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly known as 1,726.87
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)
57 Other financial cost paid to Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly known 3.83
as Edelweiss Broking Limited)
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {formerly known as 5.70
ESL Securities Limited)
58 Profit on trading of derivatives - Edel Investments Limited 4203
59 Sale of equity shares Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited ..578.18
60 Purchase of equity shares Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 4,031.50
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited -
61 Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment ECL Finance Limited o 012
Edel Investments Limited . 0.14
Edelcap Securities Limited 0.28
— Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.15
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as 0.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited}
62 Sale of Praperty, Plant & Equipment “tdel Investments Limited B - 6.6 0.00
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited o1 0.01
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as "0 . 0.00
Edelweiss Securities Limited} ) -
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known - 0.03
as Edelweiss Broking Limited) L .
63 Purchase of securitles ECL Finance Limited B S 7,548.72 ° -
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} Gl 157.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited .
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {formerty known as 53.35
ESL Securities Limited) T, -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited Sl 252.06
64 Sale of Securities _ECL Finance Limited 7252580 138904
Edel Investments Limited S 873,84 ¢ -
Edelcap Securities Limited ] Sl 450.76
- Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 29,56 -
o Ecap Securities and Investments Limited i '--2,_670.24'1 -
f/ "\\ Edelweiss Asset Recanstruction Company Limited 679,38 ¢ -
Q] | 1 i — TR
65 Sale of loans to & MUMB_A f_’ ECL Finance Eimited i : : - .169‘85 -
66 Capital call / ECLFinancetimited U 3,74246 0 -
e /__ Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited S ienn 50,00
— - _ Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited il 293
67 Capital Distribution to unitholder  ECLFinance Limited - 7 1,38239

Edelwems Securities and Investments Prwate lelted o 5000

68 Redemption - Debentures/bondsheld i ECLFinencelimited _ __ _ TTaigaas
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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52. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — "Related Party Disclosure”: (Continued)

sr.No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name -31-Mar-24 - 31-Mar-23
. ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) LA e Y 1,076.63_
e — Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Campany Limited St iagy ag 352.89
o - EARC TRUST 5€C - 391 ) 208,00 =
___EARC TRUST SC - 406 300,00 -
_ e EARC TRUST SC- 394 ST 8602 -
EARC TRUST 5C - 251 o SR L010,85 -

_EARC TRUST 5C - 461  imnogs3Egl

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 713,850.93

B9 Redemation of debentures held by

_ ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Edelcap Securitfes Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

____ 70 Reimbursement paid to

ECL Finance Limited

ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited (formerly known *
as Edelweiss Broking Limited)

Ecap Securities and Investments Limited

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

Edelweiss Internaticnal {Singapore]) Pte. Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (fo-;rnerlv known as
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Nuvarma Wealth Finance Limited (formerly known as
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)

Edel Investments Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

71 Reimbu;'sernent received from

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Investmenis Limited

ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited)

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Recanstruction Company Limited

Nuvarnz Wealth and Investment Limited [formerly known“'_._ S
as Edelweiss Broking Limited) 3y

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly known as
Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited)

Nuvama Weslth Finance Eimited {formerly known as
Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

ZUNO General Insurance Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly known as
Edelweiss Securities Limited)

Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited

Nuvama Asset Mzanagement Limited {formerly known as
ESL Securities Limited)

...._Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited _

72 Rental income from

ECLFinance Limited

Edel Investments Limited

ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)

Edelcap Securities Limited

EdelGive Foundation

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited o

Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

Nuvama Wealth and Investment timited (formerly known
as Edelweiss Broking Limited) o

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerl{r known as
___Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited) .

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited o T 30,47

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly known as RS
Edelweiss Securities Limited) oo

___ ESLSecurities Limited)

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (f.c;rr:;t;rlky knowp
___ Edelweiss Finance & Investments Limited)
Nuvama Asset Management Eimited (fo )

Li

_ Edelweiss Tbkio Life Insurance C;J;F\_p_a_
ZUNO General Insurance Limited

{ 938
3248
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)
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52, Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 ~ “Related Party Disclosure”: {Continued)
Sr. No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 5 31-Mar-24 0 31-Mar-23
73 Maturity of debt securities ECap Equit}é; L"i“mited__(iqgnﬂl‘e_rly Edel Land Limited) 375.45
74 NCD [oan sold to ECL Finance Limited 1,301.50
75 Issuance of debentures to ECap Equities Limited (forn:éi‘lgt Edel Land Limited} 5,500.00
76 Security deposit received from Edelweiss Takio Life Insurance Company Limited 0.04_
77 Security deposit repaid to ECL Finance Limited 14.60
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 13.68
78 Security Receipts Seld to Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 319.73
79 Service Charges paid _ECL Finance Limited 1.08
e Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 0.81
80 Service fee received from ECL Finance Limited 0.38
_ . Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 0.07
81 Service Fee paid to ECL Finance Limited -
81 Share of loss Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 0.05
82 Deficit Distribution to unithalder " ECL Finance Limited -
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited -
83 Sharing of realised Loss on Security receipt under Risk and Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
. Reward
84 Share of Profit Edelweiss Resolution Advisars LLP .03
85 Shared premises cost paid to ECL Finance Limited B -
86 Withdrawal of capital from partnership firm Edelweiss Resolution Advisors LLP 0.13
87 Reimbursement of ARC management fee from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited o 1139
__88 Income from training centre A.Edelweisg Financial Services Limited e -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Eimited -
ECL Firance Limited -
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited -
Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited -
Balances with related parties: j " T . _
1 Accrued interest expenses on [oan taken from ECL Finance Limited o 0.87
Edel Investments Limited 1.83
_ ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 4.74
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 83,29
2 Corporate Guarantes Given to/ffor ECL Finance Limited ) R R Lt 149.30
3 Ccr'go_f;é Guarantee taken from ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel tand Limited) T ST 1,612.64
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited PRI i 4,671.94
" "4 Interest accrued but not due on Non convertible debenturt Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ng__—
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 2.00
o ZUNO General Insurance Limited B 0.08
N ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) ; 156
_ 5 Interest accrued on subordinate debt ECL Finance Limited o SRR 4.15
o ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) R b 518
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited ch 327,23 .
& Interest income accrued on Loans ECL Finance Limited o = R R I 5.1%
. _ ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) @i oo 8.56
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limnited I 3.12

... 8 Interest Payable on Debenfk§

. Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited SRR -
Edelweiss Securittes And Investments Private Limited :




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 [Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

52. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — "Related Party Disclosure”; [Continued)
Sr.No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 31-Mar-24 -0 31-Mar-23
9 Interest receivable - accrued on debentures and bonds of ECL Finance Limited s Z:I.iil—
. .. Ecap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) ~ L 0.18
o _Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Giel 187
10 Interest receivable-Accrued -Group Company ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} . P 1376
o Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 20.82 50.06
— Edelcap Securities Limited ] B 9.73
_ Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limite B i 7.56
ECap Securities And Investments Limited ( formerly known - 6.86
as ECap Equities Limited} )
o Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
Edel Investments Limited -
___Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited -
11 Investment in Security Receipts issued by at book Value  EARC Trust SC 401 ) ~ 479.60
EARC Trust SC 418 209.92
EARC Trust 5C 447 . A95.07
EARC Trust SC 451 226.79
EARC Trust SC 459 111.24
EARC Trust 5C 251 -
EARC Trust SC 394 ] -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited -
12 |nvestments in debentures (Including CCD) ECL Finance Limited 2,474.04
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 9,686.84
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 1,880.57
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 58.40
Edel Investments Limited -
13 Investments in equity shares Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 173388 ¢ 733.89
. Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited L01,274.10 -
o Edelwelss Retail Finance Limited i _ 26400
ECL Finance Limited 4,031.50
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited -
_Edelweiss Alternative Asset Adviscrs Limited -
7 14 tnvestments in others India Credit Investment Fund Il . 2,611.79
15 Loans given to ECap Securities And Investments Limited { formerly known 237127
. as ECap Equities Lirnited) o
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) e 1,243.80
. Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 220.00 : _.220.00
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -940.00 ¢ 685.71
} Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 2,043.96 ° _1,546.08
Edelcap Securities Limited__ DR e 1,554.78
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited LT 50542 e
16 Loans taken from ECap Equities timited {formerly Edel Land Limited}) 1,460.10
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 17,079.43
17 Margin payable to E£del Investments Limited 0.50
18 Margins piaced with Edel Investments Limited -
19 Margin receivable from Edel Investments Limited o R Ug
20 Non convertible debentures held by [Face value} ECL Finance Limited e 220.00
. ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) L g 5,788.83
N Edelcap Securities Limited e email o 1,360.00
i . Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited L 152,27
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited 620.10 _ _55.80
ZUNO General Insurance Limited .50 10.00
. __21 Other Payable ECL Finance Limited s 0.01
£del Investments Limited 02 0.75
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ‘505§ 147
e £Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited ] i 046
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Casnpany Limited o000 0.87
EdelGive Foundation o 196 0.24
I _ Edelweiss Asset Management Limited _ 0.08 o123
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisars Limited ST 336 0.87
o . ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Lis# ' 061
- e . Sekura India Management Limited a2 001
_Edelcap Securities Limited : 001
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Continued)

(Currency ; Indian rupees in mitlions)

EdelInvestmentslimited WD\ /) nw

52, Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”: {Continued}
Sr.MNo.  Nature of Transaction Related Farty Name ¢ -'31-Mar-24 31-Mar-23
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited [formerly known as 0.15
o Edelweiss Custodial Services Limited}
o Ecap Securities and Investments Limited -
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited -
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited -
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management limited -
i ZUNQO General Insuranee Limited -~ -
22 Payable to clearing house Edel Investments Limited .
23 Other Recelvable ECL Finance Limited 0.69
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 156.20
I Edelcap Securities Limited o 0.58
EdelGive Foundation 0.64
Edelweiss Asset Managerment Limited -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited o
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited . 140
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited . 041
Edefweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 0.09
Ede! Investments Limited 0.12
Ecap Securities and Investments Limited -
2ZUNG General Insurance Limited 0.00_
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited -
Edelweiss Tokie Life Insurance Company Limited o
24 Partner’s current account - receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP 3.11
25 Partner's capital account - receivable from Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Adviscrs LLP 0.05
26 Security Deposit Placed (Rental} Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited -
27 Rel:l?;' Eieposits payahle to £CL Finance Limited 14.60
E£Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 13.68
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 50.00
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Caompany Limited 0.11
Rdelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1172
. Edelweiss Asset Management Limited -
28 Long term deposits payable to " "ZUNG General Insurance Limited s
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited -
29 Risk and Rewards Guarantee taken from Edefweiss Financial Services Limited _1,840.28
_ 30 Investment in debentures and bonds ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} 123.76
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited L
31 Subordinate debt issued io ECL Finance Limited 56.00
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 7000
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Company Limited -
32 Subordinated lisbilities fes Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) R 406.68
Financial Services Limited LT 0,00 D
T ;;Compulsorily convertible debentures held by Ecap Securities and Investments Limited 3,000.00 -
34 Trade Payables to ECap Securities And Investments Limited { formerly known .7 B Tom
as ECap Equities Limited) R _
ECL Finance Limited I R oy 80.64
_ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) R 499
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited sl 956
. Edelweiss Financial Services Limited : 0.27_
— __Edelwaeiss Retail Finance Limited o 0.28
- Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 0.01
) D}m\ Edelcap Securities Limited 021
//(’A-._ S %\ Edelwelss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 52.68 051
.'is -7\\  Edelweiss Tokio Life Insuranee Company Limited 0 0.00
[nY AW Ede Investments Limited e
- i -+ Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -
_ R . ZUNO General Insurance Limited -
- \\ __ Sekura India Management Limited B
o e _ EdelGive Foundation -
e gs_quﬁéceivablesﬁdﬁ " ECL Finance Llﬁj;teq 7 _7_7 S - _3_6._82
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{Currency : Indizn rupees in miltions)

52, Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard 24 — “Related Party Disclosure”: [Continued)

Sr. No.  Nature of Transaction Related Party Name . 31-Mar24 .  31-Mar-23
. e . ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edef Land Limited) 281
. Edelcap Securities Limited  16.33
R EdelGive Foundation R 162
N Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 2511
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited 345
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited B 18,10
e Edelweiss Financial Services Limited T 29RIR 231,20
Edelweiss International [Singapore} Pte. Limited iy x 1, LI 3.38
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited TR Ttk 0.94
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 8.60
_Edelweiss Takio Life Insurance Company Limited 10.54
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited i 005
ECap Securities And [nvestments Limited { formerly known 3 0.00
as ECap Equities Limited) i
. _..ZUNO General Insurance Limited 4.44
Ecap Securities and Investiments Limited -
Sekura India Management Limited -
Nuvama Asset Management Limited {farmerly known as 0.02

ESL Securities Limited)

Off Balance Sheet ltems

Lorporate guarantee given to Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited -
Corporate guarantee received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -
’ Risk & Rewards sharing arrangement Edelweiss Financial Services Limited -

0.00 indicates amount less than T 0.01 million

1 Information relating to remuneration paid te key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and
provision made for bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. Remuneration to KMP's shall
be within the limit as prescribed by the Companies act.

2 Loan given/taken to/from related parties are disclosed based on the maximum of debit and credit of transaction amount and total of debit and credit of
transaction amount given/taken during the reporting period.,

3 Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement dated Maech 9, 2023 to the Amended and Restated Shareholders’ Agreement dateé March 18, 2021 between
Edelweiss Financial Service Ltd (Holding Company), Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited, PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Ltd and Nuvama Wealth
Management Limited {formeely Edelweiss Secueities Limited), the amendment to the articles of association of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and
the appointment of independent trustee, Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and its subsidiary Companies ceased to be associate of the Company
w.e.f. March 30, 2023.

53,  Capital Management

The objective of the Group's Capital Management is to maximise shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth of its
subsidiaries. The Group deterrines the capital requirement based on annual operating plans and long-term and other strategic investment plaas, The
funding requirements are met through loans and operating cash flows generated.
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54, Fair Value Measurement

54.1. Valuation Principles:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liahility in an orderly transaction in the principal {or
most advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions [.e., an exit price}, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using a valuation technigue. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques,

Level I - valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active
markets that company can access at the measurement date.

tevel 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are
derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s Jife,

Level 3 — valuatien technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant
to the measurement as whole.

Refer note 5.11 for more details on fair value hierarchy

54.2. Valuation governance:

The Group's fair value methodology and the governance over its madels includes a number of cantrols and other procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product initiatives (inctuding their valuation
methodelogies) are subject to approvals by various functions of the Group including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price
determination or validation is used. For inactive markets, Groug sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to
information that is considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of ongoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However Finance department is
responsible for establisking procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards

54.3, Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy. Exchange traded
and OTC derivatives are at gross amount i.e. before offsetting margin meney. The impact of offsetting is explained in note 9.A.

B L R R
Tilevel 2.0 Lewel 30 = Tetal o

Particulars

Assets measured at fair value on 2 recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments (assets)
Exchange-traded derivatives

73728

OTC derivatives o S 11791,28
Embedded derivatives in marketinked debentures jssued 299.64 . o 289,68
Total derivative financial instruments (assets) _ 299.64 1001 118,20
Investments St S R :
Debt securities o Ta933847 - i-2,924.08 T 32,425.00
Mutual fund units L ER 3 065,62 e AT 065,62
Security receipts ~ L e 00T 4], 700,81
Equity instruments o &deii2,221.57 0018,16620 L0 619.62 .- 22,007.39
Units of AIF ) e T 64647 L 7,646.47
Total Investments measured at fair value - 34,62365 ..': 16,330.98 - - -52,300.64 - 1,06,345.08
Loans and other financial assets measured at fair value o R R e 6,247.36 "0, 2470.36
Property Plant and equipment T A R TS C SOt R WL % 7 -1 = S SR atr Y 310 ¥
Total financial assets measured at fair value on a recurring - ©.-1:35,350.84 - ' ° 19,422.06 ' '60,652.75 1 1,15,425.75 -

basis
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54, Fair Value Measurement {continued}

54.3. Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy (continued)

Particulars 31-Mar-23

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets measured at fair vatue on a recurring basis o
Derivative financial instruments {assets) .
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - -
Total derivative financial instruments (assets) - - : -
Investments “m_“
Debt securities 134.67 3,277.05 1,593.57 5,405.29
Security receipts - - 1,747.78 1,747.18
Equity instruments - - 4,103.26 .4,103.26
Units of AIF - - 3,580.47 3,580.47
Total investments measured at fair value 262.01 3,277.05 11,425.08 14,964,314
Loans and other financial assets measured at fair value - . 2,645.09 2,645.09
Property Plant and equipment - - 2,024,51 2,024.51
Total finencial assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis 262.01 3,277.05 16,0584.68 19,633.74

Note: Equity Instruments includes investment in Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (NWML), a former assaciate of the holding
Company which is subject to lock-in %l September 2024 in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India regulations. This
investment is reported under Jevet 2 in fair value disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 113 - Fair Value measurement as at March 31,
2024,
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54. Fair Value Measurement (continued}

54.3. Assets and liabilities by fair value hierarchy {continued)

2 31-Mar-24 -
Zleyel 3

Particulars

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis
Derivative financial instruments {liabilities):
Exchange-traded derivatives

OTC derivatives -
Embedded derivatives in market-linked debentures issued
Total derivative financial instruments (liabilities)

ﬁjﬁéa? liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Provision for short sale - SLBM trading

Total financial liabilities at FUTPL

Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring

basis
Particulars 33-Mar-23

Level 1 tevel 2 Level 3 Total
Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -
Derivative financial instruments (liabilities): S
Exchange-traded derivatives - - - .
Total financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring - - . -

basis
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54.
54.4.

Fair Value Measurement [Continued}

Fair valuation technigques :

Debt securities

Whilst most of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty linked debentures have embedded
derivative characteristics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing in the
market as at the reporting date. Group has used quoted price of national stack exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. in cases
where debt securities are not activity traded Group has used CRISIL Corporate Band Valuer model for measuring fair value,

Security receipts

The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Group uses valuation technigues to measure their fair values. Since the
security receipts are less liquid instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow levels are
estimated by using guantitative and qualitative measures regarding the characteristics of the underlying assets including prepayment
rates, default rates and other economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant uncbservable valuation inputs are classified as Level
3.

Equity instruments

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognised stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular
basis. Such instruments are classified as Level 1. Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value [NAV}, taking into
account redemption andfor other restrictions. Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Equity instruments in non-listed
entities are initially measured at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at valuation provided by external valuer at
instrument level. Such unlisted equity securities are classified at Level 3,

Units of Alternative Investment Funds and Mutual Fund,
Units held in Alternative Investment funds are measured based on fund net asset value (NAV), taking into account redemption and/or
other restrictions. Such instruments are classified at Level 3.

Open-ended funds that are redeemable at any time, and that report a daily net asset value [MAV) and for which sufficient subscriptions
and redemptions occur at NAV are measured at NAV and classified as Jevel 1.

Loans measured at fair value through profit or loss

Loans are segregated, as far as paossible, into portfolios of similar characteristics. Fair values are based on observable market
transactions, when available. When they are unavailable, fair values are estimated using valuation models incorporating range of input
assumptions. Group has determine fair value with help of internal valuation team and independent valuer on case to case basis.
Valuation is based on discounted cash flow, comparable transaction market price, market research and marked trend as considered
appropriate.

Derivatives

The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade credit
ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observable inputs sre mainly interest rate swaps, exchange traded
futures and options contracts. The most frequently applied valuation techniques include guoted price for exchange traded derivatives
and Black Scholes madels {for option valuation).

Exchange traded derivatives
Exchange traded derivatives includes index/stock options, indexfstock futures, Group uses exchange traded prices to value these
derivative and classify these instrument as level 1.
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54.

54.5.

54.5

Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the level in the fair
value hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.The information given below is with respect to financial assets and
financial lfabilities measured at amortised cost for which the fair value is different than the carrying amount. Carrying amounts of cash and
cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade and other payables as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023 approximate the fair value because of
their short-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of bank deposits, other financials assets and other financial
liahilities is not significant in each of the years presented.

31 March 2024 i nning
Level

Particulars

Financial assets:

Loans :65,804.21
Investments 4:11,923,37
Total -.°77,827.58

Financial liabilities
Debt securitles

11,02,271.87:

Borrowing (other than debt securities) CH 175,695,025 75,695.56
Depaosits 16,98 1-16.98
Subordinated liabilities 13,802,087
Total 7771,90,152.80 -

Off-balance sheet ftems

‘Loan and other commitments

Total
31 March 2023

Particutars Total Carrying  Total fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Amount
Financial assets: B
Loans 39,042.08 39,713.10 - - 39,713.10
Financial liabilities - T
Debt securities 40,067.29 38,964.26 - 16,957.31 22,006.96
Barrowing (other than debt securities) 19,681.47 19,509.08 - 744.66 18,764.42
Subordinated liabilities 1,070.13 1,078.20 - 1,078.20 -
Total 60,818.89 59,551.54 - 18,780.17 40,771.38
Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments 1,395.90 699.95 - - 699.95
Total 1,399.90 699.95 - 699.95

Valuation methodologies of financial instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methodologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded and
measured at fair value in the Group's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The below
methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of ¢ash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
payables approximate the fair value because of their short-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other
financials assets and other financial liabilities is not significant in each of the years presented.

Financial assets at amortised cost

The fair values financial assets measured at amortised cost are estimated using a discounted cash flow model based on contractual cash
flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ credit risk.

Issued Debt
The fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash flow model.
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54, Fair Value Measurement [Continued)

54.6 Except as disclosed in Note 54,7 below there have been no transfers between levels during the year ended March 31, 2024 and March 31, 2023,

54.7 The following table shows a recanciliation of the apening balances and the closing balances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Security  Units of AIF

Equity

Embedded Embedded Loansat  Investments Total

receipts instruments/ derivative in derivative in FVTPL in debt

Warrants market- market- securities and

Particulars tinked linked preference

debentures debentures shares

Assets  Liabilities

Investments - at April 1, 2023 A A 2,645,089 70, 685,62 TTT014,070.4F
Addition on account of consolidation 360563 111 540372 0000 §2,573.37
Purchase 482,74 ° 1,009,32 34,965.15 -
Sale / redemption 1{82. 1161,176.82)
Transfer into level 3 T L S

/{4,207.05)

Transfer from level 3

Acerued interest Income

profit / Fair value change for the year
recagnised in prefit or loss

investments - at March 31, 2024

‘58,284.73 -

Unrealised gain/{Loss) related to balances
held at the end of the year

. (326.14)

Security  Units of AIF Equity Embedded Embedded

Loansat [nvestmentsin Total
receipts instruments/ derivative in derivative in FVTPL debt securities
Warrants market- market- and preference
Particulars linked linked shares
debentures debentures
Assets Liabilities
Investments - at April 1, 2022 2,702.98 3,847.25 1.00 - - 3,361.82 51532 10,428.37
Purchase 110,33 2,788.27 - - - 426.27 6,987.10 10,311.97
Sale / redemption {652.93) {2,739.13) [0.90) - - {1,564.60) {5,933.06) (10,890.62}
Transfer into levet 3 - - 4,103.16 - - - - 4,163.16
Transfer from level 3 - —— - - - - - -
Accrued Interest Income - - i - 221.32 0.27 221.59
Prafit / Fair value change for the year {4.65) {315.92} - - - 200.28 15.99 1104.30)
recognised in profit or loss
investments - at March 31, 2023 2,155,73 3,580.47 4,103.26 - - 2,645.09 1,585.62 14,070.17
Unrealised gain/{Loss) related to balances [37.64) {315.92) - - - 2457 {230.75) [559.74)

held at the end of the year
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55 Fair Value Measurement [Cantinued)

for the year ended 31 Mareh 2024 {Continued)

54.8 Impact on fair value of levtl 3 finandal instrument of changes to key uncbservable Inputs

As at March 31, 2074
Type of Financlal fnstruments Fair yatue of Falr value of Valuatton Range of esth Increase Inthe Change In fair value Decreaseinthe  Change in fafr value
assetas on 31 Nabifity asen 31 Unchservahle for uncbservable unobservable Input because of lacreasein  unobservable input because of dearease in
Mareh 2023 March 2024 Input Input unobservable input urobyecvable input
Het asset valuemethod  NAV per security
N racelpt
Securily recetpts 45,200.51 . 51,031.58 5% 2,538.97 5% 12,538.57}
- Comparatile transaction  Fair value per 3 0 fo ¥ 224,140 per
Investments ka debt securities and PfE share share <
and preference shares 1379.93 - = 5250 s {82.503
Discounted Cash flow. The Expacted future
presentvalue of expected  cash flows
Loans classified as FYTPL 624736 - future ecanomic benefits 15% - 20% 0.25% (14.54) 0.25% 14.68
20 he darived from the
foans
Falevalue of index Price per T 100,000 to
Kty linked debentures 0.5a - debemure T 11.59,483 per 5% 0.03 5% {0.03}
debentyre
Investmants in Participative 16675 o
! P 1543.50 - DioustedCxhflow  Expeciedluture T 576523 per % - 5% -
Naon-convertible debentures
cash flows - "
Embedded derivative in 99.64 (652.88) Falrvalue of index Index fevels 5% (1766} 5% 17.56
market-inked debentures -
- Farvatueg! 39542103 193,480
Investments in units of AIF 764647 underlying perunit 5% 38232 5% 13682.32)
Het Assets Approach inyestments
T01071,24,854 per - T
tavestients in unguoted Comparable trensaction  Fairvalue per e
.| - 2 .
equity shares 419.58 and PJE share sharp 5% 2B.47 3% 28.47)
As at March 31, 2073
Type of Fnancial Instruments Fait value of Fait vilue of Valuation Technigues Significant  Range of estimates Increase in the Change in fair value Dacreass in the Change in fair value
assetason 31 liabllity ason 31 far bla Input tecauseof increase in - unabsarvable input bacause of decrease in
March 2023 March 2023 inpur input unobservable input unebservable input
Discounted Cash flow. The Expected future 5% Increase in Expacted 5% Decrease In
greseat vatue of expected cash flows future Cash (fow Expected lutore Cash
future economic beaefits AR688 13104 flow (53.27)
Security receipts 422580 + to be derived from the
ownership aof 2 Dlsk-agjested 0.5% Increase in Risk- 5% Decrease In
andarlying investments of wecounrratn  12.00% 70 22.00%  adjusted discount rate (11.55) Risk-adjusted 1164
the Trust. discount rate
Discounted projected cash Ewpected  gross - 24837 5% (34837
Tlawe recoveries 63738 5%
Stock-In-trad: 625738 . e
eckein-trade 96 Biscount rates. 31.50% to 12.50% 50 basis point (9.35) 50 basis paint 235

Loans ¢lassified as FVTPL

Comparable tansaction
- Discounting rite

15% - 20%

A cne percentage paint
change in the discounting
rate used in fair valuatlon
15 ©f Level 3 assets docs not

Aone per:nntage point
change n the
discounting rate used
1o 0 fair wvaluation of

value have a significant impact in Leve! 3 assets docs not
Its value have 3 significant
Impactin its valug
Falr  walue 4sing Black Warket ndex
scholes Mode! or Monte curve s% 0.21 5% .21
N Carlo approach based on .
Nifty linked debentures - -
fty lisked debeatu the embedded derivative  Risk - adjusted
discounted rata 1% 004 1% 2.0
A5%- 6% - e e e
T B Fair value of - e
nvastments In units of AIF underlying 5% 18336 5% {1B1.36)
— Net Assets Approach R .
Iveestments in unquoted Camparable transaction Fairvalue per -
equity shares categorited at - - and PfE and discounted share ® 5% 05.16 5% {205.16)
Leve!3 cash flow ¥ 2238 per share
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53, Risk Management
A. Introductien and risk profile

Risk is an inherent part of Group's business activities. The Group {the company and its subsidiaries together referrad to as "the Group") extends a corporate
or retail loan, buys or sells securities in market, or offers other products or services and the Groug takes on some degree of risk. The Group's overall objective
is to manage its businesses, and the associated risks, in a manner that balances sesving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safaty
and soungéness of the Group.

The Graup believes that effective risk management requires;

1} Acceptance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issues, by all individuals within the Group;
2) Gwnership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and
3) Firmwide structures for risk governance

The Group strives for continual improvement through efforts to enhance controls, ongoing employee training and davelopment and other measures.

B. Risk Management Structure

The Group has weli-defined risk management policy framewark for risk identification, assessment and control to effectively manage risks associated with the
various business activities. The risk function is manitored primarily by the business risk group, The Group bas also established a Risk Committee that is
responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities at a central level,

Our risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able to withstand market volatility and scenarios of sharply
declining prices. As a result, we follow conservative lenging norms. The Group centralises the risk monitoring systems to monitor our client's credit exposure
which is in addition to the monitoring undertaken by the respective businesses.

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. The board has
established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and menitoring the risk management policies. The Committee holds
regular meetings and repost to Soard on its activities.

The audit committee oversees how management moniters compliance with the risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the
risk maragement framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal audit. Internal audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the resutts of which are reported to the audit committee.

€. Risk mitigation and risk eulture

The Group's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of responsibilities. Credit appraisat & credit control processes,
centratised operations unit, independent audit unit for checking compliance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as well as
our risk maragement processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by the head
of our business ar operations. Gur loan approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise
delinguencies and maximise recaveries.

The Board Risk Committee is the overseeing body for Risk Management. The Committee meets at regular intervals to review the risk profile of the Company.

It is the Group's palicy to ensure that a robust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employees are expected to take ownership and
be accountable for the risks the Graup is exposed to, The Group's continuous training and development emphasises that employees are made aware of the
Group's risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and respensibilities to monitor and keep their exposure to risk within the Group's risk appetite
limits, Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuneration reviews.

D. Types of Risks

The Group's risks are generally categorized in the fallowing risk types:

Motes :Risks Arising from Measurement, monitoring and management of risk
LiCredit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss if a customer {Arises principally from financing, dealing [Measured as the amount that could be lost if a customer or
or counterparty fails to meet an obligation under jin Corporate Bonds, Investrments in counterparty fails to make repayments;
a contract, Mutuat Fund, Equity, but also fram
certain other products such as Maonitored using various internal risk management measures and
guarantees and derivatives within limits approved by individuals within a framework of

delegated authorities; and

Managed through a rabust risk control framework, which
outlines clear and consistent poficies, principles and guidance for
risk managers.

2 [Liquidity risk
{iguidity risk is the risk that we do not have Liquidity risk arises from mismatches in [Measured using a range of metrics, including Asset Liability
sufficient finangial the timing of cash flows. mismatch, Debt Equity Ratio
resources to meet our cbligations
as they fall due or that we canonly do sa atan  |Arises when illiquid asset positions Regular manitaring of funding levels to ensure to meet the
excessive cost. cannot be funded at the expected terms jrequirement for Business and maturity of our liabilities.
and when required.
Maintain diverse sources of funding and kiquid assets te facilitate
flexibility in meeting our liquidity requirements of the Company.
3|Market risk
Market risk is the risk that Exposure to rmarket risk is Measured using sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains
mavements in market factors, such separated into two partfolios: trading  [and losses for a range of market movements and scenarios.
as Interest rates, equity prices and Index prices, land non-trading.
will reduce our income or the value of our Monitored using measures, including the sensitivity of net
portfolios interest income.

Manraged using risk limits approved by the risk management
committee,
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55,

55.0.1

Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial less to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a finangial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s Trade receivables and Loans. The
Group has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient coilateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of financial loss frem defaults. In case the loans are to be
restructured, similar credit assassment process is followed by the Group.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the facters that may influence the credit risk of its customer base,
including the default fisk of the industry and country in which customers operate,

The Group manages and controls credit risk by setting limits on the amount of risk it 35 willing to accept for individual countarparties/Groups (Single Borrowlng Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry
cancentrations, and by monitoring exposures in refation to such limits.

Credit guality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historical dealings with the Group and market intelligence. Dutstanding customer receivables are regularly moritored. The credit quality review
process aims to allow the Group to assess the potential loss as a result of the risks te which it is exposed and take corrective actions.

Derivative financlal Instruments:

Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with pasitive fafr values, as recorded on the balance sheat. With gross-settled derivatives, the Group is also exposed ta a settlement
risk, belng the risk that the Group honecurs its cblfigation, but the counterparty fails to deliver the counter value.

[mpairment Assessment:
The Group applies she expected credit loss model for recognising impairment Joss. The expected credit loss allewance is computed based on a provision matrix which takes intc account historical credit loss experience
and adjusted for forward-locking information. :

The expected credit {oss is a product of exposure at default, probahility of default and loss given default. The Group has devisad an internal model to evafuate the probability of default and loss given default based on the
parameters set autin ind AS. Accordingly, the loans are classifled into various stages as follows:

taternal rating grade internal grading Stages
desciiption
Performing
0dpd* to 30
High grade dpd* Stage 1
Standard grade 31t090dpd*  Stage2
Non-performing
Individually impaired 90+ dpd* Stage 3

* dpd indicates days past due,
Credit loss Is the difference between all contractua! cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the
originaf EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) computation is not driven by any single methodology, however methodelogy and approach used must reflect the following:

1) An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evalizates a range of possible outcormes
2) Reasanabie and supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions;

3) Time value of maney

While the time value of money clement is currently being factored into ECL measurement while discounting cash flows by the Effactive Interest Rate [EIR), the abjective of developing a macreeconemic model using
exogenous macreeconomic varlables {MEVs] is to address the first two requirements, This has been achieved by using the mode! output to adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and
probability-weighted.

Significant increase In credit risk [SICR)

Group considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past ¢ue, Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has
beer: carried out based on SICR ¢ritericn, Accounts which are more than 30 days past due have been identified as accounts where significant increase in credit risk has been abserved. These accounts have been classified
as Stage 2 assets. When such events oceur, the Group carefully considers whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL calculations or whether Stage 2 is
appropriate,
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55,
55.0.1

Risk Management {continued)
Credit Risk {continued)

Prabability of Default

Prabability of default (PD} is an estimate of the likelihaod of default aver a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on historical internal data available with the Group. While arriving at the PD, the Group
also ensuras that the factors that affects the macro economic trends are considered to a reasonable extent, wherever necessary. Group cakufates the 12 month PD by taking into account the past histerical trends of the
Loans/portfolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where there s 2 significant increase in eradit risk / credit impaired assets, lifetime PD has been applied.

Loss Given Default (L GD)

‘The LGD represents expected lasses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other attributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it is expected to be realised and the time value
of money. The Loss Giver Default {LGD) has been computed with workout methodology. Workout LGD is widely considered to be the most flexible, transparent and logical approach to Hulld an LGD model. Alang with
actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to estimate future recaveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation involves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries {as a part
of the workout process) on a particular facility, as a percentage of balance outstanding at the time of Defauit/Restructuring, The assessment of workeut LGD was then performed. Principal outstanding for each loan was
assessed, which went into the dencminator of the LGD calcufation. LGD computation has been done for each segment and sub-segment separately.

Exposure at Gefault (EAD}

The amount which the borrower will owe to the portfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Defaul (EAD), While the drawn ¢redit line reflects the explicit exposure for the Group, there might be variakle
exposure that may increase the EAD. These exposures are of the nature where the Group pravides future commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefare, the exposure will contain both on and off batance
sheet values. The value of exposure is given by the following formula:

EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor ¥ Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Currant outstanding amount
Credit Conversion Factor {CCF) = Expected future drawdewn as a praportion of undrawn amount
Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Group has committed and the drawn credit ling White the drawn exposure and limits for the customer are available, the modelling of CCF Is
required for computing the £AD

Farward iooking adjustments

“A measure of ECL is an unblased prabability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range of possible outcemes and using reasonable and suppertable information that is available without undue cost or
effort at the seporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.”

Ta fulfil the above requirement Group has incorporated forward looking informaticn into its measurement of ECL. The objective of developing a macroeconomic medel using exogencus macroeconamic variables [MEVs)
is to address the requirements of unbiased, probability weighted outcomes while taking into account current conditions as well as future economic conditions. This will be achioved by using the modef output to adjust
the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and prokability-waighted,

Exogenous macreeconamic parameters were used as independent {X) variables to predict the dependent (Y] vartable, Keeping In mind Ind AS reguirements around obtaining reliable and supportable information, without
incurring undue cost or effort- based on advice of risk committee members and econamic experts and consideration of a variety of external actual and forecast information, the Group formulates base case view of the
future direction of relevant economic varizhle as well as a representative range of other possible forecast scenario. This process involves developing two or more additicnal econcmic scenarios and considering the
relative probahilities of each outcome.

Data seurcing

Tha Group is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. Keeping in mind the above requirement macroeconomic information was aggregated from
Econemic Intelligence Unit {EIU), Bloomberg, World Bank, RBI database. The EIU data has a database of around 150 macroecancmic variables as well as their forecasted values. 8eyond 2022 macro-economic vatiatlns
are forecasted by mean reverting the values to their fong term average. External information includes economic data and farecasts published by governmental bodies and monetary authorities in the country,
supranational organisations such as the CECD and the IMF, and selected private sector and academic forecasters,

Prebability weighted scenario creations:

Te incorporate macroeconomic impact into probability-weighted, each scenarlo has an associated probability. In order to ensure consistency across macrogconamic models, these probabilities were calculated at an
overall fove! for beth Raetail and Non-Retail portfolios, keeping in mind that though the impact of a scenaric across different portfolios may differ based an endogenous factors, the probability of a scenarla unfolding is
purely exogenous, and hence should netvary.

The Group has identified and decumented key drivers of credit tisk and credit ksses for each portfolio of financial instruments and using an analysis of historical data, has estimated relationship botween marca-
economic variables and credit risk and credit losses.

Predicted refatianship between the key indicators and default and loss rates on various portfolios of financlal assess have been developed based on analysing historical data over the past 5 years.
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55, Risk Management [continued)
55.D.2 Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in The same geographical region, or have similar econamie features that would cause their ability to meet
contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions. Concentrations indicate the relative sensitivity of the Group's performance to developments affacting a particular
industry or gecgraphical location,

In order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Group's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio. Identified concentraticns of credit risks are controlled and
managed accordingly.

The following table shows the risk cancentration by industry for the companents of the balance sheat

Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2024

Particulars

Fi ial Assets

Cash and bank balances

Bank bafances other than cash and
cash eguivalents

Derivative financial instruments L
Trade receivables : 018
Loans ; 03227 : ; ; : IR i), 569,23
Investments f ] 2 4,447,34
Other financial assets : e

Total ; E : L 6.016.75

Loan and Other Comp_i?ments

Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2023

. Financial Government  Manufacturing Retail and Oil & gas Services Construction  Real Estate Agriculture Others Tatal

Particulars senvices whalesale

Financial Assets

Cash and bank halances 3,748,317 - - - - - - - - - 3,748.17
Stockintrade 2,138.72 - - - - - - - - - 2,138.72
Trade receivables 391.88 - - . - - - - - - 391.83
Loans 11,314.08 - - 5,854.18 - 24,518.91 - - - - 41,687.17
Investmants 27.835.43 - - . - - - - - - 47,835.48
Other financial assets 1,237.41 - - 192,07 0.09 - - - - - 1,425.57
Total 46,665.74 - - £,046.25 0.09 24,518.81 - - - - 77,230.99

Other Commitments 38495 . p - - 1,353.92 - - - - 178487
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55. Risk Management {continued)

55.D.3 Coliateral held and other credit enhancements

The tahles on the following pages show the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of financial asset

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Particulars e
2024 March 31, 2023

Principal type of collateral

Financial assets

Trade Receivables 351.88

Fixed deposits and other assets

Loans:

Corporate and Retail Credit 39,042.08 Investment and other tangible assets
Debt instruments and other investments at amaortised 1502.47 investments and Book debts
cost U

Total financial assets at amortised cost 40,936.43

Derivative financial instruments - Margin money

Financial assets at FWVTPL 17,609.23 Tangible assets

Total financial instruments at fair value through profit 17,609.23

or loss

Total Financial assets 58,545.66

Loan and other commitments ,704.70 1,399.92 Property; book receivables
Financial guarantee contracts 2,468.33 " 2,204.35 No Collateral

Total commitments 70 7,173.08 3,604.27 Tangible assets

Total 1,45,617.10 62,149.93
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55
55.0.4

Risk Management (continued):
Financial assets that are stage 3 and related collateral held in order to mitigate potential losses are given below:
As at March 31, 2024

;;M_a;(i_mumff st f .‘ ‘

risk{carrymg "
mount before :
ey

Particulars

Financial assets
}oans
Trade Receivables

Total financial assets at amortised cost

Loan commitments
Financtal guarantee contracts

11,573.60 11,334.94. 2,490.11-

Total

As at March 31, 2023

Maximum Associated ECL  Carrying amount Fair value of
exposure to credit collateral

Particulars risk (carrying

amount before

ECL}

Financial assets

Loans 8,193.03 7,500.78 692.25 816.33
Total financial assets at amortised cost 8,193.03 7,500.78 692.25 816.33
Loan commitments 311 0.54 2.57 400
Financial guarantee contracts * 386.99 0.09 386.90 38690

Total 8,583.13 7,501.41 1,081.72 1,207.23
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Risk Management {Continued}

55.E Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial fiabilities that are settled
by delivering cash or anether financial asset. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Group might be unable to meet its payment
obligations when they fall due as a result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows under both normal and stress circumstances.

Group has 2 Liquidity Contingency Poliey in place to ensure various liquidity parameters are defised and tracked regularly. Liquidity Management
Team is provided with update on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as welt as Stress scenario,

To manage the stressed circumstances the Group has ensured maintenance of a Liquidity Cushion in the form of Investments in Government
Securities, Mutual Funds and Quoted Equity Shares. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be liquidated in a very short period of time. A
liquidity cushion amounting to 5-9% of the borrowings is sought to be maintained through such assets. These would be to take care of immediate
obligations while continuing to henour our commitments as a going concern, There are available lines of credit from banks which are drawable on
notice which further augment the avaitable sources of funds. Funding is raised through diversified sources including Banks, Private issue of Debt,
Sub Debt etc to maintain a healthy mix.

As at March 31, 2024 - Analysis of financial liabilities, financial assets, derivatives and financial commitments by remaining contractual maturities

" Uptes . :-6Monthstol -~ lyearto3 - .Morethan3 . Total : -
Non-derivative financial assets Months ._:'."Q..\jéar_ : :-:'\,'"e'aré"' :. : .'y'realrs' RN ci

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivalent and other bank balances 10,646.98 ~  640.85 . 121198 . 65831  13,157.80

Trade receivables - L B2BRAS i e T T, 08 w05, 068.23
Loans 1853993 0 18,004.89 .. 14,979.80 . - 34,792.1% . 86316.83
Invastment | 40,009.7% ~6,268,54 7 2,324.78 1. 68,921.30 ' 1,17,521.41
Qther financial assets I S50, 1 670.86 000014329 1 2 1,349.49 - 12,665.85
Total undiscounted non- derivative financial assets 3436706 - . 2558193 .- 48B,659.91 . 10572122 .- 2,24,930.12
Non-derivative financial liabilities A l.l_p_to_G G .'_'S Munthstol 1 yéart93: More than3 - ::}'Tg_t_a! 5
. ‘Months =7 Ciygar ol years U years SRR
Trade payables - 10,208.58 00N 022,08 00 T AT,09 10,248.82
Debt securities o - 14,863.36 - '8,806,13 .. 50,601.15 - 26,545.09 :1,09,815.73
Borrowings {other than debt securities) T 14,800.02 . .. 10,568.42 - 25,010,11 |~ i26,798.02 : i 77,176.58
Q_EED§IE§ mmmmmmm ~ T M R S R ':'16.93:
Subordinated Liabilities Li 62087 0070955 ©13,893.49 01,757,260 16,981.27 ¢
Other financial liabilities i "388549 . °.1,60417 - . 4,50569 & '6,483.93 - 16,169.28
Total undiscounted non- derivative financial liabilities 43,985.40 .. 21,778.27  1,08,032.70 . 51,602.29 . 2,30,408.66

As at March 31, 2023 - Analysis of financial liabilities, financial assets, derivatives and financial commitments by remaining contractual maturities

Upto 6 6Monthstol 1lyearte3  Morethan 3

MNon-derivative financial assets Months vear vears years Total

Financial Assets - e
Cash and cash equivalent and other bankbalances ~~ 2,277.37 1,042.96 85.87 34197  3,74817
Trade receivables . . 3.ou88 - - - 391.88
Lozns S 10,980.02 634295 1516747 853673 4168717
Investmens . 888549 345.92 868136 1206143  29,974.20
Other financial assets - 42285  5m 247.00 754.70 1,429.57
Total undiscounted non- derivative finanial assets 2295761 833685 2418170  21,754.83  77,230.99
Non-derivative financial liabilities Upto & SManthstol  lyearto3  More than 3 Total

Months year years years

Financial Uabilities - e o o
Trade payables - a01EE - - e ames
Debt securities ‘ ~ 6,556.99 376568  19,65950  10,085.32  40,067.29
Borrowings {other than debt securities} .. 331975 4,636.74  18,260,17 2,533.78 28,750.44
Subordinated Liabilities o o 39150 5625 62238 - 107033
Other financial liabilities o 2,270.54 1,020.06 3,803.08 520779 1339147

Total undiscounted non- derlvative financial iabiliies 12,940.66 947873 4343513 1782659 Bl681.21
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55. Risk Management [Continued)

55.E Liguidity Risk (continued}

All derivatives which are entered into for trading purpose are shown in the earliest time band. With respect to other derivatives, the remaining
contractual maturity information has been given based on undiscounted cash flows.

As at March 31, 2024

o UptoB 6 Monthsto 1l “Iyearto3 . -Morethan3 = Tetal oo
Derivatives “Months T Cyear i years T years U D i
Net Settled derivatives entered into For trading purpose T ERBEBL .- oiaio.0 . . B253 ... i.31L34
Other Net settled derivatives _ T Ben o6z (asB28) . 5583 .. (435.80)
Total m_“ e RQABA 062 T {488.28) 13836 < (124.46)

As at March 31, 2023

Upto & 6Monthstol 1lyearto3  Morethan 3
Manths year years years
Net Settled derivatives entered into for trading purpose - - - .
Total . - - -

Derivatives Total

Contractual expiry of commitments
The table below shows the contractual expiry by maturity of the Group's commitments.
As at March 31, 2024

slyearto3 :-More than3 -

V Lyears oo years i
CAZBLAL s i e .

11,34 g S L R e

T 1.005.68 04T o 0.4

Particulars

Undrawn commitments for AIF funds
Estimated amount of contracts capital account
Undrawn loan commitments

Undrawn commited credit lines R . 410.91 Ha R
— - 2,938.83 - 1L506.76 . S 2T0AT 0,49
As at March 31, 2023
i Upto 6 6 Monthsto L lyearto3d Morethan3 Total
Particulars Months year years years
Undrawn loan and other commitments 1,046.01 105.33 584.20 0.38 1,735.92

1,046.01 105.33 584.20 0.38 1,735.92
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55.F

Risk Management (continued)
Market Risk {continued}

Interest Rate Risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash flows or fair values of financial
instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by
having pre-approved limits for repricing bands.

ALCO is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of floating and fixed rate
assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial instruments. The
Board has established [imits on the non—trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Group's policy is to menitor positions on a daily basis
and hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates (all other variables being constant) of the Group's
statement of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on
the profit or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non—trading financial assets and financial liabilities held at March 31, 2024 and at March 31,
2023

Interest rate sensitivity

2023-24
Increasein%  Effect on profit Effect on Equity Decreasein%  Effect on profit Effect on Equity
before tax hefore tax
INR Loans 0.25 53.714 45.19 0.25 (53.74) {45.19)
INR Borrowing 0.25 (147.58) (26.65) 0.25 147.58 26.65
IRF / Interest Rate Swaps 5/0.25 (125.82) - 5/0.25 125,82 -
2022-23
Increase in % Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Decrease in % Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
Profit Eqquity Profit Equity
INR Loans 0.25 5488 - 0.25 {54.68) -
INR Borrowing 0.25 (81.25) - 0.25 g2 -

Currency Risk
Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk arise
majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings.

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Group had significant exposure at the end of the reported periods. The analysis calculates
the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the INR (all other variables being constant) on the statement of profit
and loss {due to the fair value of currency sensitive non~trading monetary assets and liabilities) and equity {due to the change in fair value of
curvency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts used as cash flow hedges).

2023-24

Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Sensitivi
it |'tv nsi |‘| Y Decrease in % ens{ I\ﬂ. Yo ensit| X ity of
Profit Equity Profit Equity

Increase in %

Usb 5 0.10 0.10 5 {0.10) {0.10)

2022-23

Sensitivity of Sensitivity o Decrease in % Sensitivity of Sensitivity of

| .
ncrease in % Profit Equity Profit Equity

usD 0.25 4.50 - 0.25 {4.50) -
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55.
55.F

Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk {continued)
Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of

individual investment in eguity share prices.

2023-24
Increase in % Sens:tlvtty of Sensntn:uty of Decrease in % Sen5|tzw.ty of | -Sensntn..utv of
Profit Equity Profit Equity
Derivatives 5 320.70 - 5 sy -
Commaodity Derivatives 5 9.14 - 5 {9.14) -
Equity/ETF/SRs 5 695.74 - 5 {695.74} -
Mutual Fund 5 7191 - L L. |
Debt instruments (inc| preference) 5 382.00 63.37 5 {382.00} {63.37)
‘Government securities 0.25 70.87 - 0.25 {70.87} -
Nity link debenture 5 115.87 - 5 (115.87} -
AIF Funds 5 _ 35203 - 5 (352.03) -
Investments 5 90.41 - 5 (90.41) -
Loans classified at FVTPL 5 86.72 - 5 (86.72) -
2022-23
Increase in % Sen5|t|v1.ty of Sen5|t|\f|ty of Decrease in % Sensatl\n-ty of Sensntw_uty of
Profit Equity Profit Equity
Derivatives 5 - o - 5 - -
Others 5 5.88 - 5 {5.88) -

Index price risk

Index price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of equity

indices.
2023-24
3 Sensitivity of Sensitivity of . Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
I a,
ncrease in % profit Equity Decrease in % Profit Equity
Derivatives 5 } 273.55 " 5 (273.55) -
Embedded derivatives {Nifty-linked 5 {21.79) - 5 21.79 -
debentures) o
2022-23
. Sensitivity of Sensitivity of . Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
[ g o,
ncrease in % Profit Equity Decrease in % Profit Equity
Derivatives 0.25 - - 0.25 - -
Other price risk
2023-24
Increase in price  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Decrease in price  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
(%) Profit Equity {%) Profit Equity
Others - - - - -
2022-23
Increase in price  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of Decrease in price  Sensitivity of Sensitivity of
{%) Profit Equity (%) Profit Equity
Others _ 5 224.18 - 5 [224.18}) -
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55.G Total market risk exposure

Fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The
Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately. Such risks the market risk for the
trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR methodology that reflects the interdependency between risk variables. Non—trading positions are managed

31 March 2023

. 31March2024 .

‘Carrying amount

on-traded l'lSk‘

Particulars Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk

Assets B -

Cash a-nd"ca;s"ﬁ_ea.l_i\;réiéﬁt _énd 'o"_t'her bank balances 3,748.07 - 3,748.17

Derivative financial instruments o e R - - -

Investments L 117,521:41 00 4.81. 2997420 = 6,037.30 23,936.90

Loans i 69,097.68 .- +69,097,68" 41,687.17 - 4168717

Trade receivables 5,268.23 L 526823 . 391.88 B 391.88

Other financial assets --2;686.18 7 015027 .. 2,53591 1,42957 131  1,428.26

Total +2,08,762.68 1 67,278.25:1:.:1,41;484.43 ¢ 77,230.99 6,038.61 71,192.38
e s s SR MArchi 2028 g iR 31 March 2023

Particulars -Carrying amount . Traded risk. Non-traded risk Carrying amount Traded risk Non-traded risk

Liability - R g _ ,

Borrowings {other than debt Securities) =_::75,-695.02--.-.-:- Lo 75 595 oz‘g 28,750.44 - 28,750.44

Derivative financial instruments o "1'15'5 83 ' -

Deposits 's 16980 -

Debt securities 10054875 4006729 - 4006729

Trade payables +10,248.82 401.88 - 401.88

Subordinated liabilities :13,8'92'.0'5'_'_- 1,070.13 - 1,070.13

Other financial liabilities L :16,169.28 ; g 12,391.47 - 12,391.47

Total LT 726.73 0 1;402:42 0 2 16,324 31‘-5 82,681.21 - 82,681.21
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56. Composition of the Group

Proportion of awnership Proportion of ownership
:iﬁte_rést as at'__N_Iéri:h 31, interestas at March 31,
L 2023

Sr. Name of the Entity Note Country of Incorporation

Subsidiaries:

1 Nido Home Finance Limited India 95.00%
2 Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited India 100.00%
3 E‘de'lwe|ss Rural & Corporate Services India 100.00%
Limited _
4 Comtrade Commedities Services Limited India 100.00%
5 Ailiumn finance Private Limited a India 73.76%
6 Ecap Equities Limited b India 0.00%
7 ECL Finance Limited [ India 0.00%
8 Edelcap Securities Limited India 0.00%
__ 9 Edelweiss Retail Finance Finance Limited India 0.00%
10 Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund India 0.00%
_ 11 Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund India 0.00%
12 Edelweiss Muki Strategy Fund Advisors LLP India 0.00%
:igﬁdia Credit Investment Fund IlI India 0.00%
14 India Credit Investment Fund - 5 India 0.00%
Associate
Ed_elweis's S.ecurities and Investments India 0.00%
Private Limited
T f
EFB'}J Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land b india 52.31%
Limited)
Notes:

a. Stake in Allium Finance Private Limited has increased during the year as the holding is considered alongwith all of its subsidiaries as at
March 31, 2024

b.  With effect from 18th April 2023, the Company has increased its controlling stake in Ecap Equities Limited from 52.31% to 80.23% and
accordingly the same has been consolidated as a subsidiary as at March 31, 2024

¢.  With effect from 28th March 2024, the Company has increased its controlling stake in ECL Finance Limited from 25.72% to 100% and
accordingly the same has been consolidated as a subsidiary as at March 31, 2024
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57. Additional Information, as required under Schedule I to the Companies Act, 2013, of enterprises consolidated as Subsidiary or Associates
As at March 31, 2024
Net Assets i.e. Total Assets minus . \ Share in Other Comprehensive Share in Total Comprehensive
— Share in Profit or Loss
Total Liabilities Income Income
sr. As % of As % of
No Name of the Entity As % of A As % of A ¢ consolidated A consolidated
‘ consolidated . n:'c’,unt consolidated . ",w,un other . n.“tum total . An.“tunt
{T in Million) ) {¥ in Million) ) {T In Million) B (¥ in Million)
net assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
Income Income
Parent SR - P e " . e . o .
Edel Finance Company Limited - 193.41% 2602890 (129.31)% 79148 CfLe% 231 {108.37)% 793.79
Subsidiaries 77_77777» o o - o
Indian e . _ o o . . o
1 Nido Home Finance Limited o 60.54% 8,147.88 (3L.54)%  193.05  046%  (0.56) (26.28)% 192.49
2 Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited S  (49.09)% {6,606.44)  393.40%  (2,407.87) 032)% 038 328.67% {2,407.49)
3 Edelwelss Rural & Corporate Services Limited ~ 5201%  6998.85 167.69%  (1,026.37) 9.97% ~ {12.01)  141.76% {1,038.38)
4 ComtradeCommoditigsrsewices_}imi}ed B _ 006% 823  1.45% _{8.85) (0.03)% 0.04 1.20% {8.81)
"5 Allium Finance Private Limited o 10.65%  1,433.81  (20.500% 12547 Q00% - (17.13)% 125.47
6 EcapEquitiestimited - 69.81% 19394.83  (22871)%  1,399.89 0.20% _ {0.24) ~ {191.08)% 1,399.66
7  ECL Finance Limited - 20576%  27,691.08 - 0.00% - 000% - 000% -
8  Edelcap Securities Limited _ 3044% 409594 (45.65)% __________27$.43_'___ 0.50% (0.60) (3807)% 27883
9 Edelweiss Retall Finance Finance Limited S 4095% 551050  (2356)% 14418 0.52% {0.63) (19.60)% 143.55
710 Edelweiss Private Equity Tech Fund o 38a% 51626  3.13% (1943  000% - 2.61% (19.13)
11  Edelweiss Value and G'rowth_E_un_d__h S 5.04% 67837  1875% {11478} 0.00% - 15.67% {114.78}
12 Edelwelss Multl Strategy Fund Advisors LLP o 00e% 181 ~0.01% {0.08) 0.00% - 0.01%  {0.08)
T13  India Credit Investment Fund [l B L 000% - 58.06% {361.50) 0.00% -  4935% {361.50)
14 India Credit Investment Fund - 5 ~000% - '129.39%  (791.96) 0.00% 108.12% {791.96)
Nan-Controlling Interests S © 31.99% 4305.04 8.54% " (52.29) 0.26% _ (0.31) S T7aew 0 (5259)
" Adjustments arising out of consolidation - {557.14)%  (74,97854)  (147.61)% 903,49 {0.26)% 0.31 -123,38% 903,80
~ Associate ﬂnvestfﬁént as ;:gr_i'hé_'é_ﬁh‘i't'ﬁ rﬁeihdd)-ln_c[ian ) S - L o o
" Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited {0.12)%  {16.13) 264%  (613)  QO0O% - 220%  (1613)
"~ ECLFinance Limited - 179%  240.77 (5747)% 34991  90.62% {109.13) -32.87% 240.77
T el A "~ 100.00%  13,457.66 100.00%  (632.07)  100.00% (120.43) 100,00% (732.50)




As at March 31, 2023

Net Assets i.e, Total Assets minus

Share in Profit or Loss

Share in Other Comprehensive

Share in Total Comprehensive

As % of As % of
o " .
Sr. Name of the Entity A.s % of Amount A.s % of Amount consofidated Amount consolidated Amount
No. consolidated - consolidated s other L total L
(T in Million) ) {Tin Million) N {T In Million) i (¥ in Million)
net assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
income Income
__Edel Finance Company Limited i 402.95% 1523511 {32.7519% 65402 {(2327)% 034 {32.75)% 654.16
_Subsidiaries . _ e e e
[ndian [RO—— PR s a1+ —_—— e — ——— -
Mido Home Finance Limited {Formerly known as Edelweiss Housing
1 Finance Limited){ NHFL) _71013% 794468 (8.04)% 16063  {392.23)% 236 (8.16)% 162.99
_ 2 Edelweiss Investment Ad\ﬂser Limited ) (111.06)% "(4,198.95) 58.76% {1a73.21} - 2825% (0.17} 5875%  (1,173.38)
3 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited o 114.41% 432556 98.59%  {1,96855)  4s37% (273} 98.69% (1,971.28)
4  Comtrade Commodities Services Limited (Former!y knownas 0.19% 7.04 0.23% (4.64} 33.24% (0.20) 0.24%
____Edelweiss Comtrade Limited) B ~ e o S (a.84)
5 Alllum Finance Prwate Limited _ o o 34.68% 1,311.34 {1.84)% 36.71 0.00% - (1.84)% 3671
_ Non-Controlling Interests T _ 1959% 74054 9% 1832 (19.66)% 012 092)% 18.44
—_ Adjustments arising out of consolidation (558.50)%  (21,11638}  -19.34% 386.25 19.94%  {0.12) -19.33% 38613
Associate (investment as per the equity method) - Indian L
_ ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited} {12.38)% (468.03} 5.32% ~ {106.31) 0.00% - ~ 5.32% {106.31)
~ Total e | 100.00%  3,780.91 100,00%  (1,996.78) 100.00% {0.60) 100.00%  (1,997.38)

T Total
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58.A

55.8

Utilisation of 8orrowed funds and share premium

During the year, the Group has not advanced or loaped or invested funds to any other personis} or entity(ies), including fareign entities {Intermediaries) with the understanding that the intermediary shall :
(i) directly or inditectly lend or investin other persoas or entities ldentified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company {Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
(H} pravide any guaraniee, security or the fike 16 or an behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

During the year, the Graup has not recaived any fund from any person{s) or entitylies], including foreign entities [Funding Party} with the understanding [whether recorded in writing or otherwise} that the Company shall, other than as

disclosed in note {1) below:

(i} irectly or indirectly lend or investin other persons or entities identiffed in any manner whatsoever by er on behalf of the Funding Party {Uitimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii} provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Note (1)

During the year, the Group his taken laans from its holding company and given loan to its subsidizries/fellow subsidiary companies in the ordinary course of business, which are at Arm's length and the same is approved by Board Audit
Cormimnittee of the Group. The Group confirm that the below transactions are in accordance with relevant provisions of the Forgign Exchange Management Act, 1995 {42 of 1999] and Companles Act, 2013 and the such transactions are not

in violation of the Preventicn of Meney-Laundering Act, 2002 {15 of 2003},

For March 31, 2024

Name of Lender

Nature

Date

Tin milllons

Name of Company in which
investment done by the
Company

Nature

Date

Tin milltans

Remarks

Limited){ELL}

Ecap Equities Limited {Formerly known as Edel Land

Loan Taken

15-Mar-24

1,500.00

ECap Securities and Investments
Limited

teoan Given

15-Mar-24

1,500.00

1) Ecap Equities Limited
is 3 subsidiary and Ecap
Securities and
investments Limited is 2
felfow subsidiary of £del
Finance Cempany
Limited.

For March 31, 2023

Name of Lender

Nature

Date

Tin milltons

Name of Company in which
Investment done by the

Company,

Nature

Date

¥ in millicns

Remarks

Limited}{ELL)

£cap Equitles limited {Formerly known 3s Edel Land!

Loan Taken

Various Dates

320.10

ICIF Nl

3

AlF Units

5

27-Mar-23

320.10

1) ELLis assocfate of
ERCSL and ICIF ITis fellow
subsidiary of ERCSL

220.00

Edelwaiss Afternative Asset
Advisors Limited [EAAA)

Loan Given

28-Mar-23

220,00

1) Ecap Equities Limited
is associate of ERCSL and
EAAA is fellow subsidiary
of ERCSL

1,048.10

Edelwelss Alternative Asset
Advisors Limited (E1AL}

Lean Given

Varicus
Dates

1,048.10

1) ELLIs associate of
ERCSL and £lAL s
subsidiary of ERCSL

ECL Finance Limited [(ECLF}

Loan Taken

Various dates

386.70

Ecap Equitles Limited {Formerly
known as €del Land Limited} {ELL)

Lean Given

Varigus
Dates

386.70

1) ECL Finance is fellow
subsidiary of ERCSL and
ELLIs an associate of
ERCSL. 2 ERCSL has
repaid #s borrowing
frarm ECLF and ELL has
repzid its berrowing to
SRCSL.

Edel Finance Company Limited {EFCL)

Loan Taken

Various Dates

450.00

Edelcap Securities Limited
{Edelcap)

Loar Given

200.00

Edelweiss Securities &
Investments Pyt Ltd (ESIPLY

Various
Dates

430.00

1) EFCLIs holding
company of ERCSL and
Edeleap is subsidiary of
ERCSL. 2} Edelcap has
repald its borrowing
from ERCSL

200.00

1) EFCLis holding
company of ERCS1 and
ESIPL is fellow subsidiary
of ERCSL ES1PLhas
repaid its barrowing
from ERCSL.

Ede! Investments Limited [EIL)

Loan Taken

Various Dates

750.00

Nuvama Wealth and lnvestment
vimited (EBL)

Loan Given

Varlous
Dates

750.00

1) EiL is fellow subsidiary
of ERCSL and EBLis
assatiate of EFSL. 2)
Borrowings from EIL has
been repaig by ERCSL.
EBL has rapaid its
borrewing to FRCSL

Edelcap Securities timited [Edelcap)

Loan Taken

07-Apr-22

250.00

Nuvamaz Wealth and Investment
Limited (EBL}

Lean Given

Various
Dates

250.00

1) Edelcap is fellow
subsidiary of ERCSL and
EBL is associate of EFSL
2) Borrowfngs from
Edelcap has been repaid
by ERCSL. EBL has repaid
its borrowing to ERCSL

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSt}

toan Taken

28-Dec-22

957.09

ICIF I

Investment
AlF Units

in|

28-Dec-22

957.09

1} EFSt is ulimate
helding company of
ERCSL and ICIF 1l is fellaw
subsidiary of ERCSL

Lozn Taken

Variaus Dates

1,750.00

Edalweiss Retail Finance Limited
[ERFLY

Loan Given

26-Deg-22

1.750.00

1) £FSLis ultimate
holding company of
ERCSL and ERFL is faliow
subsidiary of ERCSL. ERFL.
has repaid its barrowing
{from ERCSL.

Loan Takers

Varicus Dates

450,00

Ecap Equities Limited {Formerly
known as Edel Land Limited)(ELL)

Loan Given

Various
Dates

450.00

1) EFSL is uitimate
holding company of
ERCSL and ELLis
assaciate of ERCSL. EXL
has repaid its borrowlng

Housing Finance timited){ NHFL)

Nide Home Finance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss|

Lean Taken

Various

Ecap Equities Umited {Formerly
known as Edel Land LimitedH{ELL)

toan Given

to ERCSE
4,490.00 |1) NHEL is subsidfary of
ERCSL and ELLis

assoclate of ERCSL.
ERCST has repaid its
borrawing from NHFL
ELL has repaidits

borrowing from £RC:
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58,  Utilisaticn of Borrawed funds and share premium

58.A During the year, the Group has nat advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities [}

fes} with the under

{1} directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persens or entities identified In any manner whatscever by or an behalf of the company (Uitimate Beneficiaries) or
(1} previde any grarantee, security or the lke to or an behalf of the Uitimate Beneficiaries

Note {2)

Based on the legal opinion abtained by the Holding Company, the transactions undertaken by the Campany {CIC-NBFC) of Barrowing/lendingfinvestment to and from its holding/subsidiary/affiliate/group entity(ies) {together referred to as
the 'Greup’} or borrewing frem outside the Group for onwerd lending/investments fer carnying on their respective business in ordinary course will nat artract reparting under Rule 11{e) of the Companies [Audlt and Auditors) Rules, 2014

(the “Rules”), Accordingly, transactiens undertaken by the Company is not disclased under the Rules.

§9.  Other Additional I y Inf

59.1. Title deeds of Imnmovable Froperties nat held in name of the Graup

The Group do not have any immovable properties where title deeds are not held in the name of the Group.

59.2. Loans and Advances

M

The Group has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans, without specifying period of repayment of principal ta companies. However, during the year the Group has executed
stipulate the schedule for repayment of principal. OF these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters or related parties as dafined in clause {76) of section 2 of the

Companies Act, 2013;

Type of Borrower

For March 31, 2024

For March 31, 2023

Amount of loan ar
advance In  the
nature  of  loan

Percentage ta the total
Loans and Advances in
the nature of loans

Amount of loan or
advance in the nature
of loan outstanding

Percentage to the total Loans and
Advances in the nature of loans

|Promotors Nit HA| Jal] NA|
Directers NIt NA) wil NA)
KMPs Nil Nl NAl
Related Partles Nil NA| i} MA|

59.

1

. Details of S8enami Property held

The Group does not have any Benami property, where any praceeding has been initiated or pending against the Group for holding any Benami praperty.

59.4, Security of current assets against borrowings
The Group has borrowings from banks or finandal institutions on the basis of security of current assets. Quartetly return and statement fited by the Group with such banks or financial institutians are in agreement with the books of account

of the Group, wherever appficable.

59.5. Wilful Defaulter
The Group is not declared as wilful defauiter by any bank or financial Institution or other fender,
59.6. Relationship with Struck off Companies
For March 31, 2024
Name of struck of Company Hature of Balance cutstanding Relationship with the
transactions with steuck off Company
struck off Company
Aditi Financlal Services Payable 0.03 Vendar
Suraj Petrolesm Receivahl 2.94 Customer
Shri Sham Fisheries Receivabl 0.39 Customer _
M.S5.Clothing Rezeivahbles 0.24 Customer
5 M Enterprises Receivables 0.05 Customer
davarl Traders Receivabl 0.11 Customer
Ayuh Meditech Solt Put L1d Rezeivabl 0.07 Customer
5ri Sal Simhadri Tyres. Receivables 0.0 Custo:
For March 31, 2023
Name of struck of Company Nature of Balanze outstanding. Relationship with the
transxetions with struck off Company
struck off Company
Anahat Organisation Development Consultancy Pvt Ltd  Professional Fees Nil Vendor s
Glossy Creation Private Uimited Receivables 959 Client
Shams Cable Netwark Office expense Ril Vendor .
Kamal Enterprises iseell il Vendor
M R D Enterprises Repairs & Nl Vendor
Maintenance R
59.7. Undisclosed income

549.8.

59.9,

60
601

60,2

The Group does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or distiosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the income Tax Act, 1961 {such as, search or survey or
any ather relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961,

The Group is in compliance with nymber of layers of companies, as prescribed under clause (87} of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017,

Detalls of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Group has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the finznciat year.

Other disclosure

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {NCSL), 8 former associate of the Holding Company, received an order frem NSE Clearing Ltd (NCL) in the matter of Anugrah Stock and Broking Pvt. Ltd (Anugrah or Trading membar) and Vrise Securities Pul.
Limited. The Group has provided an undestiking on hehalf of NCS1, to maintain sufficient unencumbered assets worth Rs. 92 crores on the instruction from NCL. The Securities Appeliate Tribunal {SAT) has upheld NCL order an Decamber 15,
2023. NCSL has appealed against the SAT arder at the Supreme Court of India, asserting compliance with all relevant laws and regulations. The appeal is in the process of admission with the Supreme Court of india.

NCSL believes that it has acted in accordance with the agreement entered with the trading member and in accordance with laws and lati A di

statement of the Group.

ly. there is no adjustment required in the consclidated financial

The Board of Directors in thelr meeting have approved the declsion of the Cormpany to exit from the Real estaze ("RE™) and Structured finance ["SF"} business and reduce the undarlying loan portfalio in the nesr to mid-term, Consequently,
the Company's busingss model with respect to the Real estate and Structured finance portfollo has changed from ‘hold to collect’ to *hold 1o collect and sell'. As per the requirements of Ind AS 109 "Financial Instruments, effective from
January 01, 2024, the Company has reclassified its Real estate and Strugtured finance portfolia measured at amortised cost amounling to ¥ 388 crore to fair value through other comprehensive income,




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Continued)
[Currency : indian rupees ir: millions)

61, Figures for the previous year have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to confirm to current year preseatation.
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DHIRAJ & DHEERAI
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of Edel Finance Company Limited
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Edel Finance Company Limited
{"the Company”}, which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the
Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financiai
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our informatien and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as
amended {“the Act”}) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2024, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity
for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing (SAs), as specified under section 143{10) of the Act. Our respensibilities under those Standards
are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements’
section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter
below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibifities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
standalone financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit inciuded the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the standalone financial statements. The results of our audit procedures,
including the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion

on the accompanying standalone financial statements.

511/512, Atlanta Estate, Opp. Westin Hotel, Western Express Highway, Goregaon (East), Mumbai - 400063
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Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us
after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134{5} of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; sefection and
application of appropriate accounting poficies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and arefree from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a whoie are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually orin the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone financial statements.



Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

(a) Impairment of investments in subsidiary and other group companies (as described in Note 10{a),
10(b) & 10(c) of the Standalone financial statements)

The Company has investments in various
subsidiaries amounting to Rs, 55,827.00
millions in form of equity shares,
compuisorily  convertible  preference
shares and compulsorily convertible
debentures which are not listed or
guoted.

These investments are valued at cost and
are required to be assessed for
impairment in accordance with Ind AS 36,
when any indicators of impairment are
observed.

In carrying out such impairment
assessmant, a significant judgement of
the management is involved in

estimating the investee company's

“value in use",in accordance with Ind AS
36. Estimation of thevalue in use requires
the management to apply appropriate
assumptions with respect to the growth
rates for future cash flow projections of
the investee company and discount rates
for determining present vatue of such
cash flows.

In view of the high degree of
management’s judgement involved in
estimation of the recoverable amount of
investments in unlisted subsidiaries and
the inherent uncertainty relating to the
assumptions supporting such estimates,
we considered this area as a key audit
matter.

Our audit procedures included considering the
appropriateness of the processes laid down by the
management for assessment of impairment in the value
of investments in subsidiary and other group companies
combined with procedures performed as follows:

+ Considered management’s assessment of
impairment wherever considered necessary and
assessed whether any impairment indicators existed

for investment in individual subsidiary and other
group companies.

+ Traced the net-worth of the individual subsidiary and
other group companies from their audited financial
statements,

* Assessed information used to determine the key
assumptions including growth rates and discount rates.

= Assessed the disclosures relating to investments in
subsidiary and other group companies included in the
Standalone financial Statements in accordance with the
Requirements of ind AS.

We have determined that there are no other key audit matters {other than mentioned above} to

communicate in our report




Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the standalone financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made available to us

after the date of this auditor’s report.

Qur opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes
in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and
application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that
were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and
fair view and arefree from matertal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is responsible far assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease aperations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as
a2 whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reascnably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these

standalone financial statements.




As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
amaterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve cotfusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal

control,

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143{3){i} of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adeqguate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, tomodify our opinion, Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to

cease to continue as a going concern,

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the standalone financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, refated

safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the standalone financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2024 and are therefore the key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes publfic disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest henefits of such

communication.




Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of india in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure
1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

{a)

(b)

{c)

(d)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and betief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

[n our opinion, proper books of account as required by taw have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books;

The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with
by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2024 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directorsis disqualified as on March 31, 2024 from
being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these standatone
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report

in “Annexure 2" to this report;

In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2024 has been paid /
provided for by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 187
read with Schedule V to the Act.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i The Company disclosed the pending litigations in Standalone Ind AS financial
statements and believes that the outcome of those litigations will not have a
materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of
operation which would impact its financial position (Refer Note 37 to the
Standaltone Ind AS financial statements);

i The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for whichthere were any material foreseeable losses;

iif. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education andProtection Fund by the Company.

iv. a} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other than as disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone financial statements, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any
other person(s) or entitylies}, including foreign entities {“Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of th

Ultimate Beneficiaries;




vi.

b} The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
other thanas disclosed in the note 43 to the standalope financial statements, no funds
have been received by the company from any person{s}) or entity{ies), including
foreign entities {“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢} Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us
to believe that the representations under sub-ctause (a) and {b) contain any material
misstatement.

No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used an
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of
recording audit trail {editlog) facility and the same has operated throughout the year
for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of
our audit we did not come across anyinstance of audit trail feature being tampered

with

For M/s Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm Registration Number: 102454W

r - \/L/
Shailendra Dadhich
Partner

Membership Number: 425098
UDIN: 24425098BKEIPH1872

Place of Signature: Mumbai

Date: May 10, 2024



Annexure 1 Referred to in Paragraph 1 Under the Heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of Our Report of Even Date

Re: Edel Finance Company Limited

i.(a) (A)The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(B} The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{(b) The Property, Plant and Equipment are physically verified by the management according to a
regular program of verification according to which verification is done every 3 years which, inour
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, the title deeds of the immovable properties included in property, plant and
equipment are held in the name of the company

(d)  The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or intangible assets during the
year.

(e} Based on the information and explanations furnished to us, no proceedings have been initiated
on or are pending against the company for holding benami property under the Benami
Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 {45 of 1988) and Rules made thereunder.

ii. {a) The Company’s business does not require maintenance of inventories and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(i}{a} of the Order is not applicable.

(b) During the year, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5
crores, in aggregate from banks and financial institutions on the basis of security of current

assets and accordingly, the requirement to report under this clause is not applicable.

iii, (a} The Company is a Core investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3(iit}(a) of the
order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures
conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and conditions of the lgans given are,

prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(¢} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, in the case of loans given, the repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments or receipts have been regular.

{d) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of
the records of the Company, there is no overdue amount for more than ninety days in respect of

loans given,

(¢) The Company is a Core Investment Company and hence reporting under clause 3{jii)e of the order
is not appticable.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the hasis of our examination of
the records, the Company has not given any loans either repayable on demand or without
specifying any terms or period of repayment and accordingly, the requirement to report under
this clause is not applicable.




iv.

V.

vi.

vii. {a}
(b)

viil.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans,
making investments and providing guarantees and securities, as applicable.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73,74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

Having regard to the nature of the Companies’ business activities, reporting under clause 3{vi) of the
order refating to maintenance of cost records under section 148(1) of the Act is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amount payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, value added tax, service tax, goods and service tax, cess
and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause {a) above which have not been
deposited as on March 31, 2024 on account of disputes are givenbelow:

Name of Statue Nature of | Amount Amount Pericd to | Forums
Dues under paid which it | where
dispute relates dispute is
(in pending
miilions)
income taxAct 1961 Income 70.63 - 2014-15 CIT (A}
Tax
fncome taxAct 1961 Income 44.25 - 2015-16 CIT (A}
Tax

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the company
examined by us, there is no income surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax
assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of

account.

ix. (a) According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanation

(c)

(d)

(e)

given to us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest to any lender as at the balance sheet date.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our audit procedures,
we report that the company has not been declared willful defaulter by any bank or financial

institution or government or any government authority.

According to the records of the company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the procedures performed by us,
and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the company, we report that nofunds
raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the company, we report that the company has not taken any funds from
any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its suhsidiaries or associates.




(f) The Company has raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiary
company as per details below. Further, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of such
loans raised.

Nature of Name of Amount | Name of | Relation Details of security
loan taken lender of loan the pledged
{Rsin Subsidiary
millions)
Term Loan JM Financial 3,000 | ECap Subsidiary | Pledge of Nuvama
Products Equities Wealth Management
Limited and Limited Limited shares held
JM Financial by ECap Equities
Credit Limited
Solutions
Limited
Non Catalyst 4,982.60 | Edelcap Subsidiary | Pledge of Edelweiss
convertible Trusteeship Securities Asset Reconstruction
debenture Limited Limited Company Limited
shares held by
Edelcap Securities
Limited

x. {a} The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(Including debt instruments) during the year, Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3(x)(a} of
the Order are not applicable.

(b} The Company has not made any preferential allotment of preference shares during the year.
Accordingly, the requirements of Section 42 and Section 62 of the Act are not applicable.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we report that no fraud by the company or on the
company have been noticed or reported during the year.

xi. {a)

(b} During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, report under section 143(12} of the Act, in Form ADT-4
was not required to be filed. Accordingly, the reporting under Clause 3{xi}{b} of the Order are not

applicable.

(c) During the course of our examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, and as represented to us by the management, no
whistle- blower complaints have been received during the year by the company. Accordingly, the
reporting under Clause 3(xi)(¢) of the Order is not applicable.

Xil. The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the reguirement to report on clause 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the
provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have
peen disclosed in the financial statements as required under indian Accounting Standard
(Standalone ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

xiii.




xiv. (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has an

internal audit system in commensurate with the size and nature of its business,

(b) The reports of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit were considered by us.

XV,

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 {xv) of the Order isnot applicable.

xvi. (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, we report that the Company being a

CIC company has registered under section 45-iA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b) The company has conducted non-banking financial Core Investment company (CIC) activities with

a valid Certificate of Registration {CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 during the year,

(¢c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on hooks and records

verified by us the Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations
made by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company continues to fulfill the criteria of a CIC.

(d) Based on the information and explanations provided by the management of the Company, the

xvil.

Xviii.

Xix.

XX.

XXi.

group does not have any other CIC other than the Company.

The Company has incurred cash losses of Rs 304.94 Cr in the current financial year and having
cash loss of Rs 32.13 crores in the immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year, and hence reporting
under this clause is notapplicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratio
ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowtedge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future
viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date
of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the companyas

and when they fall due.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there is no unspent
amount under sub-section (5) of section 135 of the Act pursuant to any project. Accordingly,
clauses (xx) (a} and (xx) {b) of the Order are not applicable.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statement of the Company. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has
been included in this report.




Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor’s Report of Even Date on the Standalone Financial Statements
of Edel Finance Company Ltimited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Edel Finance
Company Limited (“the Company”} as of March 31, 2024 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential companents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Contrals
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {“ICAY”). These
responsibifities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection
of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation
of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”} and the
Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
interpal financial controls, hoth issued by ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements was established
and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in alt material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adeguacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statement included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal controf
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether dueto fraud orerror.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to these Financial Statements

A Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies and
procedures that {1} pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly




reflect the transactions and dispasitions of the assets of the Company; {2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of
the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or

procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adeguate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statementswere operating effectively as at March 31, 2024, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in theGuidance Note issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For M/s Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAF Firm Registration Number:

W
er
M

Shailendra Dadhich

Partner

Membership Number: 425098
UDIN: 24425098 BKEIPH1872
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: May 10, 2024




Edel Finance Company Limited
Standalone Balance Sheet

(Cutrency: Indian rupees in millions)

ASSETS

Financial assets
{a} Cash and cash equivalents
{b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
(¢) Loans

{d) Investmcents
(e} Other Anuncial assets

Total financial assets

Non-financial assets

(a) Current tax assets (net)

(b) Deferred tax assets {nct)

{c} Property, Plant and Equipment

{d) Other non- financiaf assets
Total non-financial assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Financial linbilities

(a) Trade payables
(1) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(i1} total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises
and small enterprises

(b} Debt securities

(c) Borrowings (other than debt securities)

(d) Subordinated labilities

(e} Other financial liabilitics
Total financtal Kabilities

Non-financial liabHities
{a) Current tax liabilities (net)
(b} Provisions
{c) Other non-financial liabilitics
Total ron-financial liabilities

Equity
(a) Equity share capital
{b) Instruments entircly equity in nature
{c) Other equity
Total cquity

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Material accounting policies and accompanying notes are an integral part
of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached
For Dhiraj & Dheeraj

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 102454W

Shaitendra Dadbich
Partner
Membership No: 4250498

Mumbai May 10, 2024

AS at

As at
Note March 3§, 2024 March 31, 2023
7 8.84 20.63
8 30.30 -
9 24.60 9,549.53
0 72,945.70 31,802.86
1! 4.35 221
73,013.79 41,375.23
12 493,35 411.99
13 894.89 246.67
14 2122 224
15 3.69 2.80
1,396.15 663,70
74,439.94 42,038.93
i6 5.87 16.28
17 20,225.07 14,8100
18 2788218 11,775.09
19 lel.t7 161.12
20 2292 7.1
48,297.21 26,769.81
21 18.15 18.15
22 212 0.08
23 63.56 15.78
83.83 34.04
24 9.5660.75 7.566.75
25 9,650.00 1.850.00
26 6,812.15 6.018.36
26,028.90 15,235.11°
74,409.94 42,038.93
ito 36

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Yot

-

Vidya Shah
Executive Director

Ananya Suneja
Execytive Divector & CFO
DIN 107297081

DIN : 0027483t

May 10, 2024




Edel Finance Company Limited
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

{Currency: Indian rupees in mitlions)

Revenue from operations
Interest income

Fee income

Net gain on fair value changes
Total revenue from operations

Other income
Total Revenue

Expenses

Finance costs

Impairment on finaneial instruments
Employee benefits expense
Depreciation and amortisation
Gther expenses

Total expenses
Profit / {Loss) before tax

Tax expenses

Current tax

Deferred tax expense / {credit) {net)
Total Tax

Profit / {1.oss) for the yea.r

Other comprehensive income / (loss)

(a) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement gain / {loss) on defined benefit plans (OCH)
Income tax - OCI - that will not be rectassified

Tetal

Total comprehensive income / (loss)

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 100 each):

(1) Basic (%)
(2) Diluted (2)

Material accounting policies and accompanying notes are an integral

part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration N

ber: 102454W
.e)'ja

Shailendra Dadhich
Partner
Membership No: 425098

umbai May 10, 2024

Note For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

27 790.97 662.61
28 - 0.09
29 3,255.80 1,916.30
4,046.77 2,579.00

30 0.08 526.92
4,046.85 3,105.92

3l 3,764.11 2.184.91
32 (38.25) 30.80
33 39.15 2.69
14 0.13 0.14
34 139.23 2458
3,904.37 2,243.12

142.48 862.80

35

(649.00) 208.78

{649.00) 208.78

791.48 654.02

3.09 0.14

(0.78) -

2.31 0.14

793.79 654.16

36 71.715 9.04

36 775 9.04

| to 56

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

May 10,2024

Vidya Shah
Executive Director
DIN : 00274831

Ananyi Suneja
Exccutive Director & CFO
DIN ; (7297081




Edel Finance Company Limited
Standalone Statement af Cash flow

(Carreney: [ndian rapess in millions)

A Cash flow from operating activitles

Profic / {[.oss) before fax

Adjustments for;

Depreciation and amortisation

Profit on sale of investments

Impairment on financial instruments

Fair value of financial instruments

Provision for gratuity and compensated absences
Discount on commercial paper

Profit on sale of of fixed assets (net)

Operating cash flow befere workdng capital changes (net)
Adjustments for:

Decrease / {incresse) in other financial assets
Pecrease / (inceease) in loans

Sale/ (purchasc} of Investments

Decrease / (increase) in other non finumcial assels
Increase / (decrease) in trade payables

Encrease / (decrease} in non financial liabilities
Increase f {decrease} in otlier financial liabilities

Cash used in operating actlvities
Income taxes paid {net of refund}
Net eash used in operating activitles -A

B Cash flow from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Net cash generated from investing activities - B

C  Cash flow from financing activitics
Procoeds from issuance of Share capital {incjuding secarities premium)
Proceeds / (repayment) ftom Debl securities (refer note 1 below)

Proceeds / (repayment) from Borrowings (other than debt securities) (refer note

t below)
Net cash generated from financing activities » C

Net (deerease) / Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)

Cash and cash equivatent as at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalent as at the end of the year

MNotes:
1 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

For the year ended

For the yoar ended

March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
142.48 862.80
0.13 0.14
- (448.85)
(38.25) 30.8C
(3.255.80) (1.916.3%)
5.t} 0.24
422.87 %7.39
R {0.GR)
(2.723.44) {1,373.89)
{32.44) 412
9.563.18 {7.659.42)
(37.847.04) {1,843.57)
(2.89) (2.06)
(10.41) 0.96)
47.78 5497
(255.44) (1,256.58)
{31,300.70) (12,i70.39)
(81.36) (100.05)
(31,382.86) (£2,2T1.44)
0.05 011
6.05 .1t
14,000.00 2.000.00
5,241.78 9.348.40
16.128.44 931.63
31.370.22 12,280.03
(11.79) 9,710
20.63 1093
8.84 20.63

2 Above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under indirect inethod as set out in Ind A8 7 prescribed under the Companics Act (Indian Accounting

Standard) Rubes, 2015 under the companies Act 2013,

3 'The previous year figures have been regroupedfreclassified wherever necessary fo conform io current year's presentation,

Material accounting pulicies and accompanying notes are an
integral part of the Brnancial sfaterments

As per our report of even date atlached

For Dhiraj & Dheeraj
Chartered Accountants

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors

ICAT Firm chistrwoﬂuw

Partrer
Membership No: 425098

Mumbai May 10, 2024

Ananga Suacja Vidya Shah
Execdfive Dircctor & CFO Executive Director
DIN ; 07297081 DIN 00274831

B

Christirs D'Sokza

May 19,2024
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Edet Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

1. Corporate information:

Edel Finance Company Limited (‘the Company’) a public limited company domiciled and incorporated under the
provisions applicable in India under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company was incorporated on October 16, 1989
and is wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services Limited,

The Company was primarily engaged in the business of lending and investment and is registered with the Reserve
Bank of India (‘RBI") as a Systematically Important Non-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company (NBFC-
ND-SI). Company got converted to Core Investment Company (‘CIC’) as NBFC-CIC-ND-SI on 09" October, 2018.

2. Basis of preparation:

The standalone financial statements (also referred to as “financial statements”) of the Company have been prepared
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments
such as, derivative financial instruments, and other financial instruments held for trading, which have been measured
at fair value. The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest
million, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements:

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity in compliance with the Division III of the Schedule III
to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months after the reporting date
(current) and more than 12 months after the reporting date (non—current).

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet. They are only offset and
reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
without being contingent on a future event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following
circumstances:

+ The normal course of business
s The event of default
s The ovent of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and or its counterparties

Derivative assets and liabilities with master netting arrangements [e.g. ISDAs (International Swaps and Derivatives
Association)] are only presented net when they satisfy the eligibility of netting for all of the above criteria and not
just in the event of default.

4. Material accounting policy

4,1 Recognition of interest income and dividend income
4.1.1 Effective interest rate (EIR):

Under Ind AS 109 interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method for all
financial instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCI. The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life of the financial
instrument or, when appropriate a shorter period to the gross carrying amount of financial instrument,

The EIR is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that
represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the financial asset.
Hence, it recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and other




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

4.1.2

4.2

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasens other than credit
risk, the adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset
in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest income.

Interest income:
The Company calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the gross carrying amount of financial

assets other than credit-impaired assets.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as “Stage 3°, the Company
calculates interest income by applying the EIR to the amortised cost (net of expected credit loss) of the
financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the Company reverts to
calculating interest income on a gross basis,

Penal interest income on delayed EMI or pre EMI is recognised on receipt basis.

Dividend income:
The Company recognised dividend income when the Company’s right to receive the payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the
Company and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Fee and Commtission Income:
Fee and commission inceme include fees other than those that are an infegral part of EIR, The Company
recognises the fee and commission income in accordance with the terms of the relevant contracts /
agreement and when it is probable that the Company will collect the consideration.

Other Income

Other Income represents income earned from the activities incidental 1o the business and is recognised
when the right to receive the income is established as per the terms of the contract. Other ancillary
charges are recognized upon realisation.

Financial instruments:

Date of recognition:

Financial assets and liabilities with exception of leans and borrowings are initially recognised on the
trade date, i.e. the date the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrumem.
This includes regular way trades: purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Loans are
recognised when funds are transferred to the customers’ account. The Company recognises borrowings
when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

Initial measurement of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly atiributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Day 1 profit and loss:

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the
fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the
Company recognises the difference between the transaction price and fair value in net gain on fair value
changes, In those cases where fair value is based on models for which some of the inputs are not
observable, the difference between the transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only
recognised in profit or foss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

4.2.4 Classification & measurement categories of financial assets and liabilities:

43

4.3.1

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business modei for managing the assets
and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to
hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. The changes in carrying value of financial assets is recognised in profit and loss
account,

Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose objective is to
hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

e If those sales are infrequent {even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

¢ If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale approximate
the collection of the remaining contractual cash flow

e Seclling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

A financial asset is measured at FYTOC! if it is held within a business model whose objective is achieved
by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the confractual terms of the
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and inferest
on the principal amount outstanding. The changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Other
Comprehensive Income.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categorics are measured at FVTPL, The
Company measures alf financial assets classified as FVTPL at fair value at each reporting date. The
changes in fair value of financial assets is recognised in Profit and loss account.

Financial assets and liabilities:
Amortized cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial instruments other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asscts, the effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees and points
paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) excluding expected credit losses, through the expected life of the debt
instrument, or, where appropriate. a shorter period, to the gross carrying amount of the debt instrument
on initial recognition.

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principat repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. On the other hand, the gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amoriised cost of a
financial asset before adjusting for any loss allowance.




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

43.2

43.3

4.3.4

43.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

Financial assets held for trading:

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased primarily for
short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of financial instruments
that are managed together, for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit taking.
Held-for-trading assets are recorded and measured in the batance sheet at fair value. Changes in fair value
are recognised in net gain on fair value changes.

Investment in equity instruments:

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments (other than subsidiaries, associates, and
other group companies) at fair value through profit or loss, unless the management has elected to classify
irrevocably some of its strategic equity investments to be measured at FVTOCI, when such instruments
meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. Such classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. Investments in
subsidiaries and associates are carried at cost as permitted under Ind AS 27 (Separate Financial
Statements). The investment in other group companies are carried at cost less provision for impairment.
(subsidiaries, associates, and other group companies).

Financial liabilities:

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial guarantees,
and derivative financial liabilities.

Derivative financial instruments:

The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments 1o manage its exposure to interest
rate, market risks.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date the derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequenily re-measured to their fair value at the end of each reporting periad, The resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds:

The Company measures debt issued and other borrowed funds at Amortised cost at each reporting date.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking inte account any discount or premium on issue funds, and costs
that are an integral part of the EIR.

The Company issues certain non-convertible debentures, the return of which is linked 1o performance of
specified indices over the period of the debenture. Such debentures have a component of an embedded
derivative which is fair valued at a reporting date. The resultant “net unrealised loss or gain’ on the fair
valuation of these embedded derivatives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The debt
component of such debentures is measured at amortised cost using yield to maturity basis.

Financial assets and financial labilitics at fair value through profit or loss:

Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value under Ind AS 109, Management only designates an instrument at FVTPL upon
initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

o The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise
arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or losses on them on & different
basis; or

» The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilitics, which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy; or




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

4.3.8

4.4

o The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do net significantly modify
the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract. or it is clear with little or no analysis
when a similar instrument is first considered that separation of the embedded derivative(s) is
prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair value. Changes
in fair value are recorded in profit and foss with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities
designated at FVTPL due to changes in the Company’s own credil risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the own credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest
earned or incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost,
respectively, using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be measured at
FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate.

Financial liabilities and equity instraments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any confract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from
the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or terminates a business line.
The Company didn’t reclassify any of its financial assets or liabilities in current period and previous
period.

Derecognition of financial Instruments:
Derecognition of financial asset

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financiat asset or a part of 2 group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired. The
Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both transferred the financial asset and the transfer
qualifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset if, and only if, either

¢ The Company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or

¢ It retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset. but assumed a
contractual obligation to pay the cash flows in full without material delay to third party under pass
through arrangement.

Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual rights to
receive the cash flows of a financial asset (the ‘original asset’), but assumes a contractaal obligation to
pay those cash flows to one or more entities (the ‘eventual recipients’). when all of the following
conditions are met:

e The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients unless it has collected
equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with the right to full
recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates.

» The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the eventual
recipients.
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The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients without
material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitied to reinvest such cash flows, except for
investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the period between the
collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual recipients.

A transfer only qualifies for derecognition if either:
¢ The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

+ The Company has neither transferred nor retaincd substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the practical ability
to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that ability unilaterally
and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

The Company also derccognises a financial asset, when the terms and conditions have been
renegotiated lo the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new financial asset. with the difference
recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already been
recorded. The newly recognised financial assets are classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement
purposes, unless the new financial asset is deemed to be POCI.

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the medification does
not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted at the original EIR, the
Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an impairment loss has not already
been recorded.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial lability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or
expires. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference between the carrying value of the originat financial liability and the constderation paid,
including modified contractual cash flow recognised as new financial liability, is recognised statement
of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial assets:

The Company recards provisions based on expected credit loss model (“ECL”) on all leans, other debt
financial assets measured at amortised cost together with undrawn loan commitment and financial
guarantee contracts, in this section all referred to as “Financial instrument”. Equity instruments are not
subject to impairment.

ECL is a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. A credit loss is the difference between the cash
flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the entity expects
to receive discounted at the original effective interest rate. Because ECL consider the amount and timing
of payments, a credit loss arises even if the entity expects to be paid in full but later than when
contractually due.

Simplified approach

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade
receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in
credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition. The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment
loss allowance on portfolio of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed
default rates over the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant
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financing component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.,

General approach

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has been a
significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initiat recognition. If, on the other hand. the credit risk on
the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses
(12m ECL). The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant
increases in the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition instead of an evidence
of a financial asset being credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default occurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default (PD), loss given
default {LGD) (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD). for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date,
together with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by default date determined
based on historical trend, the Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.

The Company provides for expected credit loss on group loans based on its estimates of credit assessment
on such loans subject to minimum 0.40% on 2all group loans as per Company estimates and RBI IRACP
prudential norms.

Company categories its financial assets as follows:

Stage 1 assets:

Stage 1 assets includes financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the reporting date. For these assets, 12-month ECL
{resulting from default events possible within 12 months from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 2 assets:

Stage 2 Assets includes financial instruments that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition For these assets lifetime ECL (resulting from default events possible within 12 months
from reporting date) are recognised.

Stage 3 assets:
Stage 3 for Assets considered credit-impaired the Company recognises the lifetime ECL for these loans.
The method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with the PD set at 100%.

The ongoing assessment of whether a significant increase in credit risk has occurred for working capital
facilities is similar to other lending products. The interest rate used to discount the ECLs for working
capital facilities is based on the average effective interest rate that is expected to be charged over the
expected period of exposure to the facilities.

Company recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or toss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount theough a foss allowance account,
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The expected credit losses on the loan commitment have been recognised fogether with the loss
allowance for the financial asset.

The Company’s product offering includes a working capital facilities with a right to Company to cancel
and/or reduce the facilities with one day’s notice. The Company does not limit its exposure to credit
losses to the contractual notice period, but, instead calculates ECL over a period that reflects the
Company’s expectations of the customer behaviour, its likelihood of default and the Company’s future
risk mitigation procedures, which could include reducing or cancelling the facilities.

Collateral valuation:

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where possible. The
collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securitics, letters of credit /guarantees, real estate,
receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements.
Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded on the Company’s balance sheet. However, the fair value
of collateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-
assessed on a quarterly basis. However, some collateral, for example, securities relating to margin
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held as collateral.
Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market value are valued using models,
Non-financial collateral, such as real estate, is valued based on data provided by third parties such as
mortgage brokers, or based on housing price indices.

Write-offs:

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company has no
reasonable expectation of recovery.

Determination of fair value:

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at cach reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either;

¢ In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
¢ In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability,

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an assct or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or lability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best
interest. A fair value measurement of a nen-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have becn derived, financial instruments are
classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised below:

Level 1 financial instruments:

Those where the inputs used in the valuation are unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for
identical assefs or liabilities that the Company has access to at the measurement date. The Company
considers markets as active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable price quotes
available on the balance sheet date.
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Level 2 financial instraments:
Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant, are derived from directly or
indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 financial instruments:

Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the measurement as whole.

For assets and labilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization {hased on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company periodically reviews its valuation techniques
including the adopted methodologies and mode! calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various technigues to estimate the credit risk associated with its financial
instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based approach that estimates the expected
net exposure per counterparty over the full fifetime of the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit
risk of the individual counterparties for non-collateralised financial instruments,

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-instrument basis and
reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end of the reporting period.

Operating leases:
Company as a lessee:
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the partial retrospective approach.

The Company assesses at contract inceplion whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases except
for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make
lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.¢., the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, [ess any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses. and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated
useful lives of the assets,

Lease liability

At the commencement date of the lease. the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present
value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed paymenis
{including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of intercst
and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (¢.g.,
changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used fo determine such lease
payments) or a change in the assessment of an optien to purchase the underlying asset.

Short term lease:

The Company has elected not to recognise right of use asset and lease labilities for short term leases of
property that has lease term of 12 months or less. The Company recognises lease payment associated
with these leases as an expense on a straight line basis over lease term,
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Earnings per share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share rcflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other contracts to
issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted earnings per share is computed
by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity shareholders for the year by weighted average
number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average rumber
of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

Foreign currency transaction:

The Standalone Financial Statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is also functional currency
of the Company. Transactions in currencies other than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non~monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated
at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Retirement and other employee benefit:

Provident fund:

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme which is a defined
contribution scheme. The contributions are accounted for on an accrual basis and recognised in the
statement of profit and loss.

Gratuity:

The Company's gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees
have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods, that benetit is discounted to
determine its present vatue, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value
of the obligation under such benefit plan is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using
the Projected Unit Credit Mcthod. Benefits in respect of gratuity are funded with an Insurance Company
approved by Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority (IRDA).

Re-measurement, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling. excluding
amounts inchuded in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets
{excluding amourts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised
immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OCI
in the period in which they occur.

Remeasurement are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods,

Compensated absences:

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annuat
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognises the charge in the
statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such non-vesting accumulated leave
entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary. The cost of providing annual leave benefits
ts determined using the projected unit credit method.
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Employee Stock Option Plans (ESOPs) / Stock Appreciation Rights (SARs):

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited ("EFSL”)} has Empleyee Stock Option
Plans and Stock Appreciation Rights in force. Based on such schemes, parent entity has granted an
ESOP/SAR option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would vest in a graded manner to company’s
employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, EFSL has charged the fair value of such stock options,
Company has accepted such cross charge and recognised the same under the employee cost.

Property, plant and equipment:

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to—day servicing, less
accumulated depreciation and accumalated impairment in value. Changes in the expected useful life are
accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes
in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component
accounted for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repaiss and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss during the reporting period, in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold fand and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation is provided on a written
down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended use or put to use whichever is earlicr.
In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto the date of disposal.

As per the requirement of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the useful
lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule IT for
calculating the depreciation, The estimated useful lives of the fixed assets are as follows:

Nature of assets Estimated useful lives
Building {other than factory building) 60 years

Vehicles 8 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computers - servers and networks 6 years

Computers - end user devices, such as desktops, laptops, ctc. 3 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derccognised upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. The carrying amount of those
components which have been separately recognised as assets is derecognised at the time of replacement
thereof. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment
is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property. plant and equipment are
reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Intangible assets:

Intangible assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and are carried
at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any. Intangibles such as software are amortised
over a period of 3 years based on its estimated useful life.

Impairment of non-financial assets:

The Company assesses at cach balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the Company estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the recoverable amount of
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cash generating unit which the assct belongs to is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is
reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in
the statement of profit and loss. [f at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment toss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment is reversed
subject to a maximun carrying value of the asset before impairment,

Provisions and other contingent liabilities:

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, If the effect of the time value of money is material,
provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows to net present value using an
appropriate pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and,
where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an outflow of
resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is disclosed as a
contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising
from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of
one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the
Company, where the possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the recognition
of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income is virtually certain, then
the related asset is not a contingent asset and i3 recognised.

Income tax CXPENSEs:

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax:

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from “profit before
tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible. The Company’s current tax is
calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax:

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the compautation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced
to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or
part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rales (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reperting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow
from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting peried, to recover or settle
the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
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4.18.3 Current and deferred tax for the vear:

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

4.19  Cash and cash equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less.

5 Material accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions :

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 4. the management is required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period
of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies:

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the management has made
in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements.

5.1 Business model assessment :

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely payments of
principal and interest (SPPI) and the business model test. The Company determines the business model
at a level that reflects how Company’s of financial assets are managed together to achieve a particular
business objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how
the performance of the assets is evaluated and their performance is measured. the risks that affect the
performance of the assets and how these arc managed and how the managers of the asseis are
compensated. The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
prior to their maturity to understand the quantum, the reason for their dispesal and whether the reasons
are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held. Monitoring is part of the
Company’s continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in
business model and so a prospective change to the classification of those assets

5.2 Significant increase in credit risk:

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2
or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly increased the Company
takes into account qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable forward-looking information,
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future. and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, as described
below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however,
may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company.
Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Fair value of financial instruments:

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous} market at the
measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. When the fair values of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models, The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
estimation is required in establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates include considerations of
liquidity and model inputs related to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value
adjustments, correlation and volatility.

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) Method:

The Company’s EIR methodology, as explained in Note 4.1. I, recognises interest income / expense using
a rate of return that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates at various stages
and other characteristics of the product life cycle including prepayments and penalty interest and charges.

This estimation, by nature requires an element of judgement regarding the expected behaviour and life
cycle of the instrument, as well expected changes India’s base rate and other fee income, expenses that
are integral part of the instrument

Impairment of Financial assets:

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets except assets valued at
fair value through Profit & Loss account (FVTPL) requires judgement, in particular, the estimation of
the amount and timing of future cash flows and colateral values when determining impairment losses
and the assessment of a significant increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of
factors, changes in which can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying assumptions
regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of the ECL models that are
considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

s PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future conditions.

» The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk and
so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit loss and
the qualitative assessment

*  The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis

»  Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs

» Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs, such as
unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD

¢ Selection of forward-looking macreeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings, to
derive the economic inputs into the ECL models
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It has been Company’s policy to regularty review its models in the context of actual loss experience and
adjust when necessary.

Impairment of Non-Financial assets:

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired.
If any indication exist, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is higher of an asset’s fair value less cost of disposal and its value in use. Where the carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount.

Provisions and contingent liabilities:

The Company operates in a regulatory and legal environment that, by nature, has a heightened element
of litigation risk inherent to its operations. As a result, it is involved in various litigation, arbitration and
regulatory investigations and proceedings in the ordinary course of its business.

When the Company can reliably measure the outflow of economic benefits in refation to a specific case
and considers such cutflows to be probable, the Company records a provision against the case. Where
the probability of outflow is considered to be remote. or probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made,
a contingent liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the probability and amount of losses. the Company
takes into account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter and historical
evidence from similar incidents. Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

Provisions for Income Taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes including judgment on
whether tax positions are probable of being sustained in tax assessments. A tax assessment can involve
complex issues, which can only be resolved aver extended time periods.

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated. They are based on histerical experience and other
factors, including expectation of future events that may have a financial impact on the Company and that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.




Edel Finance Company Limited
INotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

7. Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks

- in current accounts 884 2063
8.84 10.63
8. Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Long term bank deposits with banks 30.00 -
Accrued interest on fixed deposits 0.30 -
30.30 -

Naoles;
1. Fixed deposit and other balances with banks earns interest at fixed rate or floating rates based on daily bank depestt rates.

2. Fixed deposit aggregating 0 T 30 million {previous year T Nil) have been pledged against term loan taken by the Company.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3t, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions})

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

9. Loans {at amortised cost)

Term Loans;

Corporate credit 24.70 9,587.88
Total gross 24.70 9,587.88
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.10} (38.35)
Total net 24.60 9,549.53

Cotlateral :

Unsecured 2470 0.587.88
Total gross 24.70 9,587.88
Less: Impairment loss allowance 0.1 (38.35)
Total net 24.60 9,549.53

Loans in India
Public sector - -

Others 24.70 9,587.88
Total gross 24.70 9,587.88
Less: Impairment loss allowance (0.10) (38.35)
Total net 24.60 9,549.53




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 3§, 2024
(Currency: Indiar rupees in millions)

9.A Credit quality of assets

The table befow shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure o credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification, The amounts presented are gross without reduging
impairment allowances. Details of the Company's mternai grading for stage classification are explained in risk management disclosure and policies on ECL allowances ate set out in material

accounting policy information.

a) Credit guality of assets

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31,2023
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
Performing
High grade 24.70 - - 470 9.587.88 “ - 9,587.88
34,70 - - 24.70 9,587.88 - - 9.587.88

b) Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount and correspending ECL alfewances for toans and advances to corporate and retail customers:

The following disciosure provides stage wise reconcifiation of the Company's gross carrying amount and ECL allewances for loans and advances to comporates custemers. The mansfers of
financial assets represents the inspact of stage transfers upon the gross carmrying amount and associated allowance for ECL. The aiet remeasurement of ECL arising from stage transfers represents
the increase or decrease due to these tfransfers.

The “New assets originaied /repayments received {net)” represent the gross carrying amount and associated allowance ECL impact from transactions within the Company's lending portfolio.

Beconciltation / mavement for the vear ended March 31, 2024

Noa Credit Impaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross Altowance |Gross carrying| Allowance | Gross carrying | Allowance Gross Allowance
Carrying | for ECL Amount for ECL Amount for ECL carrying for ECL
Particulars Amount Amount
Opening Balance 9,587.88 38.35 - - - ’ - 9,587.88 38.35
New assets ongirated / (repayments) received {net) (9,3563.18) {38.25) - - « - (9.563.8) (38.25)
Closing Balance 24.70 8.10 - - - - 24.7¢ 6.10
Reconciliation / movement for the vear ended March 31, 2023
Non Credit Impaired Credit Impaired Total
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
Gross Ablowance |Gross carrying| Allowance | Gross carrying | Allowance Gross Allowance
Carrying | for ECL Amount for ECL Amount for ECL. carrying for ECL
Particulars Amount Amount
Opening Balance 1.888.46 7.55 - - - - 1,888.46 7.55
New assets criginated / {repayments) received (nei} 7,699,427 30.80 - - - - 769542 30.80
Closing Balance 9,587.88 38.35 - - - - 9,587.48 38.35




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Cuzrency: Indian rupees in millions)
18, Investiments

10.A Summary of Investments

As at March 31, 2024 At lair value At cost
. . {subsidiaries/
At Amortised Tiesignated at fair Subtotal Totak
Through OCT | Through P&L _ fellow .
cost (1) P ey value thxl'oug(l;l’roﬁt 5 = (2+34+4) subsidiaries/ {7)= (14516}
or loss (4) associates) {6}
Equily instruments - - 7.291.1% - 729119 62,858 81 70,150.00
Debt Securities - - 277570 - 277570 - 2,775.70
Preference Shares 20.00 - - - - - 20.00
Total - Gross {A) 2000 - 10,066.89 v 10,066.89 62,858,81 72,945,770
(i} investments outside India - - - - - - -
(i) Invesiments in India 2080 - 10,066,389 - 10,066.89 62,858 81 72.945.70
Taotal (B} 20,00 - 10,066.89 - 10,066.89 62,858.81 72,945.70
Less: Allowance for impairment (C) - - - - - - -
Tatal Net {A-C) 20.00 - 10.066.89 - 10,066.89 62,858.81 72.945.70
As at March 31, 2023 At Fair value At cost
: . . (sabsidiaries!
At Amortised Designated ai fair Subtotal Total
Through OCT{ Throagh P&L - fetlow e
cost (1} @ ) value lh:ougf; Profit] 5= (243+4) subsidiaries/ {7)= {E+3+6)
or boss {4) associates) (6)
Equity instruments - - 4,103 .16 " 4,103.16 24.821.08 28,924.24
Debt Sccurities - - 2.858.62 - 2.858.62 - 285862
Preference Shares 2000 - - - - - 2000
Totak - Gross {A} 20.00 - 6.961.78 - 5,%61.78 24,821,038 31,802.86
(1) Investinents outside India - - - - - . .
(ii} Investments in India 20.00 - 6,961.78 - 6.961.78 24,821.08 31,802,866
Totat (B) 2006 - 6.961.78 - 6,961.78 24,821.08 31,802.86
Less: Allowange for intpairment {C) - - - - - - -
Totat Net {A-C} 20.00 - 6,961.78 - 6,961.78 24,821.08 31,802.86

Note:
Refer note 10.B & 10.C for further details

160.B Investments in redeemable preference shares measured at amortised cosk:
i} Credit quality of assets:

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Company's year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allawances. Details
of the Company's internal grading for stage classification are explained in Note 46.1.1 and policies on ECL allowances are set out :n Note 4.6

Particulars March 31, 2624 March 31, 2023
Stage 1 Stage 11 Stage I Total Stage | Stage I Stage M1 Total
Performing 2000 . - 20.00 2000 - - 20.00
High grade - - - - - - - -
20.00 - - 20.00 20.00 - - -

i} Reconciliation of changes in gross carrying amount for investments in redeemable preference shares:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Stage | Stapge 11 Stage IIT Total Stage | Stage 11 Stage HI Total

Gross carrying amount - opening balance 20.00 - - 20.00 - - - -

Assets acquired or recognised - - - - 2060 - - 2000
Unwinding of discount (recognised in interest income) - - - - -
Changes to contractual ¢cash flows due to modifications not
resulting in derecognition - - - - . . _ .
Assets derecognised or matured - - - - -

Ciosing balance 20,00 - - 20.00

Refer note 10.C for further details

f
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

19,

Investments (continued}

IN.C Scrip wise details of Investments

As al March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023

Face Value (Rs,) Queantity Amount Face Value (Rs.} Quantity Amount
Equity tnstruments (Fufly paid up)
Ar Cost
Subsidiary cempany
Edelweiss Rurad & Corporate Services Limited
Equity instruments ¥% 10 6,65,80,367 5,556.62 10 46535367 535617
Investments in Compulsory Convertble Preference Shares 19 13,59,955 500.00 10 1359955 500.00
8.01% Unsecured Compulsory Convertible Debenture® 1,000 1,25,00,000 12,500.00 1008 90,00,000 9,000.81
Nidoe Home Finance Limited 190 2.75,80,225 293453 0 2,75,80225 293453
Edelweiss Retai! Finance Limited 10 30,00,800 264.00 - - -
0.01% Unsecured Compulsory Conventible Debenntre- ECap Equities 1,000 20,00,006 2.000.00
Limited - - -
0.01% Unsecured Compuisory Convenible Debenture- ECap Equities 19 76,0000 000 7.606.00
Limited - - -
ECL Finance Limited 1 2.13.82,16,650 24,471 85 - . .
ArCost
Feliow Subsidiaries
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - - - 10 30,00,000 264.00
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited** 10 69 67613 73339 10 69 67,613 71189
0.01% Unsecured Compuisery Converttble Debentare- ECap - - - 1,000 20,00,000 2.000.18
Equiies Limited
ECL Finance Limited - - - 1 55,00,00,000 4031.50
Edelweiss Altemative Asset Advisors Linuted 19 31.81.872 31987 . - -
Al Cost
Associate companies
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 10 2,94.473 5,963.05 - - -
Others
At fair value through profit and foss accaunt
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerly Edelweiss 10 18,34 455 7.291.19 10 1834455 4103 16
Securities Limited)
Total (A} 70,150,600 28.924.24
Pebt Securities
At fair value throngh profit and less accoimt
9.75% Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Perpetual Bonds 16,00.000 71 60.26 10.00,060 71 60.24
10.25% ECL Finance Limited Perpatual Bonds © 10,00.000 2,400 2,692.44 10.00,000 2A00 1.691.45
ECap Equities Limited- Nifty Linked Debenture - - - 1,060,000 364 8615
Edelweaiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited - Nifty Linked 1.00,080 107 23.00 1,056,000 107 20.78
Debenture
Total (B} 177570 2,858.62
Gthers - Non-Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares
At Amortised Cost
Subsidiary company
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 10 20,00,000 2000 1] 20,006,000 20.00
Total (C} 20.00 20.00
Total {A+B+(} 72.945.70 31.802.86

@@ 65,00,000 equity shares are pledged with Beacon Trusteeship Limited as security against Non-Convertible debentures issued by the Campany
* 90,00,000 CCDs are pledyed with Beacon Trustoeship Limited as security against issue of Non Convertible Debentures issued by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

** Equity share invesiments are pledged with Catalyst Trusteeship Limited as security against issue of Nifty Linked Debentures isssed by ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited)
@ Debt securitics are earmarked in the matter of Nuvama Clearing Services Limited
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

11,

12.

13.

Other financial assets

Deposits placed with/ for exchange/ depositories
Deposits- others
Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Current tax assets (net)

Advance income taxes {(net of provision for tax )

Deferred tax assets (net)

Deferred tax assets / (Liabilities)

Loans
Provision for expected credit loss

Unused tax losses
Accumulated losses

Employee benefit obligations
Disallowances under section 43B of the Income Tax Act, 1961

Property. plant and eguipment and intangibles

Difference between book and tax depreciation

Investments and other financial instruments
Unrealised (gain) / foss on investments (net)

Others

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2.40 1.90
0.18 0.18
1.77 0.13
4.35 221
493.35 411,99
493.35 411.99
0.02 9,65
1,420.51 662.30
(0.30} (0.04)
(0.05) 0.05
(372.53) (458.35)
4724 33.06
894.89 246.67
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Fdel Finance Company Limited

Notes tn the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Curmsency: indian rupees in miliions)

16.A

16.B

Asat As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Qther non-financial assets
{Unsecured considered good, unless stated otherwise)
Prepaid expenses 0.02 0.50
Vender Advances 189 1.61
Advances to employees 047 0.45
Others 331 0.24
5.69 2.80
Trade Payables
(1) fotal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and - -
small epterprises
(ii} total outstanding dues of creditors ether than 587 16.28
micro enterprises and small enterprises
5.87 £6.28
Payable to :
Teade payables to non-related parties +.21 13.96
Trade payables to related partics 1.66 232
5.87 16.28

Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

Trade Payables includes Rs.Nil (March 31, 2023 : Nil) payable to “Suppliers™ registered under the Micre, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest
has been paid / is payable by the Company during the year to “Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforernentioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its

inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said Act.

Trade Payables ageing schedule

As at March 31, 2024 Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than
3 years
(1) MSME - - - - - - -
(i) Others 388 - 1.99 - - - 5.87
Total 3.88 - 1.99 - - - 5.87
As at March 31, 2623 Outstanding for following periods framdue date of payment TFotal
Unbilled Not due Less than 1 year | 1-2 years | 2-3 years |More than
3 years
(i) MSME - - - - - - -
(ii) Others 13.23 - 3.00 .05 0.00 4.00 16.28
Total 13.23 - 3.00 0.05 0.00 0.00 16.28
Lol

Debt securities As at As at
At amortised cost March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Secured
Non-convertible redeemable debentures

Benchmark linked debentures 6,966.84 221624

Non-Convertible Debentures 2,155.63 2,15507
Unsecured

Benchmark linked debentures 5.736.06 5,748 71

Commercial paper 5,366.54 4,690.09

0,225.07 14,810.11
Debt Securities in India 20,225.07 14,810.11
Debt Securities outside India - -
20,225.67 14,810.11
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Debt securities (continued)

17.4  Detfails of debt securities

Benchmark linked debentures

Benchmark linked debentures are secured by way of a pari passu charge over the immovable property, charge against receivable and

investment and corporate guarantee from the holding company.

In case of benchmark linked debentures, the interest rate is linked to the performance of the underlying indices and is fluctuating in nature.

Certain berichmark linked debentures have a clause which may trigger redemption event on hitting a pre determined level berchmark index.

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures
Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures are secured by way of exclusive and/er pari passu charge on the assets of the company including
loans and advances, receivabies, investments, current & others assets and immovable property/fixed assets held by the Company.

17.B  Maturity profile of debt securities are set out below:

Matarity Month

Secured Benchmark Linked Debentures Unsecured Benchmark Linked Debentures

Amount outstanding as at

Amount oufstanding as at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 3t, 2623
within | year - 1,974.40 - -
1 -3 years 345317 21.40 3,789.88 3,749.88
>3 years 3,633.39 170.00 1,896.15 1,936 15

7.086.56 2,165.80 5.686.03 5.080.03
Associated accruals * (119.73) 40,44 50.04 62.68
Total 6,966.83 2,216.24 5,736.07 5,748.71

* Interest accried but not due and payable on smaturity of debentizres.

Secured Redeemable Non-Convertible

Maturity Debentures
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Rate of interest 16.18% p.a. 10.18% p.a.
within | year - )
1 -3 years - -
>3 years 2,008.00 2,000.00
2,000.00 2,09,00
Associated accruals 155.63 155.07
Total 215563 215507
. Commercial Paper
Matu
Aturity March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Rate of interest 8.70-9.90% p.a. 870-990%pa
within | vear 5,420.0¢ 4,800.60
5,420,00 4,860.04
Less: Unamortized discount 5246 109,91
Total 5,360,571 160009
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Notes to the financial stutements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
18.  Borrowings {other than debt securities)
At amoriised cost
Secured
Term: loan
from other parties 3.000.00 -
Less: unamortized expenses 42.63 -
295797 -
Unsecured
Loan and advances from related parties 24,924.2% 11,775.09
27,852.18 11,775.09
Berrowings in india 27,882.18 1£,775.09
Betrowings from cutside India - -
27,882.18% 11,775.09

Terms of Secured Loan:

£. The lean is secured by owned and group's listed equity shares and corporate guarantee from group company.
2. Rate of Interest is 12.00% p.a. payable monthly.

3. The loan is repayment within 12 months fom the date of dishursement.

4. Bullet repayment is to be made on the final date of maturity.

18.A Details of Borrowings other than Debt Securities

Loan and advances from related parties -

Maturity Amount cutstanding as at
March 31, 2024 Maich 31, 2023
Rate of interest 12.00%-14.10% p.a. [3.25%-14.25%p.a.
within | year 3,000.00 -
1 -3 years 24,790.00 11,619.53
17,790.00 11,619,583
Associated accruals ¥ 92.18 155.56
Total 17,882.18 11,775.09

* Assaciated accrusls include interest accrved and unamortized expenses.

19, Subordinated Liabilities Ag at As at
At amoriised cost March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Unsecured
Subordinated debentures

Privately placed redeemable non-convertible debentures 6147 155112

61,17 t61.12

Subordiated labilities in India 161.17 161,12
Subordiated Fabilities outside India B -

161.E7 161.12

19,A Maturity profile and rate of interest of subordinated liabilities are set out below:

Unsecured subordinated liabilities -
Interest Rate 1£.60% p.a.
Amount cutstanding as at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Matuority Month

July-2025 150.00 150.00

150.00 150.00

Add: mrerest acered*® 1807 1112
Total 16517 16812

* Interest accrued but not due is payable on next interest payment date.
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21,

23

Other financial liablities

{inclaimed matured debentures
Accrued salasizs and benefits
Interest payable on compulsorily convertible debentures

Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision far taxation {net of advance tax}

Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity
Compensated leave absences

Other non-financial liabilities

Statutory liabilities*
Others

As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
24 6.61
20.50 0.69
0.01 -
22.92 1.2
18.15 18.15
18.15 18.15
1.87 0.07
025 0.01
2.12 0.08
63,53 1376
003 0.08
63.56 15,78

* Mchdes withholding taxes. profession tax and other staiory dues pavabics
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4.

A

24.B

24.C

24D

Equity share capital
Authorised :

Equity Shares of Rs. 100 each
Preference shares of Rs.300 each

Issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
Exuity Shares of R5. 100 each

Reconciltation of number of shares

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Additional equity shares 15sued during the vear

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Notes:

As at March 3£, 2024

As at March 31,2023

No. of shares Amount Na, of shares Amaunt
22.85,00,000 22 850.00 22 85,800,000 22,850.00
5,00,00,000 5,000.00 5,00,00,000 5,000.00
27,85,00,000 27,850,060 31,85,00,080 27,850.00
9.56,67,388 9,566.75 1,56.67.388 7.566.75
9,56,67,388 9,566,75 7.56,67,588 7,566.75

As at March 31, 2024

As at March 31,2623

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amonnt
7,56,67.388 7.566.75 5,56,67.388 5,566 75
2,00,00,000 2,000.00 2,00,00,000 2,000.60
9,36,67,388 9,566,785 7.56,67,388 7.566.78

During the financial year 2023-24 the Company has issued 2,00,00,000 fully paid-up equity shares of Rs.100 each aggregating to Rs. 2,000 millions to Edelweiss Financial

Services Limited

Yermy/rights attached to equity shares :

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100/~ Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share hetd.

In the event of liguidation of the Company, the equity sharcholders will be entitled to receive the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential
amounts, if any, in proportion ta the number of equity shares held by the sharehelders

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/or their subsidiaries/associates

Holding company
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (EFSL)*

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL

Dretails of shares held by premoters in the Company

As at March 31,2024
Promoter name

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited*
Total

As at March 31,2023
Promoter name

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited*
Total

* including 6 shares heid by Nominees of EFSL

As at March 31,2024

As at March 31, 2023

No, of shares % holding No. of shares % halding
9,56,67,388 100.00% 7.56,67 388 100.80%
9,56,67 388 104,00% 7.86,67.388 100.00%

No. of shares at  Change daring the No. of shares at Yeof total % Change
the heginning of year the end of the shares during the year
the vear vear
7,56,67,388 2,00,00,000 9.56,67,388 100.00% -
71,56,67,388 2,50,00,000 9275;6,67.388 100.00% -
No. of shares at  Change during the No, of shares at %of total % Change
the beginning of year the end of the shares during the year
the vear year
5,56,67,388 2.,00,00,000 7,56,67 388 100.00% -
5,56,67,388 1,00,80,060 7,56,67,388 100.00% -
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{Currengy: Indian rupees in mullions)

24.E Details of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company

As at March 31,2024
Na. of shares

% holding

As at March 31, 2023
No. of shares % holding

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited*

9.56,67,388 100.00%

7.56,67.388 105.00%

9,56,67,388 HB.H0%

7,56,67,388 100.60%

* including 6 shares held by Nominees of EFSL
24.F Therezre no shares reserved for issue under options and contracts / commitments for the sake of shares / disinvestment.

25. Instruments entirely equity in nature
As at Magrch 31, 2024

Asat March 31,2023

No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount
A. Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares (CCPS)
16,500,000 - % C 1 Sh
E-(C,Cps:!) ofo;:SVaiﬂf;f/;E 0[11‘1)1:)1;1])501}/ Convertible Preference Shares | 65.00,000 L 650,00 1.65.00.000 {650 00
1,65,00,000 1,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650.00

The cntire COPS issued by the company of Rs. L6350 sellions is held by Edehwerss Financial Services Limited.

Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31,2024

As at March 31, 2023

No. of shares Amount Mo, of shares Amount
Outstanding at the beginning of the year 1,65,80,000 1,650.00 1,65,00,000 1,650.00
Additional shares issued during the year - - -
},65,00,800 1,650,00 1,65,00,080 1,650.00

OQutstanding at the end of the year

Terms of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares ("CCPS"}

The Company has issued and alloted 65,00,000 0.01% CCPS on March 9, 2021 cenvertible into Equity shares on March 8, 2026 at a ratio of I:L.

The Company has issued and alloted 1,00,00,000 0.01% CCPS on March 20, 2021 convertible into Equity shares on March 19, 2026 at a ratic of L:1.

Asg at March 31,2024

As at March 31,2023
No. of shares Amount

No. of shares Amount
g. Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCD)
(80,00,000 CCD - 0.01% Compulsory Convertible Debentures (“CCD™} of £0,00.000 $,000 00
face value of Rs. 1003/-)
80,00,000 8, {0, 00

The entire CCD sssued by the company of Rs. 8,000 millions is held by Edelweiss Financial Services Limited.

Reconciliation of number of shares
As at March 31,2024

No. of shares Amount

Ags at March 31, 2623
No. of shares Amount

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Addational CCD 1ssued during the year

80,600,000 8,000.00

Qutstanding at the end of the year

80,060,000 8,000.00

Terms of Compuisory Convertible Debentures ("CCD")

The Company has issued and alloted 80,060,000 0.01% CCDs on March 28, 2024 and CCDs will be converted into equity shares within period rot exceeding 10 years from

the date of allotment

As at March 31,
2024
Amount

Total of Instruments entively equity in nature (A+B) 5,650.48

As at March 31,
2023
Amount

1,650.00
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26. Other Equity

As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a. Capital redemption reserve 84.34 84.34
b. Capital Reserve (3,999.11) (3.999.11)
¢. Securities premium reserve 4.485.38 448538
d. Statutory reserve 1,572.06 1.413.76
e. Retained earnings 4,634.96 3,999.47
f. Deemed capital contribution - Equity 2.25 223
g. Impairment reserve 32.27 3227

6,812.15 6,018.36

26.A Nature and purpose of Reserves

a. Capital redemption reserve
The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the

Companies Act, 2013.

=

Capital Reserve
Capital reserve is created on merger of Edelweiss Finvest Limited in Edel Finance Company Limited.

o

Securities premium reserve
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes
such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

=9

. Statutory reserve
Reserve created under 45-1C(1) The Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 by transferring a sum not less than twenty per cent of net
profit as disclosed in the profit and loss account and before declaring dividend.

¢. Retained earnings
Retained earnings comprises of the Company’s undistributed earnings after taxes.

f. Deemed capital contribution - Equity
Deemed capital contribtion relates to share options granted to eligible employees of the Company by the parent company under its

employee share option plan.

g. Impairment reserve
As per the RBI circular RBE2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 is lower than

the provisioning required under IRAC (including standard asset provisioning), NBFCs (CICs) shall appropriate the difference
from their net profit or loss after tax to a separate ‘Impairment Reserve’. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitted from this
reserve without prior penmnission from the RBI.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
27. Interest Income
on tinancial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on loans 33520 585.88
Interest on fixed deposits with banks 0.33 -
{nterest income on debt securities 1.83 1.10
on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss
Interest income on debt securities 253.61 75.63
790.97 662.61
28. Fee income
Processing and other fees - 0.09
- 0.09

Below is the disaggregation of the revenue from contracts with customers and its reconciliation to amounts reported in
statement of profit and loss:

Service transferred at a point in time - -
Service transferred over time - 0.09

Total revenue from contract with customers - 0.09

29. Net gain / (loss) on fair value changes

Net gain/ (loss) on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

On investments and securities held for trading 3.255.80 1,916.30
3,255.80 1,916.30

Fair value changes
Realised 81.87 700.69
Unrealised 3,173.93 1,215.61
3,255.80 1,916.30

30. Other income

Profit on sale of investments - 448.85
Interest on Income Tax refund - 0.70
Miscellaneous income 0.08 T7.37

0.08 526.92




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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For the year ended For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
31. Finance costs ‘
On financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Interest on borrowings other than debt securities 2,007.55 1,607.23
Interest on debt securities £,725.80 550.68
Interest on subordinated liabilities 16.55 16.50
Other finance cost and bank charges 14.21 10.50
3, 764.11 2,184.91
32. Impairment on financial instruments
On financial instruments measured at amortised cost
Expected credit loss
Loans and financial instruments (38.25) 30.80
(38.25) 30.80
33. Employee benefits expense
Salaries and wages 38.92 2.38
Contribution to provident and other funds 0.23 0.13
Staff welfare expenses - 0.18
39.15 2.69
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(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
34. Other expenses
Advertisement and business promotion 0.11 -
Auditors’ remuneration frefer note 34.4) 1.27 1.36
Directors' sitting fees 1.85 1.4}
Legal and professional fees & Clearing & custodian charges 17.10 1.54
Rates and taxes 0.03 0.32
Repairs and maintenance 0.14 0.12
Corporate guarantee commission 6.36 6.82
Rating support fees 3.39 2.79
Membership and subscription 017 -
Office expenses 2.7 2.55
Goods & Service tax expenses 102.53 5.97
Stamp duty 1.18 0.46
Stock exchange expenses 290 1.24
Travelling and conveyance 0.03 -
139.23 24.58
34.A Auditors' remuneration:
As Auditor
Audit fees 0.60 0.75
Limited Review 0.45 0.45
Certification - 0.13
Reimbursement of expenses 0.22 0.03
1.27 1.36

34.B Cost sharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs
expenditure like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit
of itself and its certain subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries including the Company. This cost so expended is
reimbursed by the Company on the basis of number of employees, time spent by employees of other
companies, actual identifications etc. On the same lines, employees’ costs expended (if any) by the
Company for the benefit of fellow subsidiaries is recovered by the Company. Accordingly, and as
identified by the management, the expenditure heads in note 33 and 34 include reimbursements paid.




Ede! Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

35. Income Tax

Compaenent of income tax expenses

Current tax
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences

Total tax charge for the year

Current tax
Deterred tax

35.A The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profit as follows:

Profit/ (loss) before taxes
Statutory Income Tax rate

Tax charge at statutory rate
Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior year

Tax effect of :
Difference between tax base due to Indexation Benefit available on Capital Assets
Impact of tax rate differential on capital asset and statutory tax rate
Others

Current Tax Expenses Reported in Statement of Profit and Loss

Effective Income Tax Rate

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
(649.00) 208.78
(649.00) 208.78
(649.00) 208.78
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
142.48 862.80
25.168% 25.168%
35.86 217.15
- (8.26)
(684.63) -
(0.23) (0.11H)
(649.00) 208.78
25.171% 25.17%
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

36.

37.

Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted eamings per share is cafculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity sharcholders of the Company with the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period adjusted for assumed conversion of alf dilutive potential equity shares,

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Net profit / (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company {A) 793.719 654.02
Weighted average number of shares
- Number of equity shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 7.56,67.388 5.56,67.388
- Number of equity shares issued during the year 2.00.00,000 2.,00,00,000
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 9.56.67.388 1.56.67388
Total nwmber of CCPS outstanding at the end of the year 1.65,00.000 1,65,00,000
Total nwmber of CCD outstanding at the end of the year 80,00,000 -
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (B} 10,24,27,060 7.23.86,566
{based on the date of issue of shares)
Weighted average number of diluted equity shares outstanding during {C) 19,2427 060 7,23,86,5066
the year
Adjusted net profit / (loss) for diluted EPS (D) 793.79 634.02
Basic eamings per share (in rupees) {(A/B) 7.75 9.04
Diluted eamings per share {in rupees) b/ 7.75 9.04
Contingent Liability:

In the ordinary course of business, the Company faces claims and assertions by various partics. The Company assesses such claims and
assertions and monitors the legal environment on an ongoing basis, with the assistance of external legal counsel, wherever recessary. The
Company records a liability for any claims where a potential loss is probable and capable of being estimated and discloses such matters in
its financial statements, if material. For potential losses that are considered possible, but not probable, the Company provides disclesure in
the financial statements but does not recerd a Hability in its accounts unless the loss becomes probabie.

The Company belicves that the outcome of these proceedings will not have a materially adverse effect on the Company’s financial
pusition and results of operations.
Details of contingent lability

Particulars As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Taxation matters of assessment year AY 2014-15 & AY 2015-16 in
. . : . - 114.88 114.88
respect of which appeal is pending with tax authorities

The Company has received demand notices from tax authoritics on acconnt of disalfowance of expenditure for garning exempt income
under Section 14A of Income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The company has filed appeal/s and is
defending its position. Based on the favourable outcome in Appeliate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors, company
is reasonably certain about sustaining its position i the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits on this ground is remete”

Pursuant to the Income Tax Authorities ("the 1TA") search during March 2023. The Company is filing necessary responses to the notices
received from the ITA. Post March 31, 2024, the Company cssment order from [TA for AY 2022-23 with Nif tax demand.
Thus, no adjustment has been made or is required in th aterments of the Company.
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38, Segment reporting

Primary Segment (Business segment)

The Company being CIC, has only capital business segment in the current year Le March 31, 2024. The Company has operated only in One business segment
during the year viz. Capitat based business comprising of income from investments. Therefore, the Company has only one reportable business segment, the
results of which are disclosed in the financial statements. Hence, no disclosures are required under Segment Reporting,

Segment Activities covered
Capital based business Income from investments and dividend income

Secondary Segment
Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in India, the Company is considered to operate only in the domestic segment and

therefore there is no reportable geographic segment,
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39, Defined benefit plan

a) Defined contribution plan - Provident funds
The Company recognised Rs.0.10 million (Previous year : Rs. 0.11 million) for provident fund and cther contributions in the Statement of profit and

loss.

b) Defined benefit plan - Gratuity
in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, the Company provides for gratuity, a non-contributory defined benefit arrangem ent providing
Jlump-sum gratuity benefits expressed in terms of final monthly salary and year of service, covering all employees The plan provides a lump sum
payment to vested employees at retirement or termination of employment in accordance with the rules laid down in the Payment of Gratusty Act,
1972,
The most recent actuarial valuation of the present value of the defined benefit obligation for gratuity were carried out as at March 3 £, 2024, The
present value of the defined benefit obligations and the related current service cost and past service cosi, were measured using the Projected Unit
Credit Method.
Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the
Company’s financial statements as at balance sheet date:

i) Movement in defined benefit liability
The foliowing table shows a reconeiliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for defined benefit liability and its components:

Defined benefit obligation
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023

Particulars
Opening Balance 0.07 (G
Current service cost 0.03 002
Interest cost 0.13 -
.23 .01
Other compiehensive Income
Remeasurement loss {gain):
Actuarial loss {gain) arising from:
Expenence {0.04) 002
Financial assumptions - 0.01
Demogeaphic assumptions - -
(0,04} 0.03
Others
Transfer In/ (Out) 1.68 0,03
Benefits paid - .
1.87 0.07

Closing Balance

For the year ended

i1} Components of defined benefi{ plan cost:
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023

Particulars
Recognised in Statement of profit or loss
Current service cost 0.03 0.02
Interest cost - .
Net Interest on net defined benefit iiability/ {asset) 0.12 -
Total 0.15 0.02
Recognised in other comprehensive income
Remeasuremeni of net defined benefit tiability/{asset) 3.09 0.i4
Total 3.99 0.14
ii) Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets
As at Asgat
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
290 2.80

Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year
Contritutions by Employer

Benetits Paid - -
[nterest Income on Plan Assets 0.21 017
Re-measurements

Retarn on plan assels excluding amount included in net mterest on
the net defined benefit liability/{asset)

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year 331 2.90
Actual Return on Plon Assets 0.40 0.10

0.20 (0.07)
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39.
by

iv)

v)

vi)

vii)

Defined benefit plan {continued)

Defined benefit plan « Gratuity {continued)
Net Liability/ {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Present Value of DBQ 1.87 0.07
Fair Value of Pian Assets 331 2.90
Liability/ {Asset) recognised in the Balance Sheet (1.44) {2.33)
Funded Status [Surplus/{ Deficit)] 144 283
Amount not recognized as asset [Effect of limiting net - 2.63
assets to asset ¢eiling)
Net Liability/ (Asset) recognised in the Balance Shest {144) (0.18)
Of which, S$hart terre Liability - -
Experience Adjustment or Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/Loss {0.04) 0.02
Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets
Agat As at
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Equity instruments 0% 0%
Debt instruments 0% 0%
Heal estate 0% 0%
Derivatives 0% 0%
investment Funds with Insurance Company 9 5% 99 5%
Of which, Unit Linked 83.9% 83.0%
Of which, Traditional Non-Unit Linked 13.7% 14.5%
Asset-backed securities 0% 4
Structured debt 0% 6%
Cash and cash equivalents 1.4% 1.5%
Taotal 100.00% 100.00%
Movement in Other Comyprehensive Income
As at Asat
March 31, 2024 March 31,2023
Balance at start of year (Loss) Gam (0.82) {0.96)
Re-measurements on DBO
a. Actuarial {Lossy Gain from changes in demographic assumptions - -
b. Actuarial (Loss) Gain from changes in financial assumptions - (0.01)
¢. Actuarial (Loss)/ Gain from experience over the past year 0.04 (0.02)
Re-measurements on Plan Assets
Retun: on Plan assets, exeluding amount included in net interest on the net defined benefit Hability / (asset) 0.28 (0.07)
Changes in the effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling excluding amount included m 285 024
net interest on the net defined benefit liability/ (asset}
Balance at end of year (Loss)/ Gain 2.27 {0.82)
Movement in Surplus/ (Deficit)
As at Asat
March 31,2024 March 31,2023
Surplus/ (Deficit) a1 start of year 018 0.08
Net Transfer (In)/ Out (1.68) (0.03}
Movement during the year
Cuzrent Service Cost (3.03) (0.02)
Net Interest on net DBO (0.12) -
Re«measurements - (Losses) Gaing 3.09 014
Coentributions/ Benefits - -
Surplus/ (Deficit) at end of year 144 018
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39, Defined benefit plan {continved}
b} Defined benefit plan « Gratuity (continued)

Actuarial assumptions:

The following were the principal actuarial assumpticns at the reporting date Asat Asat
Particulars March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
Discount Rate 7.00% 7.10%
Salary Growth Rate 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal/Attition Rate {based on categories) 16.00% 16.00%
Interest Rate on Net DBO (% p.a.) 7.10% 5.90%
Mortality Rate IALMVZZDIZ-H IALM72012-14
{Ultimate) (Ultimate)

Expected weighted average remaining working lives of employees 15 35
Notes:

u} The discount rate are based on the benchmark vields availuble on Govermment Bonds ut the vedmation dute with terms maiching that of the

liabifities.
b} The estimates of futnre salary increases fakes inte accownt the imflation, seniorily, promotion and ather relevant factors.

¢ Assumptions regarding future moviality experience are sel in accorduirce with the statistics published by the Life Insurance Corporation of fndia.

Sensitivity analysis:
Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuanial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below,

As at March 31, 2024 As at March 31, 2023
[ncrease Decrease Increase Decrease
Salary Growth Rate (+/- 1%} 001 0.01 0.01 4.01
Discount Rate (+/- 1%) 0.01 0.01 001 0.01
Withdrawl Rate (+/- 1%} - - - .

The above sensitivity analysis have been cafculated to show the movement in defined benefit obligation in isolation and assuming there are no other
changes in market conditions at the reporting date. In practice, generally it does not occur. When we change one variable, it affects to others. In
calculating the sensitivity, project unit credit method at the end of the reporting period has been applisd.

¢) Compensated absences :
The Company provides for accumulated compensated absences as at the balance sheet date using projected unit credit methad based on actuarial

valuation. The Jeave encashient on separation is paid on basic salary.
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4. Change in liabilities arising frem financing acitivies

. Asat Changes in Fair ) As at
[y g I ®
Parvticulars April 1,2023 Cash Flows value Others (net) March 31. 2024
[3¢bt securities 14, 810.F1 524178 - 173.18 20,225.07
Borrowings {other than debt securities) 11,775.09 16,128.44 - (21.35) 27,882.18
Subordinated liabilities 161.12 (0.060) - 0.05 161,17
26,746.32 21,370.22 - 151.88 48,268.42
. As at Changes in Fair ) As at
P; 1 0 ®
articulars April 1, 2022 Cash Flows value Others (uet) March 31,2023
Debt securities 6.691.33 9.445.79 - {1.327.01} 14.810.11
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 10,771.37 931.63 - 72.09 11,775.09
Subordinated liabilities 161.12 - - - 16E.12
17,623.82 10,377.42 - (1,254.92) 26,746.32

* Includes the effect of interest accrued but not paid on borrowing, securities premium on issue of debt securities
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Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

42. Disclosure of Retated Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 ""Related Party Fransactions"

List of reluted parties and relatienship:
Helding Company

Subsidiary Company with whom the transactions have
taken place in current or previous year

Fellow subsidiaries and asseciates with whomn transactions

have taken place in current or previous year

Name of related parties over whom significant influence
1s exercised

Associate Compantes (till 30.03.23}
(Refer Note 2)

Key Management Personnel (KMP)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited

ECap Equities Limited ( formerly Edel Land Limited}
ECL Finance Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited
Allium Finance Private Limited

Comtrade Commodities Services Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edebweiss Investment Adviser Limited

Nide Home Finance Limited

ECap Securities And Investments Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Multi Strategy Fund Advisors LLP
India Credit Investment Fund IIT

India Credit [nvestment Fund - 5

Edelweiss Private Equity Tech fund
Edelweiss Value and Growth Fund

Nuvama Agset Management Limited
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited
Nuvama Weaith Finance Limited

Tarun Khurana
Ananya Suneja
Vidya Shah
Christina D’souza
Atul Ambavat
Sunil Pharterpekar
Vinod Juneja
Privadeep Chopra

Company Secretary (upto February 9, 2024)
Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer
Executive Dirgctor

Company Secretary (w.e.f. February 9, 2024).
Independent Director

Independent Director

Independent Director

Non- executive director



Edel Finance Company Limited

MNotes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in million)

42. Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Reluted Party Transactions'” (continued)
Sr.Ne. Nature of Transaction Refated Party Name 2023-24 20622-23
Trangactions with related parties:

m Capital acconnt transactions

! Tssue of equity shares ta Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 2,000.00 2,000.00

2 Issue of CCD to Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 8,000.00 -

3 Purchase of equity shares from Edelweiss Financial Services Linited 26,408 40 4.031.50

4 Purchase of equity shares from Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Lirnited 32987 -

5 Sale of equity shares to Edelweiss Securities And [nvestments Private Limited - 578.18

6 Issue of Non- Converlible Debentures to ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) - 1,640 00
ECL Finance Limited - 220.00
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 14000

7 Invesuments in preference shares of Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 2006

8 Invesiments in Compulsory Convertible Debentures ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 7.660.00 -
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 3,500.00

G Investment in equity shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 260045 -

{I) Current account transactions

1 Loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 8,373 80
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 3,862.70 1,480.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 21,937.88 9,698 30
Allium Finance Private Limited 1,125.00 23000

2 Loans repaid to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - £ 1,006.40
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limiled) 496270 1,400.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 9,437.41 3,364 08
Allium Finance Private Limined 1,355.00 -

3 Loans given to Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 610.00 2,620.70
ECap Equities Lunited (formerly Edel Land Limited} - 4961 10
Edelweiss Securities And [nvestments Private Limited 762.90 5,706.08
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Linmited 27.16 68571
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 5.68 18 85
Edelcap Securities Limied 2.547.30 2.193.55
ECap Securities And Investments Limited 274.46 337127
Edel Investments Limited 204.30 -

4 Loans given repaid by Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2,281.50 949.20
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 643 80 5,793 95
Edelweiss Securities and Investments Private Limited 230898 4,560.00
Edelcap Securities Linmited 4,102.08 638.78
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited 712.87 -
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited 24,53 -
ECap Securities And Investments Linuted 364572 -
Edel Investments Limited 20030 -

5 Buyback / redemption- benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limzted) 1,191.49 3,554.02
Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited - 1884
Edel Investments Limited 107.83 -
Edelcap Securities Limited 108 -

5 issue of benchmark linked debentures ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) - 1,700 0O
Edel [nvestments L.imited - 700.00
Edeleap Securities Limited - $70.00
Edelweiss Investment Adviser Linuted - 380.00

7 Redemption/Sale of investment in benchmark linked debenture ECap Equities Limited ¢formerly Edel Land Limited) 9538 381032

8 Purchase of perpetual bond from ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) - 492 28
Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 213043




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in milion)

42, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 " Related Party Transactions” (comtinued)
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2023-24 102223
9 Interest expense on loans taken from Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Lunited - 151.55
ECap Equities Limuted (formerly Edel Land Limited) 4218 1.67
Edelweiss Financial Services Lumited 1,768 01 1,445 50
Allium Finance Private Limited 12557 252
16 Other financial cost paid to Nuvama Wealth and Tnvestment Limited - 383
Nuvama Asset Management Lirmited - 5.70
11 Interest expense on subordinate debt ECap Equities Limuted (formerly Edel Land Limnted) 772 7.70
ECL Finance Limited 618 6.16
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 265 264
12 Interest expense on non- convertible debentures ECap Equities Limited (formerly Ede! Land Linuted) 105.13 127.38
ECL Finance Limited 86.06 17.09
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 293 10.87
Nido Home Finance Lumiled 10.04 -
13 Interest income on securities Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 6.54 6.88
ECL Finance Limited 246.67 68 75
14 Interest income on loan given to ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Lanited) 411 232.85
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1335 25.03
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited 240.20 21724
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Linuited 23 5t 3574
Edelcap Securities Linvited 111.%0 1236
Comtrade Commodities Seivices Limited 1.79 0.64
ECap Securities And {nvestments Limited 131.88 7.63
Edel investments Linited 840 -
15  Interest income on debentures (CCD} Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.90 0,90
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edet Land Linuted) 092 0.20
16 Legal and professional fees paid 10 Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.04 0.05
Edelweiss Financial Services Linuted 5.00 -
17 Cost remmbursements paid 1o {net} Edelweiss Ruaral & Corporate Services Limited 211 254
18  Corporate guarantee support fee received from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited - 0.0%
19 Corporate guarantee support fee paid to Edelwesss Financial Services Limited 1.07 0.71
Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 6.38 6.82
20  Remuneration to Key Management Personne} (Refer note 1) Vidya Shah 16.7G -
21 Directors’ siting fees Atul Ambavat 1.00 039
Vinod Juneja 4380 0.37
Sunil Phatarphekar 045 035
(III) Secondary market transactions
1 Sale of Property, Plam & Equipment Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited - 0.0¢
{§¥} Balances with related parties
| Investments in equity shares Edehweiss Retail Finance Limited 264.00 264.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 5,556.62 5,356.17
ECL Finance Limited 2447185 4.031.50
N:do Home Finance Limited 2,934.53 2,934.53
Edelweiss Assel Management Lunied 73389 733.8%
Edehweiss Securities And [nvestments Private Limited 5,068.05 .
Edelweiss Alternative Assel Advisors Limited 329.87 -
2 Investments in congpulsory convertible preferences shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Serviges Limited 500.00 500.00
3 investments in Preference shares Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 2000 2000
4 Investiments in compulsory converiible debentures Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Lumited 12,500.00 S.000.00
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 6.600.00 2,000.00
5 Debenture and bonds (Investnsents) of £Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Linuted} - 8615
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 58,40 58.40




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in million)

42, Disclosure of Related Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions' {continued
Sr.No. Nature of Fransaction Related Party Name 2023-24 2022-23

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 23.01 20.78
ECL Finance Linited 247404 247404

[ Subordinate debt issued to ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Linnted) 70.08 70.00
ECL Finance Lunited 50.00 56.00
Edelwesss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 24.0G 24.00

7 [nterest acrrued on subordinate debt ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Linznted) 521 5.19
ECL Firance Limited 417 4.5
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 1.7¢ 1.78

8 Non- convertible debentures held by ECap Equities Liunited (formerly Edel f.and Limited) 870.00 1,640.00
ECL Finance Limited 1,001.00 22000
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 140.00
Nido Home Finance Limited 129.00 -

g Interest accrued on non- convertible debentures held by ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 67.70 127.16
ECL Finance Lunited 7789 17.06
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited - 10.85
Nido Home Finance Limited 10.04

10 Long term loans taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 23,890.00 11389353
Altium Finance Private Limited - 230.00
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 908.00 -

13 Shor term loans giventa Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited - 167130
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited} - 643,80
Edelweiss Securities And Investments Private Limited - 1,546.08
Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited - 68571
Edelcap Securities Limited - 1,554.78
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - 18.85
ECap Securities And Investments Limited - 337127

12 Trade Payabies to Edelweiss Financial Services Limzted 1.05 013
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 0.00 0.00
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 0.57 219

13 Other Receivable Edelweiss Securities And Iavestments Private Limited - 0.05
Edel Investments Limited - 0.03

14 Interest receivable-Accrued -Group Company Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited 242 7.72
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) {0.01) 13.76
Edelweiss Secunities And Investiments Private Limited 16.43 50.06
Edelcap Securities Limited 631 9.73
Edeiweiss Global Wealth Management Limited (0.08) 756
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited - 0.21
ECap Securities And [nvestments Lunited (0.36} 65.86
Edel Investments Limited (0.02) -

15 [nterest payable -Accrued -Group company ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edef Land Limited) 1.56 0.5¢
Edeiweiss Financial Services Limited 132.64 132,73
Allium Finance Private Limited - 233

16 Interest receivable - acerued on debentures and bonds of Edetweiss Retail Finance Limited 1.85 1.84
Edeiweiss Rural & Corporate Services Linvited 0.00 081
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limuted) - 018
ECL Finante Limited 218.40 21741

t7  Corporate Guarantee taken from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 3.17¢.00 470.00
Edebweiss Rural & Carporate Services Limited 62193 70176
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 3,000.00 -

0.00 indiwcates the number is smatler than ¢.01 million
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(Currency: Indian rupees in million}

42 Disclosure of Retated Party Transactions pursuant to IND AS 24 "Related Party Transactions” (continued)
Sr.No. Nature of Transaction Related Party Name 2023-24 2022-23
Notes
1 Information relating to remuneration paid to key managerial person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, leave encashment and provision
made for bonus which are provided for group of employees on an overall basis. These are included on cash basis. Remuneration to KMP's shall be wathin the
limit as prescribed by the Companies act.
2 Pursuant to the Amendment Agreement dated March 9, 2023 to the Amended and Restated Shareholders” Agreement dated March 18, 2021 betweent Edelweiss

Financial Service Ltd (Holding Company), Edeweiss Globat Wealth Management Limited, PAGAC Ecstasy Pte Ltd and Nuvama Wealth Management Limited
{formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited), the amendment to the articles of assaciation of Nuvama Wealth Management Limited and the appointment of
independent trustee, Nuvama Wealth Managenent Lunited ang its subsidiary Companies ceased to be associate of the Company w.e f. March 30, 2023




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in milifons)
43, Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium

£3.A During the year, the Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) oy entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the intermediary shall:
(i) directly ot indirectly lend or invest in other persons or eatities identfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) o
{ii) provide anv guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Uitimate Beneticiaries

43.B During the year, the Company has not received any fund from any persen(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding (whether

recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shali:
(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or en behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

{i+) provide any guarantee, security, or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

Note:

1. Based on the legal opinion obtained by the Holding Company, the transactions undertaken by the Company (CIC-NBFC) of borrowing/lending/investment to and
from its helding/subsidiary/affiliate/group entitv(ies) {together referred to as the ‘Group®} er borrowing from outside the Group for onward lending/investments for
cartying on their respective business in ordinary course will not attract reporting under Rule 11(¢) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014 {the “Rales”).
Accordingly, transactions undertaken by the Company is not disclosed under the Rules.




Edel Finance Company Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

44. Capital Management

The Reserve Bank of India (RBI} sets and monitors capital adequacy requirements for the Company from time to time. The Core
Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, stipulate that the Adjusted Net Worth of a CIC-ND-SI shall at no point
in time be less than 30% its risk weighted assets on balance sheet and risk adjusted value of off-balance sheet iterns as on date of
the last audited balance as at the end of the financial year.

The Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016, further stipulate that the outside liabilities of a CIC-ND-SI
shall at no point of time exceed 2.5 times its Adjusted Net Worth as on date of the last audited balance as at the end of the

financial year.

The Company’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain investor, creditor and sharcholder confidence and to
sustain the future development of the business. The impact of the fevel of capital on shareholders’ returns is also recognised and
the Company recognises the need to maintain a balance between the higher returns that might be possible with greater gearing
and the advantages and security afforded by a stronger capital posttion.

Although maximisation of the return on risk-adjusted capital is the principal basis used in determining how capital is allocated
within the Company to particular operations or activities, it is not the sole basis used for decision making. Account is also taken
of synergies with other operations and activities, the availability of management and other resources, and the fit of the activity
with the Company’s longer-term strategic objectives. The Company’s policies in respect of capital management and atlocation
are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors.

The Company has complied with minimum stipulated capital requirement which has been disclosed in the regulatory disclosures
note in the financial statements.
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

(Currency: Indian rupees in millions)

45.
45.A

45.C

Fair Value measurement:

Valuation Principles

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most
advantageous) market at the measurement date under current market conditions {i.., an exit price), regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using a valuation technique. In order to show how fair values have been derived. financial instrumments are classified
based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques:

Level I — valuation technique using quoted market price: financial instruments with quoted prices for identical instruments in active markets that
company can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — valuation technique using observable inputs: Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and are significant. are derived from
directly or indirectly observable market data available over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

Level 3 — valuation technique with significant unobservable inputs: Those that include one or more unobservable input that is significant to the
measurement as whole.

Valuation goverance framework

The Company's fair value methodology and the governance over its models includes a number of controls and other procedures to ensure
appropriate safeguards are in place to ensure its quality and adequacy. All new product inftiatives (including their valuation methodologies) are
subject to approvals by various functions of the Company including the risk and finance functions.

Where fair values are determined by reference to externally quoted prices or observable pricing inputs to models, independent price determination
or validation is used. For inactive markets, Company sources alternative market information, with greater weight given to information that is
considered to be more relevant and reliable.

The responsibility of engoing measurement resides with the business and product line divisions. However Finance department is also responsible
for establishing procedures governing valuation and ensuring fair values are in compliance with accounting standards.

The foltowing table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

As at March 31, 2624 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Tavestments
Equity instruments* - 7.291.19 - 7.291.19
Other debt securities - 2,775.70 - 237570
Total investments measured at fair value - 10,066.8% - 10,066.89
As at March 31, 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Leveld Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Investments
Equity instruments - - 4,103.16 4,103.16
Other debt securities - 2.858.62 - 2.858.62
Total investments measured at fair value - 2.858.62 4.103.16 6.961.78
*Note:

Equity instruments includes investment in Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (NWML), & former associate of the holding Company which is
subject 1o lock-in till September 2024 in accordance with Securities and Exchange Board of India regulations. This investment is reported under
level 2 in fair value disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 113 - Fair Value measurement as at March 31, 2024,
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Mates to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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45.  Fair Value measurement: (Continued}

D. ¥aluation technigues:

Debt securities:
Fair value of debt securities is derived based on the indicative quotes of price and yields prevailing it the market as at the reporting date. The Company has used quoted
price of rational stock exchange wherever bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded, the Coempany has used CRISIL Corporate Bond

Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Security receipts
The market for these securities is not active. Therefore, the Company uses valuation techniques to measure their faiv values. Since the security receipts are less liguid

instruments therefore they are valued by discounted cash flow models. Expected cash flow levels are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measuires regarding the
characteristics of the underlying assets including prepaymert rates, default rates and other economic drivers. Securities receipts with significant unobservable valuation
inputs are classified as Level 3.

Equity instruments, preference shares, warrants and units of mutual fund:

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on stock exchanges with readily available active prices on a regular basis. Such instruments are classified as Levet L
Units held in funds are measured based on their published net asset value (NAV), taking info account redemption and/or other restrictions. Such instruments are also
classified as Level 1. Unquoted equity instruments, preference shares and warrants are initially recognised at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at

valuation provided by external valuer at instrument level. Al unquoted instruments are classified at Level 3

E. The folowing tabte shows z reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing bafances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

Financial year ended March 2024 Security Eguity Preference Warrants Total
receipts  instruments  Shares
Envestments - at April 1, 2023 . 4,103 16 - - 4,103.16
Purchase . - - - -
Sale / redemption - - - - -
Transfer into level 3 - - - - -
Transfer from fevel 3 to level 2 - (4,103.16) - - {4,103.16)
Profit / Fair value change for the year recognised in profit or los: - - - - -
Investments « at March 31, 2024 - - « - -
Financial year ended March 2023 Security Equity  Preference Warrants Tatal
receipts instruments  Shares
Investments - at April t, 2022
Purchase - - B - -
Sate / redemption - - - - -
Transfer into levei 3 - 4,103.16 - - 4,103.16
Transfer from level 3 - - - - -
Profit / Fair value change for the year recognised in profit or los: - - . - -
investments - at March 31, 2023 - 4.103.16 - - 4,103.16

F. Impact on fair value of level 3 financial instrument of changes to key unobservable inputs

Type of Financial Instruments Fair value Valuation Significant Range of Increasein Changein Decrease in Change in
of assetas Techniques Unobservab estimates  the fair value  the fair value
on March le input for unohservab because of unobservab because of
31, 2024 unobservab le input increase in le input decrease in

le input unobservab unobservab
le inout le input

Comparable
transaction .

. . . Fair value

Investments in unquoted equity shares categorised at Level 3 « and P/E and - 5% . 5% -
. per share

discounted
cash flow

Type of Financial Enstruments Fair value Valuation Significant Range of TIncreasein Changein Decrease in Change in
of asset as Technigues Unobservab estimates  the fair value the fair value
on March le input for unchservab because of unobservab hecause of
31,2023 anobservab le input increase in e input decrease in

te input unchservab unohservab
le input le input
Comparable
transaction .

Investments in unquoted equity shares categorised at Level 3 4,103.16 and P/E and Fair value  Rs. 2238 per 5% 205.16 5% {205.16)

per share  share

discaunted
e Do et flow
’ & "Q‘&
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{Currency: Indian rupees in millions)
45, Fair Value measurement: (Confinued)

G. Fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value:
The table below is a comparisen, by class, of the carrving amounts and fair values of the Company's financial insiruments that are not
carried at fair value in the financial statements. This table does not include the fair values of non-financial assets and non-tinancial
liabilities.

As at March 31, 2024 Carrying Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Financial Assets

Loans 24.60 - - 24 60 24.60
Investments 62 878.81 - 62,878.81 - 62,878.8!
Total Financial Assets 62,903.41 - 62,878.81 24.60 62,903.41

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities 20,225.07 - 20,225.07 - 20,225.07
Bomrowings (other than debt securities) 27.882.18 - - 27.882.18 2788218
Subordinated Liabilities i61.17 - 161.17 - 16117
Total Financial Liabilities 48,268.42 - 20,386.24 - 48,268.42
As at March 31, 2023 Carrying Value Level | Level 2 Level 3 Tetal

Financial Assets

Loans 9,549,353 - - 9,549.53 9,549.53
Investments 24.841.08 - 24 84% 08 24,.841.0%
Total Financial Assets 34,390.61 - 24,841.08 9,549.53 34,390.61

Financial Liabilities

Debt securities 1481011 - 14,810.11 - 14,810.11
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 11,775.09 - - 11,775.09 11,775.09
Subordinated Liabiiities 161.12 - 161.12 - 161.12
Total Financial Liabilities 26,746.32 - 14,971.23 - 26,746.32

H. Valuation Methodologies of Financial Instruments not measured at fair value

Below are the methoedologies and assumptions used to determine fair values for the above financial instruments which are not recorded
and measitred at fair value in the Company's financial statements. These fair values were calculated for disclosure purposes only. The
below methodologies and assumptions relate only to the instruments in the above tables and, as such, may differ from the techniques and
assumptions explained in notes.

Short Term Financial Assets and Liabilities

Carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade
payables approximate the fair value because of their shori-term nature. Difference between carrying amounts and fair values of other
financials assefts and other financial liabilities is not significant in each of the years presented.

Financial assets at amortised cost
The fair values financial assets measured at aniortised cost are estimated using a discounsed cash flow modet based on coatractual cash

flows using actual or estimated yields and discounting by yields incorporating the counterparties’ eredit risk.

Issued Debt
Thke fair value of issued debt is estimated by a discounted cash fiow medel
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46,

Risk Management

A Intreduction and risk profile
Risk is an inherent part of Company's business activilies. When the Company extends a corporate or retail loan. buys or sells secunties i market. or offers
other products or services. the Company takes on some degree of risk. The Company's overall objechive is 1o mamage its businesses. and the associated risks,
in a manner that balances serving the interests of its customers and investors and protects the safety and soundness of the Company.

‘the Company believes that effective risk management requires:

13 Acceplance of responsibility, including identification and escalation of risk issucs, by all individuals within the Company:;

2) Ownership of risk identification, assessment, data and management within each of the lines of business and Corporate; and

3) Firmwide sructures for risk govemance

The Company strives for cantinual improvement through efforts 16 enhance contrals. engoing employee traimng and development and other measures.

Risk Management Structure

We have  well-defined risk management policy framework for risk identification, assessment and control 10 effectively manage risks associated with the
various business activities. The risk function is monitored primarily by the business risk group. The Edelweiss Group has also established a Global Risk
Committee that is responsible for managing the risk arising out of various business activities at a central level.

Our risk management policy ensures that the margin requirements are conservative to be able 1o withstand markel volatihity and scenartos of sharply declining
prices. As a result, we follew consenvative lending norms The Edelweiss Group centralises the nsk momitoring systems to monitor our chient's credit expasute
which is in addition to the monitoring underiaken by the respective businesses.

The Company's beard of directors has overall respomsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company’s risk meragement franiework. The board
has established the Risk Management Committee, which is responsible for developing and monitoring the Company’s risk management pohicies. The
Committes holds regular meetings and report to beard on its activities.

The audit commitiee aversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk management policies and procedures, and reviews the
adequacy of the risk management ramework in relation to the risks faced by the Company. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by internal
audit. Internal zudit underiakes both regulas and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the auds
committes.

Risk mitigation and risk culfure

The Company's business processes ensure complete independence of functions and a segregation of respensibilites. Credst appraisal & credit control
processes, centralised operations i, independent audit unit for checking complsance with the prescribed policies and approving loans at transaction level as
well as our tisk managernent processes and policies allow layers of multiple checks and verifications. Our key business processes are regularly monitored by
the head of our business or operations. Qur loan approval and administration procedures, collection and enforcement procedures are designed to minimise
delinquencies and maximise recoveries.

At all levels of the Company’s operations, specifically wilored risk reporis are prepared and distributed in order to ensure that alt business divisions have
access to extensive, necessary and up-to—date infarmation.

It is the Company's policy that a monthly briefing is given to the Board of Directors and al! other relevant members of the Company in the viilisation of market
limits, proprictary investments and Liguidily, plus any other ask developments.

It is the Company's policy ta ensure that a rebust risk awareness is embedded in its organisational risk culture. Employces are expected 10 take awnership and
be accountable for the risks the Company is exposed to. The Company's continusus raining and development emphasises that employees are made aware of
the Company’s risk appetite and they are supported in their roles and responsibilities to monitor and keep their expesure to nsk within the Company's nsk
appetite limits. Compliance breaches and internal audit findings are important elements of employees’ annual ratings and remuncration reviews.

Types of Risks
The Company's risks are generally categorized in the following risk types:

Notes |Risks

Arising fron: Measurement, monitoring and management of risk

1| Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of fimancial loss if a
custemer or counterparty fails to meet an
oblsgation under a contract.

Measuted as the amaount that could be lost if a customer er
counterparty fails to make repayments;

Arises principally from financing.
dealing in Corporate Bonds,
Tnvestments in Mutual Fund, Equity, but
also from certain other products such as
guarantees and derivatives

Manitored using various intemal risk management measures and
within limits approved by individuals within a framework of
delegated avthorities; and

Managed through a robust nisk control framework, which
outlines clear and consistent policies. principles and puidance for
Tigk MAnAgers.

2i Liguidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that we do not have
sufficient financial

resources to meet our obligatiens

as they fall due or that we can only do s¢ at an
exgessive cost

Measured using a range of metics, including Asset Liability
mismatch, Debt Equity Ratio

Liguidity zisk arises from mismaiches in
the timing of cash flows.

Reyular monitoring of funding levels to ensure 1o meet the
requirement for Business and maturity of our labilities.

Arises when illiquid asset positions
cannet be funded at the expected remis
and when required.

Maintain diverse sources of fundinyg and hiquid assets to facilitate
flexibility in meeting our liguidity requitements of the Company.

3| Market rish.

Market 1isk is the nsk that

novenments in market factors.such

as [mterest rates, equity prices and [ndex prices,
will reduce out income or the value of our
portfolios

Measured vsing sensitivities, detailed picture of potential gains
and losses for a range of market movements and scenarios.

Exposure ta market risk is

separated into two portfolios: rading
ang non-trading.

Monirored using measures, sncluding the sensitiviry of net
interest income

Managed using risk limits approved by the risk management
commitiee.
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46,
46.0.1

Risk Management

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fasls o mest us contractual obligations, and arises prncipally
from the Company's Trade receivables and Loans The Company has adopted a policy of dealing with creditworthy counterparties and obtains sufficient collateral, where
appropriate, as & means of mitigating the risk of financial loss from defaults. In case the loans are to be restructured, similar credit assessment process 1s followed by the

Company.

The Company’s exposute to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer. However, management also considers the factors that may
influence the credit nisk of its customer hase, tncluding the default risk of the mdustry and country m which customers operate.

The Cormpany manages and controls credit risk by setling limits on the amount of risk 1t is willing to accept for individual counterparties/Groups (Single Borrowing
Limit/Group Borrowing Limit) and for industry concentrations, and by menitering exposures in relation to such limits

Credit quality of a customer is assessed based on its credit worthiness and historicat dealings with the Company and market intelligence. Outstanding custom.er receivables are
regularly monitored The credit quality review process aims to allow the Cempany to assess the patential loss as a resulf of the risks 1o which 1t 15 exposed and take corrective
actions.

Berivative linancial Instruments:
Credit risk arising from derivative financial instruments is, at any time, limited to those with positive fair values, as recorded on the balance sheet. With gross-settied
derivatives, the Company is also exposed 1o a seitlement risk, being the risk that the Company honours its obligation, but the counterpasty fails to deliver the counter value

Impairment Assesment:
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recounising :mpairment loss. The expected credit foss allowance is computed based on a provision matrix which
takes into acceunt historical credit Joss experience and adjusted for forward-looking information

The expected credit loss is a product of exposure at default. probability of default and loss given default. The Company has devised an internal medel to evaluate the
probability of default and loss given default based on the parameters set out in Ind AS. Accordingly, the leans are classified inte vasious stages as follows:

Internal rating grade Internal grading description Stages
Performing
High prade { dpd and 1 to 30 dpd Stage 1
Standard grade 31 ta %0 dpd Stage 2
Neon-performing
Idividually impaired 30+ dpd Stage 3

Credit loss is the difference between all contsactial cash flows that are due to an entity in accordance with the contract and al{ the cash flows that the entity expects to receive
{i <, alt cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. Expected Credit Loss (ECL) compufation is not drivers by any single methodnlogy, however methodology and
approach used must reflect the following:

1} An unbiased and probability weighted amount that evaluates a range of possible outcomes

23 Reasonable and supportable information that is availabie without undue cost and effort at the reporting date abous past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions,
3} Time value of money

Whilg the time valug of money element is cumrently being factored into ECL measurement while discourting cash flows by the Effective Interest Rate (EIR}, the objective of

developing a macroeconomic model using exogenous macroeconomic variables (MEV) i3 to address the first two requirements. This has been achieved by using the model
output to adjust the P} risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-weighted.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR

Company considers a financial instrument defaulted, classified as Stage 3 {credit-impaired) for ECL calculations, in all cases when the borrower becomes 90 days past due
Classification of assets form stage 1 to stage 2 has been carried out based on SICR criterion. Accounts which are mere than 30 days pasl due have been identified as accounts
where sigmficant increase in ¢redit risk has been observed. These accounts have been classified as Stage 2 assets, When such events occur, the Company carefully considers
whether the event should result in treating the customer as defaulted and therefore assessed as Stage 3 for ECL caleulations or whether Stage 2 is appropriate.

Probability of Befault

Probability of default (PD} is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. PD estimation process is done based on historical internal data available with
the Company. While arriving at the PD, the Company also ensures that the factors that affects the macro economic trends are considered 1o a reasonable extent, wherever
necessary. Campany calculates the 12 month PD by taking infe account the past hislorical trends of the Loans/porifolio and its credit performance. In case of assets where
there is a significant increase in credit risk / credit impatred assets, lifetime PD has beea applied.

Loss Given Delault (ILGD)

The LGD represents expected {osses on the EAD given the event of default, taking into account, among other atiributes, the mitigating effect of collateral value at the time it
is expected 10 be realised and the tine value of money The Loss Given Default (LGDY has been computed with workout methodology. Workout LGID is widely considered
ta be the most flexible, transparent and togical approach to build an LGD mede!. Alony with actual recoveries, value of the underlying collateral has been factored in to
estimate future recoveries in LGD computation. Workout LGD computation invelves the actual recoveries as well as future recoveries (as a part of the workout process) on a
particular facility, as a percentage of batance outstanding at the time of DefauivRestructuring. The assessment of workout LGD was then performed. Principal owstanding
for cach lean was assessed, which went into the denominator of the LGD calculation. LGD computatior has been done for each segiment and sub-segment separately
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46.
46.D.1

46.D.2

Risk Management {continued}
Credit Risk {continucd)

Exposure at Default (EAD)
The amount which the borrower will owe to the pertfolio at the time of default is defined as Exposure at Default {EAD). While the drawn credit line reflects the explicit
exposure for the Company, there might be variable exposure that may increase the EAD:. These expasures are of the nature where the Company provides future
commitments, in addition to the current credit. Therefore, the exposure will contain both on and off balance sheet values. The value of exposare is given by the following
formula:
EAD = Drawn Credit Line + Credit Conversion Factor * Undrawn Credit Line
Where,
Drawn Credit Line = Current outstanding amousnt
Credit Conversion Factor {CCF) = Expected future drawdown as & proportion of undrawn amount

Undrawn Credit Line = Difference between the total amount which the Company has committed and the drawn credit line While the drawn exposure and himits for the
customer are available, the modelling of CCF is required for cemputing the EAD

Forward looking adjustments
*A measure of ECL is an unbiased probability-weighted amount that is determsned by evaluating a range of possible outcomes and using reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost of effort at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts ef future economic conditions.”

To fulfit the above requirement Company has incorporated forward looking infosmation into its measurement of ECL. The ebjective of developing a macroecenomic model
using exogenous macroeconamic variables (MEVs) is to address the requirements of unbiased, probability weighted outcomes while taking into account survent conditions as
well as future economic conditions. This will be achieved by using the model output 1o adjust the PD risk component in order to make it forward looking and probability-
weighted.

Exogenous macroecenomic parameters were used as independent (X) variables to predict the dependent () variable. Keeping in mind Ind AS requirements around obraining
reliable and supportable infarmation, without incurting undue east or effurt- bused an advice of risk committee members and economic experts and consideration of a variety
of external actual and forecast information, the Company formulates base ease view of the future direction of relevant economic variable as well as a representative range of
other possible forecast scenaric. This process involves developing two or more additional economic scenarios and considering the relative probabilitics of each outcome,

Data sourcing

The Company is expected to obtain reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effert. Keeping in ntind the above requirement
macroeconemic information was aggregated from Economic Intetligence Unit (E[U), Bloonsberg, World Bank, RBI database. The E[U data has a database of around 130
macroeconcmic variables as well as their forecasted values. Beyond 2022 macra-economic variables are forecasted by mean reverting the values to their long term average.
Extemnal information includes economic data and forecasts published by governmenta) bodies and menetary authorities in the country. supranational organisations such as the
OECD and the IMF, and selected private secter and academic forecasters.

Probabitity weighted seenario ereation
To incorporate macroeconamic impact into probabilsty-weighted, each scenario has an associated probability. In arder to ensure consistency across macroeconomic models,
these prababilities were calculated at an overall level for both Retail and Non-Retail pertfolios, keeping in mind that though the impact of a scenatic across Gifferent
portfolios may differ based on endegenous factors, the probability of a scenario unfolding is purely exogenous, and hence should not vary.

The Company has identified and documented key drivers of credit risk and credit fosses for each portfolic of financial instruments and using an analysis of hestorical data, has
estimated relationship between marco-economic variables and credit nsk and credst fosses.

Predicted relationship between the key indicators and gefault and loss rates on various poritolios of financial assess have been developed based on analysing historical data
over (e past 5 years

Risk Concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of counterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have similar economic
features that would cause their ability 1o meet contractual abligations to be similarly affected by changes in ecenomic, political or other conditions. Concenralions indicate
the relative sensitivity of e Company's performance to developments affecting a particular industry or geographical location

in order to avoid excessive concentrations of risk, the Company's policies and procedures include specific guidelines to focus on maintaining a diversified portfolio.
Identified concentrations of credit risks are controlied and managed accordingly.

The following table shews the risk concentration by industry for the companents of the balance sheet
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d6. Risk Management {continued)
Credit Risk {continued)
46,D,2 Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2024

Financial

Particulars . Others Total
Services

Financial Assets

Cash and cash equivaients 8.84 - 8.84

Bank balances other than cash and - 30.30
. 30.39

cash equivalents

Loans 2460 - 24.60

Investments 7294574 - 72,945,70

Other financial assets 4.35 - 4.3%

Total Assets 73,013.79 - 73,013.7%

Industry analysis - Risk concentration as at March 31, 2023

Financial

Particulars . Others Totat
Services
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivaients 20.63 - 20,63
Loans 9,549 53 - 9,549.53
[nvestments 31,802.86 - 31,802.86
Qther financial assets 221 - 2.2¢
_Total Assets 41,375.23 - 41,375.23

46.D.3 Collateral and other credit enhancements
No collateral 15 held against the exposure as at March 31, 2024

The tables befow shows the maximum exposure to credit risk by class of linancial asset atong with details on collaterals held against exposure,

Maximum exposure to credit risk

Asat As at lTrmc:?mi
March 31,2024 March 31, 2023 7P¢¢
collaterat

Financial assets
Casl: and cash equivalents 2.84 2063
Biank batances other than cash and cash equivalents 3030
Loans:

Corporate Credit 24 60 9,549.53 Unsecured
Investments 72,943 70 31,802.85
Oher financial assets 435 2.21

Total Financiak Assets 73,013.7% 41,375.23
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46. Risk Management {Continued)
46.E Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilitics that areg settled by delivering

cash or another financial asset, Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company might be unable to meet its payment obigations when they fall due asa
result of mismatches in the timing of the cash flows uader both normal and stress circumstances.

Company has a Liquidity Contingency Pelicy in place ta ensure various liquidity parameters are defined and tracked regularly. Liquidity Management Team is provided
with ipdate on expected liquidity shortfalls in Normal as well as Stress SCEAATIo.

To manage the stressed circumstances the Company has ensured maintenance of a Liguidity Cushion in the form of [nvestments in Government Securities, Mumal
Funds and Quoted Equity Shares. These assets carry minimal credit risk and can be fiquidated in a very short period of time. A liguidity cushion amounting 1o 5-9% of
the borrowings is sought to be maintained through such assets. These would be 1o take care of immediate obligations while contirning to honour our conunitments as a
going concern. There are available lines of credit fiom banks which are drawable on notice whicl further asugment the available sources of funds. Funding is raised
through diversified sources including Banks, Private issue of Debt, Sub Debt etc to maintain a healthy mix,

As at March 31, 2024 - Analysis of coniractual maturities of financial assets and lisbilities

h i 5 han §
On Demand Upte 3 Jtob 6 Months to 1 yearto More than § Total

Months Months 1 year years years
Financial Asseis
(2) Cash and cash equivalents 8.84 - - “ - - 8,84
(b) Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents - - - 30.30 - - 30.30
(¢) Loans - 24.40 - - - - 24.60
(d) [nvestments B 6,954 73 2,430.40 3,645.59 7.266.52 52.648.46 T2,945.70
{e) Other financial assets - T2 - - 1.63 - 435
Total undiscounted financial assets B.84 6,982.05 2.430.40 3,675.89 T.268.15 52,648.46 73,013.79
Finzncial Liabiities
(a) Tradz payables - 5.87 - . - - 5.87
(b) Drebt securities - 5,522 .17 - - 14,762 90 - 20,225.07
() Borrowings (other than debt securities} - 134.21 - 295797 90:0.00 23,890.00 27,882.18
{d} Subordinated Liabilities - - 11.17 - 150.00 B 161,17
(e} Other financial tiabilities B 2281 - 0.01 - - 22,92
Teotal undiscounted financial liabilities - 5,685.16 11.17 2,957,98 15,752.90 23,890.00 48,297.21
Total net financial assets / (Habilities) 8.84 1,296.89 2,419.23 717.91 (8,484.75) 28,758.46 24,716.58
As at March 31, 2023 - Analysis of contractual maturities of financial assets and linbilities

B E hi thy
On Demand Upto 3 Jtob 6 Monthsto  1yearte® Morethan 3 Total

Meonths Mounths 1 year years years
Financial Assets
(a) Cash and cash equivalents 2063 - - - - - 20,63
(b} Loans - 4.549.42 11474 2,648.27 2.237.10 - 9,549.53
{c) Investments - - - 84615 12,808.05 18.908.66 31.802.86
(d) Other financia assets - 1.06 - - 1.14 - .21
Total undiscounted financial assets 20.63 4,550.48 114.74 1.7134.42 15,046.29 18,908.66 41,375.23
Financial Liabilities
(a) Trade payables - 16.28 - - - - 16.28
(b) Debt securities - 4,212.89 - 2,646.00 7.951.22 - 14,850.11
(<) Borrowings {other than debt securities) - 155.56 - - 10,619.53 1.000.00 11,775.09
(d) Subardinated Liabilities - - 11.12 - 150.00 - 161.12
(e) Other financial lighilities - 7.21 - - - - T.21
Total undiscounted financial liabilities - 4,391.94 11.12 2,646.00 18,720.75 1,000.00 26,769.81
Total net financial assets / (liabilities) 20,63 158.54 103.62 88.42 (3,674.46) 17.908.66 14,605.42

/(/v
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46.
46.F

Risk Management

Market Risk {continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The principal risk to which non-trading portfolios are exposed is the risk of loss from fluctuations in the future cash {flows or fair values of financial
instruments because of a change in market interest rates. Interest rate risk is managed principally through monitoring interest rate gaps and by having pre-

approved limits for repricing bands.

Asset Liability Committee (ALCO) is the monitoring body for compliance with these limits. ALCO reviews the interest rate gap statement and the mix of
floating and fixed rate assets and liabilities. Balance Sheet Management Unit is in-charge for day to day management of interest rate risk.

Interest rate Tisk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates wili affect future cash flows or the fais values of financial instruments. The Board
has established limits on the non—trading interest rate gaps for stipulated periods. The Company’s policy is to monitor positions on a daily basis and
hedging strategies are used to ensure positions are maintained within the established limits.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a Teasonably possible change in interest rates {all other variables being constant) of the Company’s
statement of profit and loss and equity. The sensitivity of the statement of profit and loss is the effect of the assumed changes ir interest rates on the profit
or loss for a year, based on the floating rate non-trading financial assets and financial liabilities keld at March 31, 2024 and at March 31,2023

Interest rate sensitivity

As at March 31, 2024

Increase in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of Sensitivity

basis points Profit Equity basis points Profit of Eguity
Loans 25 (.06 - 25 (0.06) -
Borrowings 25 {6971} - 25 69.71( -
As at March 31, 2023

Tacrease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity of  Decrease in Sensitivity of  Sensitivity

basis points Profit Equity basis paints Profit of Equity
Loans 25 2397 - 25 (2397 -
Borrowings 25 {29.44) - 25 29.44 -
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Regnlatory disclosare of Core Investment Company (CIC)

47.  CORE INVESTMENT COMPANY (“CIC") COMPLIANCE RATIOS ;

Particulars Asat As at
Maych 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
2} [nvestments & loans 10 group companies as a proportion of Net Assets {%) * 99.98% 99.98%
b} Investments in equity shares and compulsorily convertible instruments of group companies as a proportion of 96.15%| £9.98%
Net Assets (%) *
) Capital Adequacy Ratio (%) [Adjusted Net worth / Risk Weighted Assets] 32.0%%, 13.25%)
d3 Leverage Ratio {Times) [Qutside liabilities / Adjusted Networth] 214 203
*Note:

Irvestment in Equity shares of Nuvama Wealth Management Linited ("NWML"), a former associale of the Holding Company is considered as group
investment for the purpase of reporting these ratios. These shares are subject to fock-in 11l Seprember, 2024 as per SEBI Regulation

48, Exposure to real estate sector

Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

a} Divect Exposures

(i) Residential Mortganes - Lending fully secured by Mortgages on residential property that is or will be
agcupied by the borrawer or that is rented property that 1s o will e occupied by the borrower or that 1s rented -
of which housing loans eligible for inclusion in priority sector advances are rendered

{(n} Commescial Real Estate- Lending secured by morigages on commercial real estate (office buildings, retad
space, mulli purpose commercial premises, multi family residental buildings multi tenanted commercial
prensises. industrial or warehouse space. hotels, land acquisition, development and construction, eic.). Exposure
would also include non fund based (NFB} limit

£iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (ABS) and other securitised exposures -
a. Residential
b. Commercial Real Estate

b} Indirect Exposures

= 1 ) 1 i
Flm.d based and non-fund based exposures on National Housing Bank (NHB} and Housing Finance Companies 293453 293453
(HFCs).
Total exposure to Real Estate Sectar 293453 2.934.53

49, Disclosure of details as required by RBUDNBR/2016-17/3% i.e, Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated

22, 2019)
Liahilities Side:
Particalars Amount Cutstanding as at Amouni Overdue as at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

1) Leans and advances availed by the
CIC inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid

a} Debentures: {other thar: those falling
within the meaning of Public deposits)

(1) Secared 9.122.46 4,371.31 - -
(it} Unsecured 5,736.07 5,748.71 - -
b) Deferred Credits - - -
¢} Term Loans 295197 - - “
d) Inter-corperate loans and borrowing 24,924.21 11,775.69 - -
&) Cemumercial Paper 5.366.54 4,690.09 - -

£) Giher loans {Bank overdraft) - - - -
) Other loans (Subordinated ligbitities) 161.17 161.12 - -
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Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company {CIC)

49, Trisctasure of details as reguired by RBUDNER/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Divectinns, 2016 dated

August 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019) {continued}

Assets Side:

Particubars

Amount O

as at

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

2} Break up of Loans and Advances
a) Secured
b} Unsecured

3) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hive and other assetscouniing towards AFC activities
i} Lease assets including lease rentals

(a) Financial Lease

(b) Operating Lease

i) Stock on hire including hire charges

{a) Assets on hire

{b} Repossessed assets

iii} Other loans counting towards Asset

(a) Loans where assets have been

{b) Loans cther than {a) above

4} Break ap of Investments
Current Investments:

1. Quoted:

(i) Shares:

{a) Equity

(b} Preference

(i1) Debentures and Bonds
{131} Units of Mutuai Funds
{iv) Government Securities
{v) Others

2. Unquoted:

(i) Shares:

{a) Equity

{bj} Preference

{11} Debentures and Bonds
{1ii) Units of Mutuat Funds
{1v) Government Securities
{v) Others

Long term Investments:

1. Quoted:

{1} Shares

{a) Equity

{b) Preference

{i1) Drebentures and Bonds
(311 Units of Mutual Funds
{iv} Government Securities
() Others

2. Unquoted:

(1} Shares:

() Equity {refer note 1}
(b} Preference

(ii) Debentuses and Bonds
(ni) Units of Mutual Funds
(iv} Government Securities
(v) Others

24.60

71.291.09
2,715.70

62,858 81
20.00

9.549.53

28,924 24
2000

Notes:

1. Unquoted equity include investment in equity, redeemable preference shaces, compulsory convertible debentures and compulsary convertible preference

shares
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Regulatary disclosuve of Core Investment Company (C1C)

49.

Awgust 25, 2016 (Updated as on November 22, 2019} (continued)

5) Borrower group-wise classification of assets Nananced as in {2) and {3) above :

Disclosure of defails as required by RBUDNBR/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Jnvestment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated

For 2023-24
Category Amouni net of provisions j
Secured Unsecured Tata)
1. Related party
a) Subsidianes - 8.68 863
b) Companies in the same group - 1592 1592
2. Cther than related parties - -
Toral - 24.60 2460
For 2022-23
Category Ameuni net of provisions
Secured Einsecured Total
1. Related party
a) Subsidiaries - 1,672.50 1672.50
bj Campanies in the same group - 7.877.03 7.877.03
2. Other than related parties - .
Total - 9,549.53 9,549,533
6) Investar group-wise classification of alf investments (current and long-term)
Asat Asat
March 3, 2024 March 31,2023
Catepory Market Value / NMarker Valwe /
Breakup Value or Book Value Breakup Value or Book Value
Fair Vatue or NAY | (Net of Provisions) | Fair Value or NAY | (Net of Provisions)
1. Related party
a} Subsidianies 58,599.70 58,599.70 14,856.58 14,356.98
4} Companies in the same group 7.031.81 7.031.81 12,842.72 12,842.72
2. Other than related panies 1.314.19 T7.314.19 4.303.16 4,103.16
Toral 72,945.70 72,945,780 31.802.56 31,802.86
6.1) Investment in other CICs- Total amount representing any direct or indirect capital contribution made hy one CIC in another CIC is Nil
5.2) Investments and movement in provisipn
As al As at

Particulars

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023;

1. Value of Investments

1) Gross Value of Investments
a) In India
b) Gutside [ndia

ii) Provisions for Depreciation
a) In [ndia
b) Cutside India

it} Net Value of Investmenis

a) In India
b) Qutside [ndia

i} Opening balance
i) Add : Provisions made during the year

iv} Closing balance

2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation ot investments

1t} Less - Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during the year

72,945.70

72.945.7C

31.802380

31.802 86




Edel Finance Company Limited

Notes to the financial statemen(s for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency Indian tupees in millions)

49.

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC}

scdnsure of detnils as required by REI/DNBR/2016-17/39 i.e. Master Direction - Core Investment Compznies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 dated
August 25, 2016 (EHpdated as on N. ber 22, 2019) inued)

73 Other information

Particulars Amount Quistanding as at
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2623

{i) Gross Neo-Performing Assets
(a) Related Parties - -
(b) Other than Related Parties -

{ii} Net Non-Performing Asseis
(a) Related Parties b
(b) Other than Related Parties - M

|{iii) Assets acquired in satisfaction of -

Disclasure on liquidity risk

As required in terms of paragraph 3 of RBi Circular RBL2019-20/88 DOR NBFC (PI}) CC. No.302/03.10.001/2019-20 dated November 4, 2019 on Liguidity
Risk Management Framework for Nan-Banking Financial Censpanies and Core Investment Companies.

1. Funding concentration based on significant counterparty (barvowings)

As at March 31, 2024

o . A 1 % of T4 its | % of Total
Number of significant counterparties* oan % of Total Deposits o
Liab#ities
14 3961310 NA 81.38%
Total 39,613.10 - 81.88%
As at March 31, 2023
" . L/ l i) H Q, ]
Numnber of significant counterparties* Amount % of Total Deposits /’ Of.T?‘a
Liabilities
9 18,731.73 NA 69.38%|
Total 18,73L.73 - 69.88%]
* “Significant connterparty” is defined as a single cuunterparty or gronp of comnected or uffifiated o puriics accounting in aggregate for more than (%%

of the NBEC-NDSE's total labifities.
2. Top 20 barge deposits
The Company being a Systemically lmportant Nen-Deposit taking Non-Banking Financial Company registered with Reserve Bank of India got convered inte

Core Investment Company {C1C) as NBFC-CIC-ND-S1, does not accept public deposits.

3. Top 10 horrowings (amount in ¥ miflions and % of tatal borrowings)

As at March 31, 2024

Particulars Amount* % of Total
Borrowings**
‘Top 1C [nvestors 39.613.10 82.07%

As at March 31, 2023

Particulars Amount* %o of Total
Borrowings*®
Top 10 Investors 18,981.73 70,97

* Represents principal amount
*= Tota borrawings represems debt securities — borrowings {other than debt securities) - subordinaied liabitities

4. Funding concentration based on significant instrument / product

As at March 3E, 2024

Amount % of Total Liabilities
Name of the instrument / product

Drebt secunities 201.386.24 42.14%
Intra Group borrowings 2788218 57.63%

As at March 3i, 2023

Amount % of Total Liabititées
Name of the instrument / product

[Debt securities 1497123 85.85%]
Intra Group borrowings 11.775.09 43.93%]
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{Currency: indian rupees in millicns)

20,

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company {CIC)

Disclosure on tiquidity risk (continued)

3. Stack Ratios
As at As at
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023)
Commercial papers as a % of total public funds 1.12% 17.54%
Commercial papers as a % of total liabilities 11.0%% 17.50%
Commercial papers as a % of total assets 7.21%) 11.16%
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than one year) as a % of total public funds 0.00%) 0.00%)
Non-convertible debentures (original maturity of less than ane year) as a % of total lizbilities 0.00% 0.00%]
Mon-convertible debentures (anginal maturity of less than one year) as a % of total assets 0.00%, 0.00%;
Other short terra habilities * - -
Other short-term liabilnies, if any as a % of total public funds** 0.00% 0.00%|
Other short-term liabilsties, if any as 2 % of wtai liabilities*** 0.60% 0.00%|
Other short-term liabilities, if any as a % of tota! assets 0.00% 0.00%|

* “Oher short-term liabilities” refers to the borrowing in short term in nature,

** “Total public funds™ refiers to the aggregate of Debt securities, Borrowing (other than debt securities) and Suberdinated liabilities

e “Toml hiabilities ™ refers to total extemal liabilities (ie. excluding ol equity).

6. Institutional set-up for kiquidity risk management

The Asset-Liability yap is being monitored from time 10 time to overcome the asset-labiity mismatches, interest risk exposure, etc. if any. The Liquidity risk
emanates from the possible mismatches due to differences in maturity and repaynient profile of assets and liabitities. The Company ensuzes that the credit and
investment exposure are only with 1he group companies and are within the statmory limits as prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India from lime to time. The
Company will continue to get support from the Holding Company in the form of equaty infusion and the necessary support to repay ils dues on a timely basis.
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Notes to (he financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
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31,

82,

Regulatory disclosure of Core lavestment Company (CI1C}

bisclosure pursuunt to Reserve Bank of India notification DOR {NBFC).CC.PD.Ne, 109/22.10.106/2019-20 dated March 13, 2020 pertaining to Asset

(lassificatian as per RB1 Norms

As per the RBI circular RB1/2019-20/170 dated 13th March, 2020, where impairment allowance under Ind AS 109 s Jower than the provisioning required under
IRACP (including standard asset provisiening), NBFCs (CICs) shail appropriate the difference fron: therr net profit or Joss after 1ax to a separate ‘[mpairment
Reserve”. Further, no withdrawals shall be permitied from this reserve without prior permission from the RBL

As at March 31, 2024

Asset Ciassification as per RBI classification as  [Amount as per {Provisiens) as Net Carrying required as I As 109 Provisions
Norms per lnd AS 10% required under  [Amount per IRACP and IRACP norms
A B C=A-B D E=RB-D
Performing Assels
Standard Stage | 2470 0.10 24 60 0.10 -
As at Murch 31, 2023
Lass Altowances Provisions
Asset Gross Carrying  |{Provisions) as required as Difference hetween
Asset Classificaiion as per RBI classification as  |Amount as per required under  |Net Carrying per IRACP Ind As 10% Provisions
Norms per Ind AS 109 Ind AS 10% Ameunt norms and IRACP nerms
A B C=A-B D E=B-D
Performing Asgsets
Standard Stage ! 9,587.88 3835 9,549.53 3835 -
Asset Liability Management -Maturity pattern of cerfain items of assets and linbilities
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Liabilities Assets
Market Inter group
borrowings borrowings Advance| Tnvestments
I day te 36/31 days (One month} - 134 .21 24 60 264 .00
Over One months te 2 months 1,927 68 - - 2,934.53
Qver 2 months up 1o 3 months 3,594 49 - - 3,756.20
Over 3 menths to 6 months 117 - - 2,430.40
Qver 6 months o T year 2,95197 - - 3.645.59
Over | year to 3 years 744767 - - 7.206.26
Over 3 yearsto § years 740523 900 00 - 60,26
Over 5 years - 23.890.00 - 52,648.46
Total 23,344.21 24,924.21 24.60 72,945.70
As at March 31, 2023
Particulars Liabilities Assels
Market Inter group)
borrowings borrowings! Advance! Investments
1 day 1o 30/31 days {One month) - 155.56 162.24 -
Over One months to 2 montis 2,043.16 - 2,051.60 -
Crver 2 months up te 3 menths 2,169.73 - 220558 -
Over 3 months to 6 months L2 - 114,74 -
Over 6 months to 1 year 2.646.00 - 264827 86.15
Over | year to 3 yeass 3,9319.34 7.619.53 2.237.10 10,727.03
Over 3 years to 3 years 4.161.88 3.000.00 - 2.081.02
Over 5 years - 1,000.08 - 18,908 .66
Total 14,971.23 11.775.09 9,549.53 31,802.86
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53,

54,

Regulatory disclosure of Core Investment Company (CIC)

Provisions and Contingencies;

Break up of "Provisions and Contingencies’ shown under the head Expendituze in Profit and Loss Account:

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2024

As at
March 31, 2023

betore tax)
Current tax
Deferred tax

Other provision and contingencies:
Provision for standard assets

Provisions for depreciation on investment
Provision lowards nen-performing assets
Provision made towards [ncome tax (shovm below profit

Current lax relating to earlier years
Impact of change in the rate on opeming deferred tax

(649,00}

(38.25)

20878

3080

Miscellaneous

1) Registration ohtained from other financial sector regulators: No registration has been ehtained front other financiat secter regulaters.

11} Penatties imposed by RBI and other reguistors: No penalties have been imposed by RBI or other regulators during the year (Previous Year: NIL)

111} Ratings assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year:

As at March 31, 2024

Instrument category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickworks Adcuite
i) Long Term Instruments
Rating A+/Stable A+/Placed on AStable AA-MNegative AtiStable
rating watch with
negative
implications
Amount 15,370.00 5,62000 2.000.00 272060 2,000.00
i) Short Term Instruments
Rating Al+ - Al Alt+ Al+
Amount 15,000.00 - 10.000.00 10,000.00 6,500.00
iii) Market link debentures - Long term
PPMLID A+/Stable PP-MLD PP-MLD
A+/Placed on AfStable
rating watch with
negative
Rating impheations - -
Amount 15.424.20 1{.527.60 1,458.20 - -
iv) Market ink debentures - Short term
Rating PPMLD Al+ - - - -
Amount 5.000.00 - - - -
As at March 31, 2023
Instrumeni category CRISIL ICRA CARE Brickwaorks Acuite
1} Leng Term Instruments
Raling AA-MNegative A+/Sable A+/Negative AA-Negative[ AA-/Negative
Amount 13,670.00 6,120.00 2,000.00 272000 2,000 00
i1] Short Term Instruments
Rating Al+ - Al Al+ -
Amount 15,006.00 - 10,000.00 14,000.00 -
iii) Market link debentures - Long term
PP-MLD AA-  PP-MLD [ICRA] PP-MLD
Rating Megative At+/Stable A+/Negative| B -
Amount 1542420 1.537.60 1.458.20 - -
iv) Market link debentures - Short term
Rating, PE-MLD Al+ - - - -
Amount 5,006.00 - - - -

K
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551

55,2

55.4

555

85,6

55.7

55.8

55.9

Regulatery disclosure of Core luvestment Company (CIC)

Qther Additional Regulatory Information

Title deeds of mmovable Properties rot held in name of the Company
The Company do not have any immovable properties where title deeds are not held in the name of the company

Loans and Advances

There are no loans or advances in the nature of loans which are granted te promoters, directors, KMPs and the related parties {as defined under the Companies Act,
2013), either severally or jointly with any other person that are:

(a} repayable on demand or

(b} without specifying any terms or period of repayment

Details of Benami Property held
The Company do not have any benami property, where any proceeding has been mitiated or pending against the conspany for lolding any Benamu property

Security of current assels against borrowings
The Company has no borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the bass of security of current assets.

Wilful Defauiter
The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial Institution or other lender

Relationship with Struck off Companies
The Cosmpany do not have any transactions with companies struck off.

Registration of charges or satisfaction of charges with Registrar of Companties {ROC)
The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet lo be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

Undisclosed income
The Cempany have not any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the
tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the income Tax Act, 19613

Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency
The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Yirtual Cutrency during the current financial year and any of the previous financial years.

55, 10 Compliance with number of fayers of companies

The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause {87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restriction en number of Layers)
Rules, 2017,
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56. Figures for the previcus year have been regrouped” reclassified wherever necessary $o confinn to current year presentation.
As per our report of even date attached

For Dhiraj & Pheeraj
Chartered Accountants

[CAL Finm Regis!!ati()(n;u)mﬁr: 102454W

For and on behaff of the Board of Directors

=
fronte

histi ‘a Dadhich
Partner
Membership No: 425098

VYidya Shah
Exeentive Director
DIN 00274831

)

Christing D'sourza
Company

Mumbai May 10, 2024 ~ May. 10, 2024



Form AOC-I

Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts/) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part "A": Subsidiaries

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Nido Home Finance Limited Ediweiks vestmentAdviser Comtrade Commodities Services Limited
Name of the Subsidiary Company (Formerly known as Edelweiss Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade | Allium Finance Private Limited
Housing Finance Limited) Limited)
Reporting currency INR INR INR INR
Exchange rate
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 693.50) 6,755.501 300.00 68.26
Reserves of the Subsidiary 7454.38 (13,361.94) (291.77)| 1365.55|
Total Assets of the Subsidiary 37,649.46| 5,003.45| 33.62) 1436.10|
Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 29,501.58) 11,609.89) 25.39 2.29)
Investments 2,058.23 1,808.22 E -|
Total Turnover 4657.12| 1,349.45 0.66 157.22]
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 260.55| (2,407.87] (8.83 158.39)
Provision for taxation 67.50] - 0.02| 32.92
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 193.05| (2,407.87 (8.85] 125.47|
Proposed dividend - - 4 -
% of shareholding 95% 10074 100%| 88.28
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Ecap Equities Limited ECL Finance Limited Edelcap Securities Limited

Name of the Subsidiary Company Services Limited
Reporting currency INR INR INR INR
Exchange rate
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 13,179.404 12,784.49 2,138.27| 3639.25|
Reserves of the Subsidiary -6,180.55| -3,389.66| 25,552.81 456.69
Total Assets of the Subsidiary 27,285.34) 51,460.25] 1,08,282.08 6901.62]
Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 20,286.49 42,065.42 80,591.004 2805.68|
Investrnents 10,282.62] 34,723.39 73,978.9¢ 6094.27]
Total Turnover 3,108.37| 14,388.97 12,737.53] 1524.52f
Profit/(Loss) before taxation -1,008.71 865.67] 1,844.22 239.85|
Provision for taxation 17.68 -534.22] 492.35( -39.57|
Profit/(Loss) after taxation -1,026.37| 1,399.89 1,351.87] 279.43)
Proposed dividend -
% of shareholding 100% 80.23% 100% 80.23%

del Retail Edel Private Equity Edel: Value Ed Multi Strategy India Credit India Credit
Name of the Subsidiary Company Finance Limited Tech Fund and Growth Fund Fund Advisors LLP Investment Investment
. Fund Il Fund -5

Reporting currency INR INR INR INR
Exchange rate
Paid-up Equity Share Capital 42950 266.84| 593.70} 6.13] B
Reserves of the Subsidiary 5,081.40¢ 249.42| 84.67] 178 i
Total Assets of the Subsidiary 10,144.92] 516.39 678.56] 7.95| i
Total Liabilities of the Subsidiary 4,634.02| 0.13 0.194 0.04| i
Investments 2,219.34 513.93] 641.53| 1 | B
Total Turnover 1,085.45 -17.04} -111.17] - 67.98| -765.11)
Profit/(Loss) before taxation 181.84 -19.13 -114.79 -0.08 -361.501 -791.94
Provision for taxation 37.66) 1 1 1 7]
Profit/(Loss) after taxation 144.18) -19.13) -114.75 -0.08 -361.50 -791.94)
Proposed dividend ]
% of shareholding 81.62 95.60% 96.05% 1003 100%| 100%

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Edel Finance Cotppany Limited

DIN No.:07F97081

May 10, 2024

Vidya Shah

Executive Director
DIN No.: 00274831

o
A}

Company Secretary
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Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounst/) Rules, 2014)

Statement containing salient features of the financial statements of subsidiaries/ associate companies/ joint ventures

Part"B"

: Associates

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Edelweiss Securities and
SrNo |Name of the Associate Investments Private Limited
1| Latest Audited Balance sheet date 31-Mar-24
2| Share of Associate held by the Company
on the year end
Number of shares 2,94,473
Amount of Investment in Associates | 5,968.05
in millions)
Extend of Holding % 48.00%
3| Reason why the associate is not
Consolidated No Control
4| Networth attributable to Shareholding
as per latest audited Balance Sheet { " in
millions) 2,896.57
5| Profit / {Loss) for the year
i. Considered in Consolidation (16.13)
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation (356.93)
(including exceptional items)
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
—
LY
Vidya Shah

DIN No.:

May 10,

07p97081

2024

Executive Director
DIN No.: 00274831

&
Christina D’s
Company Secretary
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